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BElng a leader i meta smelting and refining, cement products and fabncated metals—
notably advanced materials and tools—Mitsubishi Matenals is also a major supplier of electronic materi-
als and components. Established in 1950, Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation is one of the world's largest
diversified materials companies, and its high-leve! research and development programs are instrumental
in enabling 1t to maintain its dominant position N key markets.

Mitsubishi Materials comprises 2 34 subsidiaries and affiliates in

2 5 countries worldwide, employing 21 ,641 people.

CONTENTS

To Our Stakeholders E Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) m

Message from the President u Management

At a Glance ﬂ Financial Section

Review of Operations ﬂ Main Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates 76
International Network 77

Research and Development Corporate History 78
Corporate Data/lnvestor Information 79

Corporate Governance

Cautionary Statement with Respact to Forward-Looking Statements

Statements made i this annual report with respect to Misubisht Matenals' plans, strategies and beliefs, and other statements that are not historical facts are forward-ooking state-
ments about the future performance of Mrtsubxshn Matenals which are based on management’s assumptions and behefs in light of the information qurrently available to i, and
involve nsks and uncertainties. Potential nsks and uncertainties include, wathout hmitation, general economc condiions in Mitsubishi Matenials’ markets, industnial market condr-
tions, exchange rates particularly between the yen and the U § dollar, and other currencies in which Mitsubishi Matenals makes significant sales or in which Mitsubshi Materals®
assets and habilities are denominated, and Mitsubishi Matenals’ abdity to continue to win acceptance of its products and serices, which are offered in hughly competitive markets
charactenzed by continual new product mtroductions, rapid developments in technology and changing customer preferences




Consolidated Financial Highlights

Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year ended March 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008

Mihons of yen TEOSUSggltljgrg f

2010 2009 2008 2010
For the year
Net sales ¥1,119,448 ¥1,424,114 ¥1,659,286 $12,031,907
Operating profit 12,680 35,134 100,146 136,287
Net {loss} iIncome {66,555) 6,106 74,268 (715,340)
Per share data (in yen)-
Basic net iIncome ¥(52 3) ¥48 ¥591 $(056)
Cash dividend applicable to the year — 40 80 —
Ratios (%):
Return on assets (ROA) (3.6) 04 40
Return on equity (ROE) | (16 7) 14 143

Note US dollar amounts are translated from yen at the rate of ¥93 04 to US$1, the approximate exchange rate as of March 31, 2010

1450 —

1,424

1143

1119

AT

35

20

-20

2006 2007 2008
Net Sales (Billions of yen)

2009

2010

2006

2007 2008

2009

2010

Operating Profit (Billions of yen)

\

2006 2007

== ROE

2009 2010

Return on Assets / Return on Equity (%)
- ROA

Note Amounts of less than one miflion yen have been amutted As a resuft, the total amounts in Japanese ven and translated U S doflars shown in the consohidated financial
statemnents and notes to the consohdated financial statements do not necessarily agree with the sum of the indnndual amounts
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As a diversified matenals company, the Mitsubishi Materials Group supphies basic mate-
nals mdispensable for the world, together with fabricated products and new matenals
with tigh-performance features At the same time, the Group aims to build social sys-
tems based on recycling natural resources and raw matenals, which are gifts of nature
The Mitsutbishi Matenials Group 15 expanding 1ts business activities globally to contnbute
to people, society and the Earth

Operating condittons during fiscal 2010 were charactenzed by a rapid cooling of the
global and Japanese eccnomies, a downturn which began with the “"Lehman Shock ”
Such condrtions dealt a severe blow to all of the Group’s businesses, with net sales fall-
ing 21 4% year on year to ¥1,119 4 billion Turning to earnings, under these circum-
stances, we took steps to bolster our *Comprehensive Management Measures,” which
are focused primanly on significant cost reductions and a further concentration of man-
agement resources Owing to these efforts, the Group managed to retain an operating
profit of ¥12 6 billlon, which was down 63 9% compared with fiscal 2009 However,
the Group experienced a negative turnaround from a net income of ¥6 1 billion,
recorded in fiscal 2009, to a net loss of ¥66 5 billion due to its mability to overcome
detenorations in external conditions that exceeded forecasts It 1s with cur deepest
regret that dividends for the fiscal year under review must unfortunately be postponed

In order to overcome this difficult situation and return to profitability, we must build
an optimal business portfolio by promoting selection and concentration, while assess-
ing each of our businesses’ attributes, growth potential and other factors For this rea-
son, we will further promote our "four-wheel drive” corporate management structure
that strengthens Mitsubishn Matenials’ four core businesses, which are Cement, Metals,
Advanced Matenals & Tocls, and Electronic Matenals & Compenents In additton, we
will continue to concentrate management resources into the Group's three growth
areas Automohiles, information electronics, and the environment and recycling

Although the Mrtsubishi Materials Group remains 1n a weakened state, we can see a
new path towards growth on the honzon thanks to an economic recovery that is finally
taking place and will help overcome the current global recession Armud these crcum-
stances, we believe that we have made the best choice regarding who will tead the
Group to the next growth stage Consequently, on June 29, 2010, the previous presi-
dent, Akihiko Ide, became Chairman of the Board of Directors, while Hirosht Yao, who
resigned as president of Mitsubnsht Alurminum Co, Ltd on June 14, 2010, became
president of Mitsubishi Materials Corporation Under this new management structure,
the Mitsubishi Matenals Group will carry out business operations

June 29, 2010

;2 S L

Akihiko lde Hiroshi Yao
Chairman President and Chief Exacutive Officer

*»
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Message from the President

Accelerate transformationto a
muscular cost structure. Aiming

for further growth during the

current recovery period through
the selection and concentration
of management resources.

President and Chief Executive Cfficer

“Regrettably,
Mitsubishi Materials
recorded net losses.”

“Turning crisis into
opportunity, we will
strive to dramatically
increase cost compet-

itiveness.”

4 MITSUBISHI MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Hiroshi Yao

Fiscal 2010 Summary
The global economy durning fiscal 2010, ended March 31, 2010, began with a signifi-
cant drop i overall demand due to the impact of the global recession However, signs
of a recovery trend emerged during the second half owing to the nse in demand in
China and other emerging countries as well as the effect of economic countermea-
sures initiated by individual governments In Europe, the United States and Japan, a
full-fledged economic recovery will take time armid indications that a recovery in con-
sumer spending and resurgence in housing-related demand will be delayed

Against this backdrop, the Mitsubishi Materials Group recorded net sales of
¥1,119 4 billion in fiscal 2010, down 21 4% year on year, resulting mainly from
slumping demand in each business sector Operating profit fell 63 9% year on year to
¥12 6 billion This was the result of a ¥45 0-billion improvement in revenue and earn-
ings ansing from efforts to bolster Mitsubishi Matenals’ “Comprehensive Management
Measures,” which are focused primanly on sigrmificant cost reductions and 2 further
concentration of management resources However, the Group expenenced a net loss
of ¥66 5 billion, primanly caused by a detenioration of equity-investment earnings
related to SUMCO Corporation and the liquidation of deferred iIncome tax assets in
hight of uncertain operating conditions

Building a Strong Low-Cost Structure

Amid these difficult arcumstances, switching to a low-cost structure 1s indispensable
for steadily maintaining earnings Consequently, Mitsubishi Matenals will further
intensify and deepen its " Comprehensive Management Measures,” which were com-
menced in December 2008 and intended to facilitate the implementation of low-cost
operations by reducing distnbution- and repair-related costs while improving opera-
tional efficiency at headquarter divisions By undertaking these measures company-
wide, Mitsubishs Matenals aims to achieve an additional cost reduction of ¥12 0 billion
in fiscal 2011




"We will promote
carefully selected
investment plans to
realize future
growth.”

“We aim to return to
profitability and
build a foundation
for further growth.”

Concentrate Management Resources into Growth Businesses
Mitsubishi Matenials prioritizes the investment of management resources in three
growth areas automobiles, information electronics, and the environment and recy-
cing Afthough these growth areas have been severely impacted by the economic
recession, we will basically continue to tmplement our current investment strategies
with the 1dea that these areas will drive future growth in the global economy
Furthermore, a key point of these growth strategies involves focusing on expanding
areas that leverage the strengths of existing businesses In areas in which the Group
possesses a wealth of technologies accumulated over many years, as well as in areas
that are expected to grow, Mitsubishi Materials will refine its R&D themes and pursue
efficient R&D activities 1n three target markets energy saving, alternative energy and
urban-resource recychng

Pohcy for Fiscal 2011
It 15 a fact that Mitsubishi Matenials has suffered from deteriorating revenue and earn-
ings due to the major impact the global recesston has had on all of its businesses In
spite of this, we believe that our management strategy, the "four-wheel drive” corpo-
rate management structure, which encompasses the four core businesses promoted
by the Group—Cement, Metals, Advanced Materals & Tools, and Electrontc Matenials
& Components—is unwavening, even after the onset of this unprecedented economic
cnsts Therefore, in order to further augment the *four-wheel drive” corporate man-
agement structure, we will strengthen the Group’s technological development capacity
to create new, high-quality, tuigh-performance products that are differentiated from
other companies

Although the Group 15 experiencing a recovery in revenue and earnings, 1t 1s vital to
increase market presence and stimulate demand in emerging countnes, which are
experiencing rapid market development, in order to accelerate the recovery and, in
turn, facilitate further growth Consequently, among emerging countries, Mitsubishi
Materials 15 placing special attention on China In order to enter into the growing
Chinese market and prevail agamnst fierce competitron, we established a new company
based in Shanghai n March 2010 that integrates all of the management and support
functions of Group companies in China From this local operating base, we will take
steps to expand businesses centered on the sales of cemented carbide products to
keep pace with the rapid development taking place in China

To Our Shareholders and Investors
| am aware that my role as the Mitsubishi Materials’ new president involves strength-
ening the current earnings foundation, along with the future growth and competitive-
ness of the Company For this reason, 1t 1s important to bolster existing businesses,
cultivate new businesses and expand overseas businesses Our employees, who are
engaged in maintaining superior quality technology, cost competitiveness and effec-
tive services, are the key to achieving these ams We therefore established the Human
Resources Development Center, which focuses on cultivating personnel In addition,
we are contemplating the employment of quabfied imdmiduals from other companies,
depending on the situation

The Mitsubishi Matenials Group furthers its corporate philosophy, “For People,
Society, and the Earth,” by undertaking businesses that produce and supply a wide
vaniety of matenials on a global scale With confidence and pnide, the efforts of each
and every Mitsubish) Matenals employee will enable us to succeed against fierce glob-
al competition and ultimately achieve an early return to profitability

We lock forward to the unwavening support and understanding of the Company's
shareholders and tnvestors

MITSUBISHI MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010 5
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At a Glance

Sales by Segment*
Fiscal 2010 (Bilhons of yen)

(¥1,119.4

billion

* Sales to uraffibated customers

Operating Profit by
Segment**
Fiscal 2010 (Bilhons of yen)

¥20.0
bilian

OCement
Cretals
OAdvarcec
Matenals
& Mok
Tflectrorsc
Matenals
& Comgorenis
OAloroum
B O:nors

== Belore elim nation
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(O Cement

Managenent Financal S—oon

Major Products and Services

+ Portland cement
* Cement-related products
* Ready-mixed concrete

* Building materials

(O Metals

* Copper smelting

* Processed copper products

(O Advanced Materials & Tools

» Cemented carbide products
s Sintered parts
s High-perfermance alloy products

* Diamond tools

(O Electronic Materials & Components

e Electronic materials
e Chemical preducts
e Electronic components

* Polycrystalline silicon

O Aluminum

¢ Aluminum beverage cans
e Rolled aluminum
* Rolled or extruded aluminum products

* Pracessed aluminum products

@ Others

* Fossil fuels

» Nuclear energy-related services

» Precious metals

= Resources-, environment- and
recycling-related products

* Real estate, etc.




Net Sales (@ions of yer) Operating Profit eforscf ey Profile

Building a business framework that encompasses the pro-
duction and sale of each type of cement, along with ready-
mixed concrete and secondary cement products, Mitsubtishi
Matenals 1s engaged in cement businesses both in Japan and
overseas The Company 1s also contributing to a resource-
recychng society by actively promoting the recycling of
waste matenals and byproducts

Mitsubishi Matenials 1s expanding the Metals business based
on three pillars the development of copper mines, copper
smelting and processing In recent years, the Company has
actively invested In copper mining, augmented recychng in
the copper smelting business and reorganized the process-
ing business in order to manufacture and sell stable, high-
performance and high-quality copper products globally

Mitsubishi Matenals prowvides core components, matenals
and other products to customers around the world primarily
in the automotive and aircraft markets Such products
include cemented carbide tools, which are indispensable for
the metal processing of various components, as well as
engines and transmisstons The Company has also been
focusing tts energy In recent years on recycling raw materi-
als, induding tungsten

[l

w
)
-

Mitsubishi Matenals produces polycrystalline silicon used in
semiconductors and solar cells at a level of purity high
enough to be referred to as “Eleven 95” (1 € 99 999999959%),
owing to preasion technelogy that i1s unsurpassed world-
wide Moreover, this business segment 15 engaged n the
manufacturing and sales of high-performance/high-quality
products that include various electroruc materials and com-
ponents for global markets

The Aluminum business 1s engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of products for a wide array of segments and with
vartous uses, including aluminum cans for beverages, auto-
mobile components, matenals used by the electric and elec-
tromics industries and consumer products Furthermore, the
Company focuses on recycling used beverage can (UBC) with
full range of operation such as collection, casting and roll-
ing Then UBC can revive as new aluminum beverage can
again

In 1ts Others business, Mitsubishi Matenals 15 promoting
developments in areas that include the energy business,
which involves nuclear, geothermat and wind-power opera-
tions that are expected to provide non-COremitting energy
sources, the precious metals business, which 15 engaged in
buying and selling of such rtems as bullion and jewelry, and
the engineering business, which undertakes the MMC
Group's civil engineening and construction operations

2007 2008 2009 2010

MITSUBISHI MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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Review of Operations

CEMENT

BUSINESS STRENGTHS

@ Built an efficient production struc-
ture centered on the Kyushu Plant,
the largest cement production
facility in Japan

® Promoting overseas expansion by
establishing production and sales
bases in the United States, China
and Vietnam

13900 14000 14000

13100

11500

2906 2007 2008 2009 2010

Shifts in Cement Production
{Thousand ton)
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Share of Sales

Milhons of yen)

Met Sales 163,084 198,701 185,074 198,288 164,501

Operating profits 8,928 11,543 13,925 18,335 15,639

Identifiable assets 338,365 338,906 268,847 280,368 264,000
Capital expenditures 9,038 12,750 16,653 21,114 14,127

Depreciation 15,213 15,825 12,849 10,216 9,582

Performance for fiscal 2010

In the cement business, domestic demand continued its downward spiral due to
weakness in residential construction spending and private-sector capital spending, as
well as a government policy of planned restraint in public sector spending over the
medium term Overseas, we enjoyed healthy demand in China thanks to economic
stimulus measures adopted there In the Urited States, however, demand fell srgrufi-
cantly, especially in the housing sector, due to a deepening economi¢ recession
sparked by the wicious cycle of the financial cnsis and detenoration of the real econo-
my Total cement production for the year was 11 5 million tons {down 1 5 million tons
from the previous year)

As a result, segment sales decreased 17 9%, or ¥35 6 billion, year on year to
¥163 0 bithon, while operating profit fell 22 7%, or ¥2 & billion, to ¥8 9 bilhlon These
decreases occurred despite the positive effect of cost-reduction efforts implemented in
this segment

Outlook and Future Strategies

In the domestic cement business, we expect sales to decrease further year on year
due to a significant fall in public-sector demand, following a reduction in budget
allocations to public investment, as well as a delayed recovery of private-sector
demand In order to respond to these arcumstances, Mitsubishi Matenals began
undertaking a drastic restructuring of this segment’s sales and distnbution structure
in April 2010 that inctudes eliminating representative offices at affihated companies
and reducing its fleet of cement tankers At the same time, the Company i1s main-
tasning an optimal production system by such means as revamping facilities to
enable plants to maintain operations, even during periods of decreased production,




58,990
== 550 and consoldating production at the Kyushu Plant The Company will also take steps
g = 00 to improve profitability by instituting appropniate sales prices for cement and making
ongoing efforts to expand the recycling busmness
= = = um In the cement business in the United States, although a recovery in demand 1s
39000 expected to take place in the second half of 2010, Mitsubishi Matenals 15 moving for-

ward with efforts to improve profitability by cutting costs in hght of a slump In
demand that is forecasted to continue dunng the first half of the current year

In the cement business in China, demand centered on public warks projects 1s
expected to rnse, while demand for high-quality cement in particular 1s forecasted to
increase  Consequently, In addition to increasing sales pnces in this market, we will
take steps to further publicize the superior quality of our products with the am of
expanding and strengthening our sales platform

2007 2008 2009 pailod 20m
(Forecast)

Shifts in Demand for Cement in Japan

(Thousand ton}

Cement Business Strongholds in the Pacific Rim Area

Shifts in Production Volume [ Yantai, Shandong Prov., China California, U.S.A. Foracasted Demand for
in China (Million ton)

Cement in Southern California

tProduction and sales of cemerst) Mitsubishi Cement Corp. (Millicn ton)

2000 ~ » Production capacity: 1.4 million tonsiyear {Production and sales of cemant)

* Production capacity t @ mithon tons

« Maumui inport and sales volurne
1 35 mullon tons

MCC Development Corp.

(A holdings company which deals in

ready-mixed concrete and aggregate)

I
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J lapan
Mitsubishi Materials Carporation
{Production of cement)

Vietnam » Blants Kyushu, Yokoze, iwate, Aomor
* Production capaaty 9 million tons

(Production and sales of cement) ‘ Ube-Mitsubishi Cement Corp.
« tArtsubshi Materats' investment 3 (Sates of cement)

ratio 19 5% ll .
+ Production capacity
4.35 milkon tonsfyear

-t
c %

. Exports to the Urited States have been suspended in hght of a sigmificant

drop in demand n that market In the long term, however, Mitsubishi

(Production and sales of cerment muxiure) Matenals anticipates a resumpticn of exports on¢e demand recovers This

» Mitsubsiy Matenals’ investment ratio: 6 3% anticipated resumption of exports 1s attributable to forecasts indicating that

* Amount exported from the Mitsubishi demand for cement wil! grow over the medium 1o long term on the back of
Mazerials Group: 04 m-llken tons/year population increases in southern California

Singapore -
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BUSINESS STRENGTHS

e Expanston, encompassing the procure-
ment of raw materials, copper smelting
and the production of pracessed copper
products, based on the development of
overseas copper mines

® Global top share of production and
sales of oxygen-free copper and oxy-
gen-free copper alloys

351

147

139

+]

200504 201005

Shifts in Copper Prices (¢1b}
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Revew of Opergtiors  Re earck g
Devpiopreent

CHne ofe Govere nee CSP Manjement Fitlanuial $¢¢ton

Share of Sales

(Millons of yen)

Net Sales 421,938 530,420 684,497 598,921 358,765
Operating profits 5,860 10,023 46,053 33,395 22,962

Identfiable assets 516,672 367,561 500,705 466,294 395,493

Capital expenditures 15,738 16,906 25,980 11,626 10,965

Depreciation 19,958 19,665 15,672 12,455 10,846

Performance for fiscal 2010
Despite increased production at PT Smelting in Indonesia and the benefits of cost-cut-
ting efforts, the copper business reported year-on-year declines in revenue and earn-
ings for several reasons These include falling earnings from copper byproducts and
the appreciaticn of the yen Total production of electrolytic copper for the period was
596 thousand tons (down 39 thousand tons from the previous year)

In gold, revenue and earnings increased, buoyed by a rnise in gold content in raw
matenal mineral ore

Despite moderate recovery in demand, sales and earnings from processed copper
products declined due to a major drop in sales to the automobile and electronic mate-
nials and components markets

As a result, segment sales declined 20 5%, or ¥108 4 bilhon, year on year 10 ¥4219
billion, while operating profit dropped 41 5%, or ¥4 1 billion, to ¥5 8 hillion

Outlook and Future Strategies
Overall demand for copper ore continues to be impacted by the inabilty of the min-
ing side to produce sufficient copper to meet nsing demand in such markets as
China and Indha This situation 15 expected to remamn unchanged Although market
rates for copper have recovered to levels nearly identical to those recorded just
before the global economic recession caused prices to drop sharply, price fluctua-
tions continue to be severe, while uncertainty persists regarding future trends As a
result, the Company will pay close attention to the above trends as well as shifts in
foreign currency exchange rates and stock prices

Despite an ongoing slump in construction-related businesses, sales of processed
copper products in the automobile and etectronic matenals and components




markets are expected to recover
Under these circumstances, we will strive to establish a solid business base by low-
1162 enng our break-even pomt through the ongaing reduction of energy costs and fixed
1095 costs In the metals business As for the smelting business, we will endeavor to oper-
ate our domestic and foreign smelting plants in a stable manner Moreover, in order
to improve profitability, we will expand the recycling business and the income gener-
ated from waste treatment through such measures as building a structure capable of
treating the types of industrial waste that are difficutt for other compantes to han-
dle In the processed copper products busmess, we will promote the accelerated
development of alloys using our technical and developmental capabilities as we
strive to mcrease sales competitiveness and profitability

1031

2009 e 201% 2012 2015
(Forecast) (Forecast) (Forecast)

Size of the Global Power
Device-Related Markets (Bilons of yen}

Stable Procurem of Raw Materials in Metals Business

. Huckleberry mine (Canada} Similco mine (Canada)

Suppliers of Copper Ore

Producton Valume: 20,000 tondyear Production Volume. 45,000 ton/vear
|rdon/es‘;a . Canaca Investment Ratio 31.25% Invesument Rato 25.00%
APapua New  10% k f Product on 1997 Start rogducton 2011

GU;gea L fe of fne: 2012 Life of Ming 2028
‘, .Y
: re-

A:u\stralia « Batu Hijau mine (Indonasia)
. 5

South America Praduction Volurna: 220,000 tonfyear
55% tnvestment Ratio. 1.75%

Start of Production. 1999

Life of Mine: 2027

Escodida mine (Chile)

Production Volume: 1,110,000 tovyear
Investrnent Ratio 1 25%

Start of Production 1990

Life of Mine More than next 30 years

Cowra Boorowa (Austratia
( ) Los Pelambres mine (Chile)

Proditction Volume 420,000 ton/ymar

@ In operation Investment Ratio. 10.00%

@ Under exploration Start of Praduction. 1999

@ Possible acquisition of Interest Life of tine. More than next 30 years

Simiico Copper Mine Redevelopment Project

Undertaking the redevelopment of the Similco Copper Mine jointly with Copper Mountain Miing Corporation, Mitsubishi Materials expects
the mine to commence operations 10 2011 Owing to this redevelopment project, we expect the ratio of company-owned munes used for
domestic production to nise from the current ratio of over 60% to the 75% level

MITSUBISHI MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUALREPORT 2010 11
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BUSINESS STRENGTHS

# Possesses numerous products that
boast a leading market share, begin-
ning with cutting tools used to manu-
facture automobtle components

# Mitsubishi Materials sells cemented
carbide tools in more than 60 countnes
and has production, distrhution and
sales bases in 77 focations worldwide

25000

20000 /\

2004 2008 2009 2010 2015
{Forecast}

Shifts in the Number of Automobiles
Produced Worldwide (Thowsand unityvear)

== North America » South America = Europe
- JADAN == China s Krea

| .

Fromagl Sraton

Rewew of Operations  Reteach a~d
Develooment

Coios ate Gawer~an @ CSF Manzgerment

Share of Sales

{Millions of yen}

Net Sales 84,351 128,153

150,040 138,095 147,508

Operating profits(loss) ~ (5,211) 4246 19,311 16,114 19,985

Identfiable assets 153,099 152,164 174,760 166,433 162,855

Capital expenditures 4,322 10,031 11,443 12,702 7.155

Depreciation 9,156 10,269 8,968 6,894 11,063

Performance for Fiscal 2010
Cemented carbide products benefited from efforts to reduce costs, while orders
entered a recovery phase, buoyed by robust demand in such emerging countries as
China dunng the second half of the fiscal year under review However, revenue and
earnings fell due to a significant decrease in sales following the impact of production
and inventory adjustments in automobile-related markets during the first half

High-performance alloy products expenienced a decline in sales, pnmarily attnibut-
able to inventory adjustments made in the gas turbine market Despite this dechne,
and even though revenues decreased, earnings rose due to such factors as a recovery
in demand in automobile-related markets, the recording of a substantial inventory
evaluation loss duning the previous fiscal year and the impact of cost-cutting mea-
sures

As a result, overall net sales in this segment declined 34 2%, or ¥43 8 billion, year
on year to ¥84 3 billion, while operating profit experienced a negative turnaround of
¥9 4 bilhion, to record an operating loss of ¥5 2 billion

Outlook and Future Strategies

Cemand for cemented carbide products is expected to gradually recover in Japan,
the Uruted States and Europe, while forecasts indicate that demand wall further
expand in such emerging countries as China and india In terms of production, the
Company 15 taking steps, given the above arcumstances, to reduce costs and opti-
mize its production framework by transferring the production of some products to
overseas bases Mitsubishi Matenals will also further promote the recycling of the
raw matenal, tungsten Turning to sales, Mitsubishi Matenals will enhance 1ts tech-
nology support services for customers in Japan by effectively utiizing s new

12 MITSUBISHIMATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010




250 Machining Technology Center In China, the Company will bolster sales actvities
centered on new companies Contmnumg to make automobile-related markets a pil-
260 ¢ lar of its sales activities, Mitsubishi Matenals will also actively undertake measures in
’ the aircraft, energy, infrastructure and medical-related markets
Regarding high-performance alloy products, the Company will endeavor to boost
competitiveness and establish a stable revenue base, pnmanly by spinning off the
Okegawa Plant and undertaking agile business operations

[+

2007 2008 2009 2010 2015
(Forecast)

Shifts in the Number of Automobiles

Sold by Key Countries Worldwide
{2007 sales volume=100)

- USA <> Brazil = |ndia
- Japan == China

Cemented Carbide Products Business Network in China

Holding Company: 1 (Shanghat)

Branches: 3 (Beijing,Chongqing,
Guangzhou)

Representative Cffices: 7

Dealers: 35 cities

Production:

-Tianjin Tianling Carhide Tools Co., Lid.
Product Design and Technical Center:

Guangzhou

1000

Based on its policy of promoting business in emerging countries, the
Company established Mitsubishi Matenals (Shanghai) Corporation, which
commenced operattons 0 China n July 2010 In the cemented carbide
products business segment, although the Company established sales
branches in each region of China and a structure to operate technology
support services from Japan, the new Chinese subsidiary will be capable
2007 2013 of operating as a sales company, enabling Mitsubishi Matenals to conduct

(Fargen sales actvities that flexsbly respond to demand for cemented carbide tools

Sales of Cemented Carbide Products In China
{Millons of yen) in this rapidly developing country

MITSUBISHI MATERIALS CORPORATION AKNUALREPOXT 2010 13
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Davelopment

Share of Sales

COMPONENTS

BUSINESS STRENGTHS

o Supplying the market with quality
products that feature a supertor
“Eleven 9s” level of purity, owing to
precision technology that is unsur-
passed worldwide

¢ Manufactures and sells components
indispensable to such environmentally
friendly products as hybnd automobiles
and solar cells

300 000

80 000 F ]

60 00D V)

40 000 V.

0000 S———— L m==
-

1]

2004 2008 2009 2010 2
{Forecast}

Shifts in Demand for
Polycrystalline Silicon (Thousand ton}

== Solar cells == Semiconductors
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(Milhons of yen)}

Net Sales 57,826 65,968 91,759 85,189 75,525

Operating profits (loss) 2,608 8,525 14,334 10,388 4,814

Identifiable assets 182,530 194,472 190,077 169,282 137,310
Capital expenditures 22,622 17,544 9,674 8,162 4,801
Depreciation 6,680 6,659 5,698 4,970 4,361

Performance for Fiscal 2010
In advanced matenals, revenue and earmings increased due to a recovery in Taiwan's
semiconductor market and favorable sales of such products as fine matenals for
assembly

Regarding electronic devices, although revenue dechned because of sluggish sales
for products such as those used in mobule phones, earnings rose thanks to the positive
impact of cost reductions and a recovery of product sales for home electronic apph-
ances and automobiles

Turning to polycrystalline silicon and refated products, although there were indica-
tions of a recovery in product sales for semiconductors, particularly for 300mm silicon
wafers, sales ultimately decreased due to nventory adjustments undertaken by cus-
tomers in the first half of fiscal 2010 Coupled with falling sales of products used in
solar cells duning the second half, revenue and earnings decreased for polycrystalline
siicon and related products

As a result, overall net sales of this segment decreased 12 3%, or ¥8 1 hullion, year
on year to ¥57 8 billicn, while operating profit dropped 69 4%, or ¥5 9 bilhon, to
¥2 6 billion

Outlook and Future Strategies
Due to a round of inventory adjustments and other factors, demand for advanced
matenals 1s forecasted to be favorable amid expectations that full-scale growth wall
occur in the semicenductor-related markets Moreover, Mitsubishh Matenals will make
efforts to further strengthen profitability by increasing the ratio of net sales accounted
for by new products

Despite a movement towards recovery, demand for electronic devices 1s not expect-




(lifs

256 g

ed to reach the level of its previous peak Consequently, the Company will take steps
to augment profitability through the release of new products in combination with
cost-reduction measures that involve the switch to low-cost matenals

226 Froduction volume of polycrystalline silicon and related products fell dunng the first

2007 2008 2009 249 201
(Forecast) {Forecast)

Shifts in Global Demand
for Semlconductors (Billions of yen)

quarter of fiscal 2011 due to the impact of a temporary suspension of operations at
the Yokkaichi Plant However, a second production facility at this plant, which 1s
scheduled to be completed at the end of July 2010, 1s expected to enable the
Company to meet increasing market demand for such semiconductors as the 300mm
siicon wafer as well as for solar cells Through this Initiative, Mitsubishi Matenals 1s
working to increase revenue and earnings

Strengthening Production Capacity of High-Purity Polycrystalline Silicon

Mitsubish Matenals produces polycrystalline silicon for use In sericon-
ductors and solar cells Demand for polycrystaline silicon by semicon-
ductor manufacturers rapidly deteniorated in the wake of the “Lehman
Shock,” which occurred in 2008 However, we expect future demand
to be strong due to a recovery In demand taking place primanly in
emerging countries that began around the second half of fiscal 2009
In addition, although demand for polycrystalline silicon by solar-celt
manufacturers dropped in the same manner as semiconductors, devel-
opments n such clean-energy technologies as solar cells continue to
garner rapudiy increasing attention worldwide

Considening these medwm- and long-term trends 0 demand,
Mitsubishi Matenals 15 moving forward with the construction of new
faciities at the Yokkaichi Plant (the Company's production base in
Japan) to increase its annual production capacity of polycrystalline sili-
con from the current level of 1,850 tons to 2,850 tons Operations at
the new faality are scheduled to commence at the end of July 2010
Combimng this expansion with Mitsubishi Polysilicon Amenica
Corporation’s 1,500-ton production capacity, the Group’s total produc-
tion capacity will be 4,350 tons In addition to ¢onstruction currently
underway, we will investigate the feasibiity of building facilities capable
of producing an additional 3,000-4,000 tons per year within the same
90,000m? site adjacent to the Yokkaichr Plant, while examining future
movements tn demand

Mitsubishi Mateniats will focus rts energy on maintaiming a framework
to ensure a stable supply of polycrystalline stlicon that will meet future
increases in sthcon demand, while using its globally unsurpassed quality
to bulld an unshakeable position as a manufacturer of polycrystalline
sthcon

production
~iner

Yokkaich

1,850 1,000 2,850
Plant
MIPSA* 1,500 — 1,500
Total 3,300 — 4,350

* Mitsubishi Polycrystalline Silicon America Corpovauon

Expansion work to tncrease praduction of our Yokkaichi Pant

MATSUBISH! MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT2010 15
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(Millions of yen)

Net sales 127,037 151,742 169,143 162,841 143,093
Operating profits (loss) 3,048 (3,253) 5,330 2,849 3,441
Identfiable assets 150,292 153,831 164,655 183,585 180,913
Capnal expenditures 7.3NM 8,617 10,174 6,481 5,992
Depreciation 9,271 9,596 6,720 8,921 9,478

Performance for Fiscal 2010
In aluminum cans, although sales decreased due to such factors as unseasonable sum-
mer weather, earnings increased thanks to cost-reduction and ather efforts

For rolled aluminum and processed alummum products, a substantial drop 1n sales
during the first half of fiscal 2010, particularly in automaobile-related products, led to a
dechne in revenue However, earmings rose owing to cost-reducthion measures and a
recovery of demand during the second half

As a result, overall net sales of this segment fell 16 3%, or ¥24 7 bilhon, year on
year to ¥127 0 bilion, while operating profit increased ¥6 3 billion to ¥3 0 billion

{Milkons of yen)

Net Sales 265,209 349,127 378,771 268,77 253,908
Operating profits 4,859 10,205 9,594 4,733 7,872
ldentfiable assets 329,302 312,395 316,511 306,280 307,648
Capital expenditures 2,031 4,953 3,814 4,970 3,817
Depregiation 3,097 4,174 3,924 3,821 4,039

Performance for Fiscal 2010
In energy-related products, revenue and earnings both fell These decreases were pri-
manly attnibutable to the transfer of the petroleum and natural gas sales business of
the Company’s consolidated subsidiary, Mitsubishi Maternials Energy Corp (currently
Matenals Energy Corp ), the change of Mitsubishi Nuclear Fuel Co, Ltd ‘s status from
Mitsubishi Matenals consolidated subsidiary to affilated company, and drops in coal
prices and sales

For precious metals, revenue declined due to a decrease In the sales of gold ingots
and jewelry However, earnings increased owing mainly to efforts made to reduce
costs

The amount of orders far the nuclear- and engineering-related business segments
and the environment- and recychng-related business segments amounted to ¥47 8 bil-
lron, down ¥28 1 billion year on year, and the backlog of orders totaled ¥15 6 billion,
down ¥17 8 billion

As a result, overall net sales of this segment declined 24 0%, or ¥83 S bilhon, year
on year to ¥265 2 billion, while operating profit dropped 52 4%, or ¥5 3 billion, to
¥4 8 billion
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Research and Development

Fundamental Policy of R&D

It 1s the fundamental policy of Mitsubishi Matenals’ develop-
ment divistons to rapidly conduct ongomng development activi-
ties, 1in tandem with management pohaes, in order to
contribute to sustamnable business expansion As a comprehen-
sive matenals manufacturer, Mitsubishi Matenals strengthens
the cultivation of its indispensable core technologies At the
same time, the Company proposes and implements current
development themes to support and expand ongoing opera-
tions as well as future themes intended to create next-genera-
tion businesses

R&D Strategies

Amid such sigmificant socal change as the emergence of move-
ments to prevent global warming and address natural resource-
related problems, Mitsubishi Matenals s focusing on trends in
three primary areas—information electronics, automobiles and
environment and recyching—as the foundation for growth strat-
egies based on the Company’s management plans

Consequently, we are allocating management resources to
technolegical development that supports these three areas In
particular, the Company 1s focusing its attention on three mar-
kets that compnse part of the emerging eco-market, which has
the potential to become massive It 1s also channeling over 50%
of its development rescurces to these three markets, which are

urban-resource recycling, energy savings and alternative energy

Through these actions, Mitsubishi Matenals 15 taking steps to
strengthen businesses based on its core technologies as it culti-
vates next-generation businesses

In order to carry out the above development activities,
Mitsubishi Matenals 1s consolidating 1ts technologies in five
areas that support its business operations hydrometallurgy/
chermical reaction process, matenals and processing technology.
interface/thun films, simulation, and analysismatenals character-
1ization This consolidation will be accomplished by upgrading
the Company's development framework and its development
environment from a medium- to long-term perspective In addi-
tion, high-quality data 1s shared in a timely manner with each
Group company and development division, leading to ongoing
R&D activities that are high in quality and produce quick results

R&D Expenses

R&D expenses dunng the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010
decreased ¥954 milon, or 8 1%, year on year to ¥10,897 mil-
fion The breakdown of R&D expenses by business segment s
as follows Cement was ¥1,008 million, Metals stood at ¥891
milhon, Advanced Matenals & Tools reached ¥203 million,
Electronic Materials & Components totaled ¥1,069 million and
Alummnum amounted to ¥2,180 millon Moreover, R&D expens-
es in the abovementioned three pnmary growth areas reached
¥4,832 million

Concentrating on Target Markets within Our Three Growth Areas

Reviewing Development Strategy in
View of Market Conditions

Three Growth Areas smmp Three Target Markets

Energy saving

* Advanced IC integration
+ Usage In increasingly harsh

Information t@ environments
electronics * Increasing use of non-fossil fuels In '
the automotve sector " Lpont Boromof 120
* Hybnd development following A — Ok
current trends e
Cement kiln analysis Energy-saving cutting tools
AN i combuston mitor) ng cutting
» Solar cells and nuctear power as
alternatives to fossil fuels
Automobiles - Y Massive increase in scale of solar-cell

production
* Initiatives to combat global warming

Urban-resource recycling

» Rise of resource nationalism

» Increasing difficulty securing Insuiating circunt substrates
The environment resources due to depletion Bullion
and recycling » Abundant difficut-to-treat rtems and Silver su':m'::m*} Sitver-y,  Cells
urban resources in Japan bullion powder " paste " (solar cells)

Initiatives as Part of Our Four Core Businesses

Advanced Materlals & Tools

Electronic Materials &
Component

e

10 Rybrid vehicles
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Corporate Governance

Fundamental Policy

With the aim of maintaining sustainable development and max-
imizing corporate value through fair business activities,
Mitsubishy Matenals recognizes the importance of efficient and
transparent management and 1s steadily undertaking measures
that fully realize its corporate governance

The Board of Directors and Implementation System
The Board of Directors comprises eight internal directors and
one independent external director We consider this structure
appropriate for expediting decisions and ensunng management
objectivity and transparency The external director 15 knowl-
edgeable in international affairs and possesses insight into busi-
ness management operations, while fulfiling a function that 1s
completely independent, In the same manner as external audi-
tors detailed below Matters brought before the Board of
Directors are deliberated in advance by the Corporate Strategy
Committee, which 1s composed of the President and several
other directors, and appropnate decistons are made based on
these deliberations

The Company 15 an integrated organization with four core
businesses—Cement, Metals, Advanced Matenals & Tools, and
Electroruc Materials & Components Executive officer and inter-
nal company systems were introduced to ensure that these
businesses execute business activities in an agile and appropn-
ate manner In April 2007, management apponted representa-
tive directors and executive officers to head these internal
companies and implemented a system to facilitate the execu-
tion of business activities, based on the decasions of the Board
of Directors

Corporate Auditor Centered Auditing System

The Board of Corporate Auditors 1s made up of three standing
corporate auditors, one of whom 1s external, and cne part-time
auditor In order to monitor the execution of duties undertaken
by directors, each auditor attends all Board of Directors' meet-
Ings and other important gatherings and holds hearings that
assess the execution of duties of directors, the Internal Audit
Department and other nternal controt departments, in addition

Revewsof Operacov s Rereanch and
Devel omeni

Corporate Governance 59 Management Fnanudl Sacton

to overseeing matters concerning company assets Moreover,
audits are undertaken by standing corporate auditors from
important Group companies, in clese coordination with
accounting auditors The Internal Audit Department conducts
internal audits to identify the effectiveness and efficiency of
corporate actrvities, the reliability of finanaal reports, the main-
tenance and effective utihzation of assets, the status of nisk-
management efforts and the adherence to both the law and to
in-house rules and standards The Company appointed KPMG
AZSA & Co as the independent auditor responsible for its
accounting audis

Internal Control System Maintenance
Placing particular importance on nsk management and compli-
ance Groupwide, Mitsubishi Matenals established the CSR
Committee in 2005, chaired by the President, to control these
functions in a more comprehensive manner Through the CSR
Committee, the Company conducts the training of employees
who oversee nisk management internally and at each Group
company, implement risk surveys, assessments and analysrs
throughout the Group and undertake employee comphance
traiing at every level

Mitsubishi Materials recognizes that the development of
appropnate internal control systems 1s an important 1ssue con-
cerning the fulfillment of its business objectives and manage-
ment plans Based on this recogmition, the Company maintains
and enhances the effectiveness of its internal control systems in
accordance with the Companies Act and the Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act

General Meeting of Shareholders

@ Appointments and dismissals

Board of Directors NI

Management decision-making
and overmght

Appomntments,
dismussals and oversight

[Dnscusses important matters

Board of Corporate Auditors

| Operational auditing !

Appointments and dismissals &

Appointments
| and dismussals

]‘IIIIIIIIIIIIIIMH!MHUHBNML

Independent Accountants

| Accounting audit i

sty

— =

[
Executive Officers ¥

[ Operational execution !
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Basic CSR Policy
The Mitsubishi Matenals Group, as a comprehensive basic
matenals maker, provides resources, basic matenals and energy
indispensable to modern lfestyles In these efferts, we adhere
to a corporate philosophy that emphasizes making contribu-
tions to people, society and the Earth

The Group's CSR policy thus hinges on making this philoso-
phy a reality, through the sincere fulfillment of the cbligations
and expected role that society places on a corporate citizen
These obligatrons include disclosure, with proper explanation,
of the approaches taken and the constant pursurt of two-way
communication with stakeholders to promote greater mutual
understanding These actions will underpin a position of trust in
society

CSR Promotion Framework
Since December 2002, the Group has been working to
strengthen comphance and nsk management

Based on these initiatives, the Group established a CSR
Committee chaired by the president in January 2005 through
internal discussions In pursuit of increasingly proactive CSR
activities to meet the expectations of our stakeholders and
repay the trust they have placed in the Group Simultaneously,
the Group established a CSR Department to act as a special unit
dedicated to CSR actwities and appointed a director in charge
of CSR to take over duties from our existing director responsible
for compliance

In recogmition of the need to raise awareness of CSR actvities
among all Mitsubishi Matenals Group employees, we also
assign responsibility for CSR to the heads of each of our in-
house divisions and Group companies and appoint CSR manag-
ers and CSR supervisors lower down in each organization to
oversee our Groupwide CSR activities

Another key CSR activity concerns environmental preserva-
tion In support of this the Group launched Groupwide environ-
mental management activities headed by the director in charge
of the environment with the headquarters’ Environment &
Resources Diviston taking a central role

Through its business actvities, the Mitsubishi Materials Group

will continuously contribute to the sustainable development of
people, society and the Earth to remain a trusted corporate cit-
zen Simultaneously, we will make Groupwade efforts to achieve
further growth in our corporate value

CSR Direction

With the aim of realizing its corporate philosophy, the

Mitsubishi Matenals Group 1s proactively engaging in the fol-

lowing three themes

1 Respecting relationships with people Reinforang ties to
stakeholders

Through mutual communications, plants and companies under

the Group umbrella will go to great lengths to maintain favor-

able perceptions of the Group—as held by shareholders, cus-

tomers, suppliers, employees and other stakeholders—deepen

their understanding of stakeholder points of view, and work

hard to ensure a high level of stakeholder satisfaction

2 Respecting promises made to soctety Ensuring thorough
comphance and sk management practices

We will systematically reinforce levels of compliance and nsk

management to ensure legal compliance—a wital prerequisite

for expanding corporate actvities—and to anticipate and

address business-related problems before they arise

3 Respecting the Earth Reducing environmental impact

In our activities, which serve to reduce environmental impact,

we will direct efforts toward such measures as saving energy

and resources, cutting waste and hmiting the use of hazardous

substances

External Evaluation
On Aprnl 2009, Mitsubishy Matenials was selected for inclusion
in the Asia Pacific section of Dow Jones Sustainability Indexes
(DISI Asia Pacfic), global indexes based on socally responsible
investrent (SRI}

Details of the Group’s CSR activities are disclosed in its CSR
Report and on the website
httpJ/Awww mmc co |p/corporate/en/csrfindex htmil

Board of Directors

\

u

EML Corporate Strategy Commitee m: T
-orporate »trategy L.ommitee |

Director in Charge of CSR

o
L _ Internal Contact Office L _]_3

CSR Committee

Director Responsible for Personnel

CSR Department [ "~ Evaluation Committee -]
[;_ L Corporate Divisions In-House Companies, Business Divisions J
e &
f Plants, Branches ] [Mltsublshl Matenials (Group's) Subsidiaries and Afﬂhat_ti]
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Board of Directors Corporate Auditors
(Standing)

Takao Wada**

Fumio Shimada

Hiroshi Kanemoto

Corporate Auditor
Akio Utsumi**

Senior Executive

Officers
_ Masatosht Hanzawa
Akihiko Ide* Hiroshi Yao* Mayuki Hashimoto* Kimball McCloud
Chairman President and Managing Director Takeshi Itaba
Chuef Executne Officer Toshikazu Murai
Akio Hamay

Executive Officers
Nacki Uchiyama
Masayuki Minagawa
Takashi Shimizu
Tetsuo Kasukawa
Makoto Yano

Mikio loka

Teruhiko Masuda

Satoshi Terashita
Toshinon Kato* Makoto Miki* Akira Takeuchi* sa0 twano
Managing Director Managing Director Managing Director Masaharu Unno

Yoshthiro Nenogaki
Masami Koshimura
Ryop Okamoto
Isaku Kesen
Kyosuke Shiba
Kazurnasa Hon
Yasuhiko Noguchi
Enchi Naito

Keisuke Yamanobe* Toshimichi Fujn™ Yukio Okamoto**
Managing Director Managing Director Director

* Representative Director

** External
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Eleven-Year Summary

Mitsubish) Matenals Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31

FOR THE YEAR: 2010 | 2009 2008 2007
Net sales ¥1,119,448 ¥1,424.114 ¥1,659,286 ¥1,452,108
Cost of sales 982,082 1,251,102 1,425,526 1,246,261
Operating profit 12,680 35,134 100,146 78,758
Net income {loss) (66,555) 6,106 74,268 71,382
Capital expenditures | 66,679 | 74,252 75,646 66,484
Depreciation and amortization | 69,840 | 71,973 57.722 50135
R&D expenses 10,897 11,852 11,676 11,112

AT YEAR-END-*

Tota! assets I 1,826,420 1,732,003 1,856,276 1,773,899
Total long-term liabilities l 662,430 574,518 485,718 475,393
Total net assets | 399005 | 421,934 520,289 481,970
Number of shares of common stock (thousands) 1,314,895 1,278,955 1,278,955 1,252,092
Number of employees I 21,641 | 21,224 19,467 19,631

PER SHARE AMOUNTS:

Basic net income (loss} ¥(52 3) ¥48 ¥59 1 ¥60 3
Diluted net income | —_ — — 571
Cash dvidends apphcable to the year — 40 80 60
FINANCIAL RATIOS (%)
Operating margin 11% 25% 60% 5 4%
Return on assets (ROA)} (3 6) 04 40 40
Return on equity (ROE} ' (16 7) 14 143 14 8
Equity ratio | 187 | 210 250 232
Notes

1 Japanese yen amounts have been translated into U S dollars solely for the convenience of the reader at the rate of ¥93 04 to US %1 the prevailing exchange rate at March 31, 2040
2 Effective from the year ended March 31 2007 the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries adopted " Accounting Standard for Presentation of Met Assets in the Balance Sheet ~
3 Except for 2010 2009 2008 and 2007, *Total net assets” means *Total shareholders' equity” which s pursuant to the previous presentation sules
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| Thousands of
Millions of yen U S dollars (Note 1)
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 I 2010
¥1,143,700 ¥984,777 ¥948,238 ¥964,726  ¥1,046,807  ¥1,144,068 ¥986,884 | $12,031,907
953,084 812,544 783,971 807,308 899,220 936,563 825007 | 10,555,481
68,982 54,085 43,422 34,429 10,872 65,827 27.229 | 136,287
58,803 16,374 (5,324) (26,854) (61,316) 7,149 (12,075} (715,340)
52,559 49,507 38,942 42,228 66,208 83,762 53,984 716,676
47,454 48,085 49,401 54,457 78,436 79,557 74,592 750,651
10,859 10,449 11,232 11,608 15,404 15,437 14,762 117,127
1,609,446 1,420,825 1,435,115 1,439,985 1,575,739 1,615,844 1,671,000 19,630,482
474,664 466,771 519,594 555,467 572,071 509,187 603,096 7,119,842
303,560 196,902 183,886 174,381 206,413 239,190 231559 | 4,289499
1,147,918 1,134,054 1,134,054 1,134,054 1,117,314 1,117,314 1,117,314
19,020 19,638 20,930 21,745 22,381 24,876 24,682
Us dollars
Yen (Note 1)
¥517 ¥14 4 ¥(4 8) ¥(23 9) ¥(54 9) ¥6 4 ¥(10 8) $(0 56)
454 129 - — — 61 — —
40 30 20 — — 30 15 —_
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Overview

In the first half of the fiscal year under review, the world econo-
my trended towards recovery, benefiting partly from economic
stimulus measures adopted by the Chinese government In the
United States, however, the economy remained in recession
amid weakness in such areas as corporate capital spending and
housing starts In the second half of the year, consumption
turned around and economic recovery became clear, thanks to
economic stimulus measures taken by vanous national govern-
ments aimed at addressing global recession, as well as the
impetus provided by new emerging markets

Affected by the aforementioned factors, the Japanese econo-
my in the first half showed signs of a turnaround owing to the
completion of inventory adjustments and government econom-
ic shmulus measures This occurred despite various challenges,
including an unemployment rate at histoncally high levels In
the second half, the domestic economy remained on a recovery
trend amid ongoing tmprovements in corporate earnings driven
by exports However, the pace of recovery was slow due to lag-
ging recovery in capital spending and personal consumption

In the first half of the penod, the business environment sur
rounding the Mitsubishi Matenals Group (the "Group”) was
extremely sernious due to various factors, such as declining
demand for cement and other products against the backdrop of
a sluggish economy both 1n Japan and overseas and the apprea-
ation of the yen However, the second half of the year saw an
improved situation, thanks to a recovery in orders, especially from
the automobile and semiconductor-related sectors, as well as
increase n copper prices beyond our initial assumptions

Back in December 2008, the Group formulated our
"Comprehensive Management Measures,” the am of which s
to swiftly transform the Group into an organization capable of
generating stable earnings even dunng periods of severely
depressed demand, like the current worldwide recession
Another objective Is to build a business structure that will per-
mit substantial progress when the econamy recovers in the
future Since drafting the Comprehensive Management
Measures, the Group has worked relentlessly to restrain capital
spending, introduce an on-demand production system, reassign
persannel, and cut costs across the board, while stepping up
concentration of managenal resources

In August 2009, the Group devised additional measures that
more deeply entrench the Comprehensive Management
Measures Under the new measures, the Group renewed our
emphasis on implementing a low-cost structure by reducing
labor costs and centralizing our purchasing processes

However, the Group were unable to overcome the impact of
external factors, which worsened beyond our expectations For
the year, consolidated net sales amounted to ¥1,119,448 mil-
hion, down 21 4% from the previous year, and operating profit
totaled ¥12,680 million, down 63 9% The Group also under-
took a serious assessment of the recoverability of deferred
income taxes in hght of the current uncertain business chmate,
and subsequently reversed ¥26 5 billion of deferred incorne
taxes held by the parent company Accordingly, the Group post-
ed a net loss of ¥66,555 milhion (net income of ¥6,106 milhon
tn the previous fiscal year)

| y | Thousands of I Percentage
llions of yen US dollars change
Far the years ended March 31 I 2010 2009 I 2010 I (201072009}
Net sales l ¥1,119,448 ¥1,424,114 | $12,031,907 I (21 4)%
Operating profit | 12,680 35,134 | 136,287 | {63 9)%
Net income | (66,555) 6,106 | (715,340) | —
I y | | Percentage
en U5 dollars change
For the years ended March 31 | 2010 2009 | 2010 | (2010/2009)
Basic net income per share } ¥(52 3) vag | $(0 56) | —

Sales and Operating Income by Business Segment

Cement

Despite the benefits of cost-cutting measures, the Cement busi-
ness posted year-on-year declines in both sales and operating
income This was due to a fall in sales Dunng the year, domestic
demand continued spiraling downward due to weakness in resi-
dential construction spending and private-sector capital spend-
ing, as well as a government policy of planned restraint in public
sector spending over the medium term Overseas, the Group
enjoyed healthy demand in China thanks to economic stimulus
measures adopted by the Chinese government In the United
States, however, demand fell significantly, especially in the hous-
ing sector, due to a deepening economic recession sparked by
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the wicious cycle of the financial cnsis and detenoration of the
real economy Total cement production for the year was 11 5 mil-
hion tans (down 1 5 million tons from the previous year)

As a result, segment sales decreased 17 9%, or ¥35 6 billion,
year on year to ¥163 0 bidhion, while operating profit fell
22 7%, or ¥2 6 billion, to ¥8 9 billion

Metals

Despite increased production at PT Smelting in Indonesia and
the benefits of cost-cutting efforts, the copper business report-
ed year-on-year dechines in revenue and earnings for several
reasons These included falling earnings from copper byprod-



ucts and the appreciation of the yen Total production of elec-
trolytic copper for the penod was 596 thousand tons {up 39
thousand tons from the previous year)

In gold, revenue and earnings increased, buoyed by a rise in
gold content in copper concentrate

Despite moderate recovery in demand, sales and earnings from
processed copper products declined due to a major drop in sales to
the automohile and electronic matenals and components markets

As a result, segment sales declined 20 5%, or ¥108 4 billion,
year on year to ¥421 9 billion, while operating profit dropped
41 5%, or ¥4 1 billion, to ¥5 8 hillion

Advanced Materials & Tools
Despite the benefits of cost-cutting measures, as well as a
recovery in orders in the second half of the year owing to
healthy demand from emerging markets, especially China, the
cemented carbide products business posted declines in revenue
and earrings This was due to a substantial drop in sales in the
first half amid production and inventory adjustments in the
automobile and other markets

In high-performance alloy products, revenue declined due to
a fall in sales in the wake of inventory adjustments in the gas
turbine market However, earmings increased thanks to a recov-
ery in demand in automobile-related markets, as well as the
absence of a large-scale inventory devaluation loss reported 1n

the previous year and the benefits of cost-cutting measures

As a result, segment sales fell 34 2%, or ¥43 8 hillion, year
on year to ¥84 3 hillion, and operating loss of ¥5 2 billion was
recorded, with a ¥9 4 billion drop in operating profit from the
previous fiscal year

Electronic Maternials & Components
In advanced matenals, the Group recorded increases in revenue and
earnings owing to recovery in sermconductor-related markets in
Tarwan, as well as favorable sales of precision mounting matenals

In electronic devices, the Group posted a decline in revenue
due to weak sales of products for use in mobile phones
However, earnings increased thanks to a recovery in sales for
home apphances and automobile-related products, as well as
the benefits of cost-cutting measures

in polycrystaline siicon and related products, revenue and
earntngs decreased due to falling sales as companies in the
semiconductor market undertook inventory adjustments in the
first half of the year, while sales of products for solar cells also
declined in the second half of the year This was despite a
recovery trend n sales of products for semiconductor devices,
centerning on 300mm silicon wafers

As a result, segment sales decreased 12 3%, or ¥8 1 billion,
to ¥57 8 billion, while operating profit fell 69 4%, or ¥5 9 bil-
lion, to ¥2 6 billion

I I Thousands of
Millions of yen s dollars

For the years ended March 31 | 010 | 2009 | 2010

Cement I |
Sales | ¥163,084 | ¥198,701 $1,752,838
Operating profit I 8,928 ] 11,543 95,963
Operating margin | 55% \ 5 8%

Metals I
Sales | 421,938 530,420 4,535,021
Operating profit 5,860 10,023 i 62,993
QOperating margin 14% 1 9%

Advanced Matenals & Tools
Sales 84,351 128,153 906,619
Operating profit 5211 | 4246 (56,010)
Operating margin — I 33%

Electronic Matenals & Components I
Sales 57,826 | 65,968 621,526
Operating profit 2,608 | 8,525 28,039
QOperating margin 45% I 12 9%

Aluminum |
Sales 127,037_| 151,742 1,365,411
Operating profit 3,048 | (3,253) 32,762
Operating margin 2 4% I —

Others I
Sales 265,209 I 349,127 2,850,489
Operating profit 4,859 l 10,205 52,225
Operating margin 18% ' 29%
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Aluminum
In aluminum cans, the Group posted a dechine i revenue but
an increase i earnings This was attributable to cost-cutting
benefits, which helped compensate for a decline in sales stem-
ming from unstable weather conditions in the summer

In rolled aluminum and processed aluminum products, reve-
nue was down due to a significant decline in first half sales,
especially for products used in automobiles However, earnings
increased thanks to signs of recovery in the second half, togeth-
er with the benefits of cost-cutting measures

As a result, segment sales declined 16 3%, or ¥24 7 billion,
from the previous fiscal year to ¥127 0 billhon, while operating
profit grew ¥6 3 bilhon to ¥3 0 bilkon

Others
In energy-related products, consohidated subsidiary Matenials
Energy Corp sold off its orf and gas sales business and consoli-

Comparate Governanre ISR Promation Structure  Managernent Financal Section

dated subsidiary Mitsubishi Nuclear Fuel Co, Ltd became an
affiliate accounted for by the equity method tn connection with
its exclusion from the Group's scope of consoldation These
factors, together with falling prices and sales of coal, caused
year-on-year revenue and earnings to decline

In prectous metals, the Group reported a dechne n revenue
due to falling sales of ingots and jewelry However, thanks to
cost-cutting measures, earnings in this category increased

Combined orders for nuclear energy and engineering servic-
es, together with environment- and recycling-related services,
amounted to ¥47 8 billion over the pencd, down ¥28 1 billion
from the previous year The order backlog at the end of the
penod was ¥15 6 billon, down ¥17 8 billion

As a result, segment sales fell 24 0%, or ¥83 9 billion, to
¥265 2 billon, and operating profit dropped 52 4%, or ¥53
bilhan, to ¥4 8 hillion

Sales and Operating Income by Geographic Segment

Japan

Domestic sales declined for cement, processed copper products,
cemented carbide products and rolled and processed aluminum
products Given these results, sales from operations in Japan
dropped ¥198 1 billion year on year to ¥969 8 billion, while
operating profit decreased ¥8 9 billion to ¥7 2 billion

United States
Demand for cement-related products weakened and sales of
cemented carbide products for automotive apphications declined

In the end, sales from U S operations fell ¥27 9 bilion to ¥69 4
bilion, while operating profit dropped ¥7 4 billion to ¥4 8 billion

Europe
In Europe, sales of cemented carbide products for automotive
applications decreased

As a result, sales from operation in Europe totaled ¥11 6 bil-
hon, down ¥10 5 billion, and operating profit was ¥0 billion,
down ¥2 2 billion year on year

l Thousands of
Millions of yen U S dollars

For the years ended March 31 | 2010 | 2009 2010

Japan I | l
Sales | ¥969,830 ¥1,167,986 $10,423,802
Operating profit 7,256 16,188 77,994
Operating margin 0 7% 14%

USA
Sales 69,464 97,369 764,614
Operating profit 4,895 12,355 52,613
Operating margin 7 0% 12 7%

Europe
Sales 11,638 22,234 125,089
Operating profit 61 | 2,272 665
Operating margin 05% | 10 2%

Asia, excluding Japan
Sales 65,888 132,507 708,175
Operating profit 6,226 8,661 66,624
Qperating margm 94% 6 5%

Others | l
Sales | 2,626 4,015 28,224
Operating profit | 683 1,714 7,351
Operating margin | 26 0% l 42 7%

26 MITSUBISHI MATERIALS CORPORATION ANKUAL REPORT 2010




Asia, excluding Japan
Although the operation of PT Smelting i Indonesia kept well,
the price of copper and copper byproducts decreased

Financial Position and Liquidity

As a result, sales from operations in Asia, excluding Japan,
fell ¥66 6 billon from the previous fiscal year to ¥65 8 billion,
and operating profit fell ¥2 4 bilhon to ¥6 2 billion

As of March 31, 2010, total assets amounted to ¥1,826 4 bil-
lhon, up 5 5%, or ¥94 4 hilhgn, from a year earlier Total current
assets rose ¥57 6 billion, or 8 8%, 1o ¥709 5 billion, reflecting
the tncrease in notes and accounts recewvable-trade and inven-
tones due to the price htke of key materals such as copper
Total long-term assets, which consist of property, plant and
equipment, mvestments and long-term receivables and other
assets, climbed ¥36 8 billion, or 3 4%, to ¥1,116 8 hillion,
owing to the inclusion of Mitsubishi Cable Industries, Ltd into
the scope of consohdation from the fiscal year

Total habilties grew ¥117 2 billion, or 9 0%, year on year to
¥1,427 3 bilion Total current habilities rose ¥29 3 billion, or
4 0%, to ¥764 8 billion due to the increase in notes and

accounts payable-trade Total long-term liabilities increased
¥87 9 billon, or 15 3%, to ¥662 4 bilhon, reflecting the
increase in long-term loans payable The balance of interest-
bearing debts, which adds bonds and commeraial paper to out-
standing loans, came to ¥796 0 bilion, up ¥90 0 billion, or
12 8%, from the previous fiscal year

Total net assets amounted to ¥399 0 billion, down ¥22 8 bil-
lion, or 5 4%, due to the decrease in retained earmngs caused
by net loss As a result, the consolidated equity ratio deteriorat-
ed from 21 0% at the previous fiscal year-end to 18 7%, and
net assets per share, based on the total number of shares out-
standing as of March 31, 2010 fell to ¥259 93, compared with
¥287 44 a year earher

! 2010 | 2009 |

At March 31 2008
Equity ratio i 18 7% | 210% | 25 0%
Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥45 4
bilion, down ¥69 8 hillion from the previous fiscal year Main
factors included an increase i inventories and an Increase In
notes and accounts receivable

Net cash used In investing activities totaled ¥88 3 billion, down
¥22 0 billion from ¥110 4 bilhion of the previous fiscal year This
was due mainly to outlays related to capital investments

Together, operating activities and investing activities pro-
duced a net outflow of ¥42 9 billion, which was mainly

Capital Expenditures

financed through bank borrowings and the issuance of bonds
Accordingly, net cash prowided by financing actvities was ¥25 0
billion, compared wath ¥7 1 billion in net cash used in financing
actmties in the previous fiscal year

As a result of the above, as well as exchange rate changes
and other factors, the balance of cash and cash equivalents as
of March 31, 2010 stood at ¥76 3 bilion, down ¥21 4 billion
from March 31, 2009

Caprtal expenditures are tempered by efforts to reduce interest-
bearing debt, and the content of spending plans will therefore
be determined through careful selection of projects in business
areas which present high profit and growth potential

in fiscal 2010, capital expenditures amounted to ¥66 6 bil-
lton, reflecting maintenance and repairs at existing facibties m
each business segment, as well as expansion, rationalization
and renovation at certain production facihties

Fiscal 2010 capital expenditures by business segment were as
follows

Cement

The Company allacated funds to imestone mine development-
related works in Japan as well as maintenance and repar of
existing faciities mainty in Japan and the United States Capital
expenditures in this segment reached ¥9 0 billion

Metals
The Company allocated funds to the expansion of domestic copper-

processing facilities as well as mantenance and reparr of existing
facities Capital expenditures in this segment reached ¥15 7 bilion

Advanced Matenals & Tools

Funds were mainly allocated the rationalization of automobile-
related facilitres as well as the maintenance and repair of existing
faciies Caprtal expenditures in this segment reached ¥4 3 billion

Electronic Matenals & Components

The Company directed funds into the expansion of polycrystal-
hine silicon production facuities in Japan, as well as maintenance
and reparr of existing facihties Capital expendrtures in this seg-
ment amounted to ¥22 6 billion

Aluminum

Funds were mainly allocated to the expansion of faciities for
rolled alurminum products, as well as maintenance and reparr of
existing faciliies Capital expenditures in this segment amount-
ed to ¥7 3 billton
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The Company allocated funds to the maintenance and reparr of
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existing faciliies Capital expenditures in this segment reached
¥7 5 bilion

Outlook for the Next Fiscal Year, Ending March 31, 2011

Looking ahead, the world economy faces a number of chal-
lenges, such as the waning impact of economic stimulus mea-
sures taken by vanous national governments, as well as
concerns of an economic downturn in Europe due to financial
and fiscal instability Nevertheless, the Group expect recovery In
the world economy to take further hold, driven by growing
internat demand in emerging nations, such as Chma and India
In Japan, as well, there are several factors that could cause an
economic downturn, such as a worsening employment situa-
tion, depressed demand due to a stronger deflationary grip,
and trends in foreign exchange markets As corporate earmngs
continue to improve, there are signs of a turnaround 1n personal
consumption Accordingly, the Group believe that concerns
about a "double-dip recession” will dissipate and the economy

Business Risks

will show moderate recovery

With respect to future conditions surrounding the Group,
there are feelings of uncertainty about factors that could impact
earnings, such as changes in the pnces of nonferrous metals,
rising prices of fuel and other raw matenals, and prolonged
appreciation of yen Nevertheless, demand in the automobile
and semiconductor-related markets 15 In a recovery mode, and
the Group anticipate expansion in demand from emerging
nations enjoying continued growth

Accordingly, our consolidated performance forecasts for the
year ending March 31, 2011 are as follows net sales of
¥1,280 0 hillion, operating profit of ¥33 0 bilhon and net
tncome of ¥5 0 billion

The companies under the Group umbrella are involved in a
wider range of businesses Consequently, vanious external infly-
ences—including domestic and overseas political and economic
developments, weather conditions, markets, currency trends,
and laws and ordinances—could influence the Group’s fiscal
performance and financial position The following nisks carry
the potential for a particularly significant impact on operations
Forward-looking statements 1n this section are based on informa-
tion available to management as of June 29, 2010, on which the
Company released the business report, Yukashoken Hokokusho, as
required of all comparies hsted on the stock market in Japan

1 Business Restructuring

Management subscribes to the selection-and-concentration
approach for bustness expansion, whereby management
resources are actively invested in operations wath high profit-
ability Management also considers allances with other compa-
nies, If such allances will facilitate the ngorous review,
restructuring and liquidation of operations to reinforce the bot-
tom line This emphasis could affect the Group's fiscal perfor-
mance and financal position

2 Market and Customer Trends

The Group provides products and services to various industries
Worldwide economic developments as well as customer-driven
developments—such as sudden changes in markets and market
shares, new business strategies and product development initia-
tives—may Influence sales of the Group's products The automotve
and IT sectors are subject to particularly severe price wars and tech-
nological competition The Group strives to cut overall costs and
engineer new products and technologies However, if ris efforts do
not accurately match industry and customer market changes, the
Group's fiscal performance and finanaa! position could be eroded
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3 Fluctuations in Nonferrous Metal and Currency Markets
In the copper business, the Group’s key revenue sources are
smelting and other operations for which payment 1s in foreign
currencies Consequently, these operations are susceptible to
fluctuations in the nonferrous metal and currency markets and
the effects of custom ore purchasing conditions The cost of
raw matenals acquired for mventory carnes the nsk of fluctuat-
ing nonferrous metal prices and exchange rates over the period,
starting with the purchase of the copper concentrates and end-
ing with the production and sales of copper cathodes

In addition, nonferrous metal matenals—used predominantly
by the Aluminum and Advanced Matenals & Tools segments—
as well as matenals (particularly coal) used by the Cement seg-
ment, are internaticnal commodities The procurement prices of
these raw materials, as well as fuels, are linked to changes in
the nonferrous metal and coal markets, currency markets and
also mantime freight rates

4 Trends in the Semiconductor Market

Certain members of the Group supply the semiconductor indus-
try with such products as electronic matenals and components
and polycrystalline siicon, while SUMCO CORPORATION—an
equity-method affilate—makes silicon wafers used in semicon-
ductor fabrication Trends in the semiconductor market could
influence the operations of these companies and thus the fiscal
results and financial position of the Group

5 Interest-Bearing Debt

As of March 31, 2010, the interest-hearing debt carried by the
Group stood at ¥796 0 billon—compnsing short-term loans,
bonds due within one year, commercal paper, bonds and long-
term loans—and represented 43 6% of consohidated total
assets Management seeks to improve the balance sheet of the
Group by restricting inventories and divesting assets However,




unfavorable trends i interest rates could hurt the fiscal results
and financial position of the Group

6 Important Matters Concerning Fund Procurement

The Group has borrowings, such as syndicated loans, in which
it has promised the lenders to uphold arrangements such as the
maintenance of shareholders’ equity at a certain level or higher
tn accordance with such loan agreements If the finanaal status
of the Company or the Group were to deteriorate and thereby
preclude the observance of such arrangements, the Group
might be under an obligation to repay the extended loans
before the matunty date This situation could adversely impact
the Group's ability to procure funds depending on how the
Group manages this situation in the future

7 Debt Guarantees

In fiscal 2010, Mitsubishi Matenals extended debt guarantees
totahng ¥18 7 bilion, mainly for the monetary habilities of
unconsolidated affiliates If conditions warrant the futfillment of
debt guarantees, the srtuation could affect the fiscal results and
financial position of the Group

8 Fluctuations in the Market Value of Assets

Fluctuations in the market value of secunties, land and other
assets held by members of the Group could have a detnmental
impact on the fiscal results and financial position of the Group

9, Pension Benefit Expenses and Obligations

The costs and obligations of the Group’s pension plans for
employees are based on actuarial assumptions These assump-
tions take into account the average number of years of service
remaining, long-term yields on Japanese government bonds,
stock contributed to trust accounts and other factors in pension
plan management However, losses stemming from lower dis-
count rates and pension plan management could influence
future Group costs and the calculation of obligations

10 Environmental Regulations

All Group locations in Japan and overseas strive to prevent poliu-
tion, especially ar, wastewater, soll and groundwater pollution, in
accordance with local environmental legislation Effarts are also
made to prevent pollution from inactive mines in Japan, n accor-
dance with the Mine Safety Law This focuses on neutralizing the
water that seeps into excavation pits from tunnels and the safe
maintenance of tailing piles Furthermore, the Group set goal for
the reduction of its greenhouse gas emissions However, in the
event of the amendment of related laws and regulations as well as
the ntroduction of new regulations to cap total greenhouse gas
emissions and establish environment taxes, such changes could
lead to new mantenance and treatment costs for the Group

11 Overseas Activities

The Group maintains production and sales bases in 25 countries
and regions Overseas operations account for 35 2% of consoli-
dated net sales In addition to varying political and economic

crcumstances and currency rates, unforeseen changes in laws
and regulations—or their interpretations related to trade rules
and restnctions, rmining sector polictes, environmental regula-
tions and tax systems in these countries—could affect the
Group’s fiscal performance and finanoal position

12 Intellectual Property

Management recognizes the importance of intellectual property,
and steps are taken throughout the Group to safeguard such
assets However, the fiscal performance and financal position of
the Group could be hurt by inadequate protection and legal
infningements of proprietary intellectual assets From the opposite
perspective, the Group duly respects the intellectual property of
other companies However, in the unlikely event that a member of
the Group s found to have nfringed upon the nghts of another
company, the subsequent compensation for damages could nega-
tively impact the fiscal results and financial position of the Group

13 Product Quality

The Group strives to provide high-quality products and makes
every effort to control quality In addition, the Group carrnes insur-
ance as a precaution in the unlkely event that & senous product
defect leads to hability ssues However, a large-scale product recall
promoted by unforeseen circumstances, for example, could mar
the fiscal perforrance and financial position of the Group

14 Plant Incaidents

The Group has numerous production plants and other faclities
and strives from both an operational/maintenance perspective
and a workers' safety perspective to ensure thorough measures
to prevent industrial accidents, mnjuries and incidents at these
plants and facliies However, if a senous plant accident or an
industrial accident or injury were to occur at a production plant
or some other type of faclity, the situation could adversely
impact the business results and financial position of the Group

15 Information Management

The Group endeavors to properly control its information, includ-
ing personal data However, in the unlikely event that the unau-
thonzed disclosure of information were to occur, such a situation
could damage the Group’s socal standing, which could negative-
ly impact the Group’s resutts and financial posttion

16 Litigation

The Group 1s or could become involved In decisions, settlements
or legal judgments stemming fram litigation, disputes and other
legal proceedings related to present or past operations in Japan
or overseas, which could adversely affect the Group’s results
and financial position

17 Other risks

Other nisks that may affect the Group's results and financial
position include changes in business practices, events such as
terrorism, war, epidemucs, earthquakes and other natural disas-
ters, and other unforeseen developments
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Thousands of
Millions of yen U'S dollars {Note 1)
ASSETS 2010 2009 2010
Current Assets
Cash and time deposits (Notes 5 and 17) ¥ 76,989 | ¥ 98,497 $ 827,490
Notes and accounts receivable (Notes 5 and 9)
Trade 197,930 159,060 2,127,366
Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affihiates 25,414 15,152 273,152
Other 12,007 | 19,843 | 129,062
Inventories (Notes 3 and 5) 239,054 202,533 2,569,375
Deferred income taxes {Note 8) 10,995 19,046 118,183
Other current assets {Note 14) 150,477 140,801 1,617,343
Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,.313) 2.978) | (35,613)
Total current assets 709,556 651,956 7,626,361
Property, Plant and Equipment {Notes 4 and 5) |
Land (Note 16) 291,278 278,656 3,130,677
Buildings and structures 434,436 421,136 4,669,348
Machinery and equipment 1,074,667 1,035,262 11,550,594
Construction in progress 53,382 37,773 573,762
Less accumulated depreciation (1,127.449) {1,062,770) {12,117,895)
Net property, plant and equipment 726,315 710,058 7,806,487
Investments and Long-Term Recewables
Investments n secunties (Notes 5 and 12) 145,635 110,626 1,565,299
Unconsolidated subsidiaries and affihates (Note 5) 149,057 149,409 1,602,084
Long-term recervables 470 1,041 5,061
Other 24,038 24,057 258,362
Allowance for doubtful accounts (6,092) | (8,910) ' {65,481)
Valuation allowance for investments in unconsolidated
subsidiaries and affiliates {2,820} (640) {30,316)
Total investments and long-term recevables 310,289 275,583 3,335,010
Other Assets
Deferred income taxes (Note 8) 17,277 | 33671 | 185,701
Goodwill {Note 2) 52,749 | 48,495 566,956
Other (Notes 5 and 14) 10,231 | 11,238 109,964
Total other assets 80,258 | 94,405 862,622
Total Assets ¥1,826,420 | ¥1,732,003 $19,630,482

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Thousands of

Millions of yen U'S dollars (Note 1)
LIABILITIES 2010 2009 2010
Current Liabilities
Short-term bank loans (Note 5) l ¥247,641 ¥ 219,234 | $2,661,669
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 67,225 64,697 722,538
Commercial paper {Note 5) 9,000 26,000 96,732
Nates and accounts payable
Trade 118,543 97,133 1,274,114
Unconsolidated subsidianes and affihates 9,087 6,320 97,672
Other 23,532 27,180 252,930
Income taxes payable 4,188 4,708 45,018
Deferred income taxes {Note 8) | 18 24 195
Accrued expenses 63,526 70,755 682,788
Reserve for loss on disposal of inventornes 2,084 826 22,408
Other current hiabilities (Note 14) 220,046 218,668 2,365,070
Total current habilities 764,894 735,549 8,221,139
Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term debt {Note 5) 472,183 396,080 5,075,060
Employees’ severance and pension benefits {(Note 6) 61,455 50,376 660,527
Accrual for officers” lump-sum severance benefits 1,402 1,558 15,077
Reserve for loss on unconsolidated subsidianies and affiliates | 2,652 2,372 28,513
Reserve for environmental measures | 8,170 12,564 87,817
Peferred income taxes (Note 8) | 36,336 11,361 390,541
Deferred income taxes on revaluation reserve for land
{Notes 8 and 16) 39,839 40,373 428,199
Other (Note 14) 40,389 59,829 434,104
Total long-term labilities 662,430 574,518 7,119,842
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Notes 9 and 10)
Net Assets (Note 7)
Shareholders’ equrty
Common stock |
Authorized 3,400,000,000 shares
Issued 1,314,895,351 shares 119,457 119,457 1,283,941
Capital surplus 113,408 108,287 1,218,917
Retained earnings 92,802 158,542 I 997,442
Treasury stock, at cost (1,384) (5,371) {14,878)
Total shareholders’ equity 324,283 380,915 3,485,422
Valuation and Translation Adjustments
Net unrealized holding gains on secunities 23,313 2,120 | 250,573
Unrealzed gans {losses) on hedging denvatives,
net of taxes (Note 14) 339 (9,256) 3,650
Revaluation reserve for land (Note 16) 31,433 30,459 337,845
Foreign currency translation adjustments (38,301) (39,660} (411,670}
Total valuation and translation adjustments 16,784 (16,337) 180,398
Minority [nterests 58,027 57,356 623,678
Total net assets 399,095 421,934 4,289,499
Total Liabilities and Net assets ¥1,826,420 ¥1,732,003 $19,630,482
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
Mitsubishi Matenials Corparation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Thousands of
Millions of yen US dollars (Note 1)
2010 2009 2008 2010
Net Sales {Note 15) ¥1,119,448 ¥1,424114 ¥1,659,286 $12,031,907
Cost of Sales 982,082 1,251,102 1,425,526 10,555,481
Gross profit 137,366 173,011 233,759 1,476,425
Selling, General and Admirustrative Expenses
{Note 11) 124,686 137,876 133,612 1,340,137
Operating profit 12,680 35,134 100,146 136,287
Other Income (Expenses) l
Interest and dividend income I 23079 | 29,900 13,226 248,058
Interest expense (Note 5) {(13.312) (17.058) {14,757) {143,084)
Income from leased property 5,529 5,591 5,564 59,429
Expense for leased property (4,194) (4,226) {4,060) {45,078)
Write-down of investments in securities (403) (11,707} (2,779) (4,332)
Gain on sales of tnvestments 1n secunties 457 | 487 1,464 4,918
Gain on 1ssuances of stock by subsidiaries and
affiliates 2,459 1,290 29 26,435
Prowision for bad debt and write-off
of long-term recewables —_ (241) (521} —
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment 1,612 1,915 806 17,331
Loss on disposal and sales of property, plant and
equipment {2,955) (3,797) {5.273) {31,768)
Loss on impairment of fixed assets {Note 20) {6,600) {2,054) (2,462) {70,943)
Provision for valuation allowance for investment
in unconsoldated subsidianes and affiliates (525) — (247) {5,644)
Provision for environmental measures (654) (6) (4,785) | {7,029)
Foreign exchange gains (losses), net 1,070 | (2,851) (538) | 11,505
Equity In {losses) earnings of affiliates (28,472) (2,730) 43,179 {306,019)
Provision for loss on unconsolidated subsidianes
and affiliates - — (2,430) —
Loss on liquidation of business (7,097) — —_ (76,281)
Head office transfer cost | (2,610} — — (28,061}
COther, net I (4,369) {1,499) {3,100} (46,960}
(36,985) {6,988) 23,313 (397,525)
{Loss) Income before income taxes and
munonty interests (24,305) 28,146 123,460 (261,237}
Income Taxes (Note 8) 36,446 14,033 39,825 391,727
{Loss) income before minority interests | (60,751) 14,112 83,634 {652,965)
tinority interests in income of consohdated
subsidiartes {5,803) (8,006} (9,366) (62,375)
Net (loss) Income | ¥(66,555) | ¥ 6106 v 74268 |  $(715,340)
Yen U S dollars (Note1)
2010 | 2009 2008 2010
Per Share Amounts {(Note 18) |
Basic net (loss) iIncome ¥(52 3) | ¥48 ¥591 $(0 56)
Cash dividends applicable to the year — | 40 80 —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (Note 21)

Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Thousands of
Milbions of yen U S dollars {(Note 1)
2010 2009 2008 2010
Common Stock
Balance at the end of previous penod ¥119,457 ¥119,457 ¥119,457 $1,283,941
Balance at the end of current penod 119,457 119,457 119,457 1,283,941
Capttal surplus
Balance at the end of previous peniod 108,287 108,334 88,580 1,163,881
Issuance of new stocks (share exchange) 7,489 _ 18,766 80,501
Sales of treasury stock (2,369) (46} 987 (25,465}
Balance at the end of current period 113,408 108,287 108,334 1,218,917
Retained Earmings
Balance at the end of previous peniod 158,542 173,669 108,259 1,704,022
Cash dividends paid — (10,186) (9,997} —
Net (lass) income for the year (66,555) 6,106 74,268 (715,340)
{Decrease) increase due to reversal of revaluation reserve for land
{Note 16) (973) (153) 295 {10,462)
Decrease due 10 apphcation of PITF No 18 (Note 2 (s)) — | {16,264) — —
Increase resulting from increase in the number of consolidated
subsidianes — — 177 —
Increase resulting from increase in the equity method affibate 1,594 4,999 — 12,141
Increase due to mergers of unconsolidated subsidary 280 332 — 3,018
Increase due to excusion of consolidated subsidhary of equity
method affihate — 113 — —
Decrease due to application of FITF No 18 by equity method affiliate — {74) — —_
Decrease resulting from decrease in the number of conselidated
subsidianes 87) — — (936}
Gain on change in equity recorded by an affiliate — | — 683 —
Adjustment of pension obligation at overseas subsidiaries — — (18) —_
Balance at the end of current period 92,802 158,542 173,669 997,442
Treasury Stock
Balance at the end of previous period (5,371) (309) (1,036) (57,737)
Issuance of new stocks (share exchange} (3) — (5} (40)
Acquisition of treasury stock (51) {5.177) (460) {551)
Sales of treasury stock 4,042 115 1,192 43,449
Increase resulting from changes of equity shares in affiliates — — {0} —
Balance at the end of current period (1,384) {5,371) {309) (14,878)
Total Shareholders’ Equity
Balance at the end of previous period 380,915 401,152 315,264 4,094,107
Issuance of new stacks (share exchange) 7,486 — 18,761 80,461
Cash dividends pard — {10,186) (9,997) —
Net (loss) income for the year {66,555) 6,106 74,268 (715,340)
{Decrease) Increase due to reversal of revaluation reserve for land (973) {153) 295 {10,462)
Decrease due to application of PITF No 18 (Note 2 (s)} - (16,264) — —
Increase resulting from increase in the equity method affiliate 1,594 4,999 — 17,141
Increase resulting from increase in the number of consolidated
subsidianes e — 177 —
Increase due to mergers of unconsolidated subsidiary 280 332 — 3,018
Increase due to excusion of consolidated subsidiary of equity
method affihate_ — 113 — —
Decrease due to application of PITF No 18 by equity method affiliate — (74} — —
Acquisition of treasury stock (51) {(5,177) {460) {551}
Sales of treasury stock 1,673 68 2,179 17,983
Increase resulting from changes of equity shares in affiliates — — {0) —
-_lzsgselglsaer:':ssultmg from decrease n the number of consolidated 87 _ _ (936)
Gain on change in equity recorded by an affilate — — 683 —
Adjustment of pension cbligation at overseas subsidianes — | — {18) —
Balance at the end of current penod ¥324,283 | ¥380,915 ¥401,152 $3,485422
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evelopman
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets (Note 21)
Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation and Consolidated Subsidianes
Years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Thousands of
Millions of yen US dollars (Note 1)
2010 2009 2008 2010
Net unrealized holding gains {losses) on securities
Balance at the end of previous period ¥ 2,120 ¥ 29,722 ¥ 54,655 $ 22,788
Net change other than shareholders’ equity 21,193 (27,602) (24,932) 227,784
Balance at the end of current penod 23,313 2,120 29,722 250,573
Unrealized gains (losses) on hedging derivatives, net of taxes
Balance at the end of previous penod {9,256) 3,685 {452) {99,492)
Net change other than shareholders’ equity 9,596 {12,942) 4,138 103,143
Balance at the end of current peniod 339 (9,256) 3,685 3,650
Revaluation reserve for land (Note 16)
Balance at the end of previous pencd 30,459 30,312 36,805 327,383
Net change other than shareholders’ equity 973 147 (6,492) 10,462
Balance at the end of current period 31,433 30,459 30,312 337,845
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Balance at the end of previous penod (39,660) (1,617) 4,894 (426,270)
Net change other than shareholders’ equity 1,358 (38,042) {6,511) 14,600
Balance at the end of current penod (38,301} {(39,660) (1,617) {411,670)
Total valuation and translation adjustments
Balance at the end of previous penod (16,337) 62,103 95,903 {175,592}
Net change other than shareholders’ equity 33,121 (78,440) (33,799) 355,990
Balance at the end of current period 16,784 (16,337) 62,103 180,398
Minority interests
Balance at the end of previous penod 57,356 57,033 70,805 616,468
Net change other than shareholders” equity 670 322 (13,771) 7,210
Balance at the end of current period 58,027 57,356 57,033 623,678
Total net assets
Balance at the end of previous penod 421,934 520,289 481,970 4,534,983
Issuance of new stocks (share exchange) 7.486 — 18,761 80,461
Cash diidends paid — (10,186} (9,997} —
Net (loss) income for the year (66,555) 6,106 74,268 (715,340)
(Decrease) increase due to reversal of revaluation reserve for land (873) {153} 295 {10,462)
Decrease due to apphication of PITF No 18 (Note 2 (s)) — {16,264} — —
Increase resulting from increase in the equity method affiliate 1,594 4,999 — 17,14
Increase resulting from increase in the number of consclidated
subsidiaries — — 177 —
Increase due to mergers of unconsolidated subsidhary 280 332 —_ 3,018
Increase due to exclusion of consolidated subsidiary of equity
methad affihate — 113 — —
Decrease due to application of PITF No 18 by equity method affilate — (74) — —
Acquisittion of treasury stock (51) {5,177) {460} (551)
Sales of treasury stock 1,673 68 2,179 17,983
Decrease resulting from decrease in the number of consolidated
subsidiartes (87) — — (936)
Increase resulting from changes of equity shares in affiliates - — {0} —
Gain on change in equity recorded by an affiliate — — 683 —
Adjustment of pension obligation at overseas subsidianes — — (18) —
Net change other than shareholders’ equity 33,792 {78,117) 147,571) 363,200
Balance at the end of current peniod ¥399,095 ¥421,934 ¥520,289 $4,289,499

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Mitsubishi Matertals Corporation and Consolidated Subsidianes
Years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Thousands of
Millions of yen U S dollars {Note 1}
2010 2009 2008 2010
Cash Flows from Ogerating Activities
__{Loss) income before income taxes and minonity interests ¥(24,305) ¥ 28146 ¥ 123,460 $(261,237)
Adjustments to reconcile ingome before income taxes and minonty (nterests
ta net cash provided by operating actvities
Depreciation 66,795 69,261 57,999 717,930
Amortization of goodwill 3,407 3,133 204 36,628
Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts 464 1,109 299 4994
Increase {decrease) in severance and pension benefits 1,093 1,980 (938) 11,757
Increase (decrease) i valuation allowance for investments tn unconsolidated
subsichianes and affihates 259 {57} 236 2,793
increase (decrease) in reserve for loss on unconsolidated subsidiaries and
affilates 398 (16) 2,669 4,278
{Decrease) increase in reserve for environmental measures (4,394) {4,307) 2.838 {47,231)
Interest and ddend income (23,079) {29,900} {13,226) (248,058)
Interest expense 13,312 17,058 14,757 143,084
Non-recurnng deprecation of property. plant and eguipment — — 1,400 —
Gain on sales of property, plant and equipment {1,679) {1,727 {476} {18,048}
Loss on disposal of property. plant and equipment 2,825 3,599 4,907 30,369
Loss on impairment of fixed assets 6,600 2,054 2,462 70,943
Gain on sales of investments in secunties (464) {487) {1,454) (4,993}
Write-down of investments in securities 403 11,707 2,779 4332
Gain on issuances of stock by substdianes and atfiliates 2,45¢ (1,290} {29) {26,435
{Increase) decrease in notes and accounts recevable (24,047 73,184 16,732 {258,460}
{increase) decrease in inventories (31,198 48,557 {26,829) {335,331
Proceeds from sales of gold butlion depesited from customers
under consuming batlment My Gold Plan 53,956 54,991 48,267 579,926
Payment for purchases of gold bullion from market for customers
under My Gold Plan (47 ,408) {56,561} {46,913} {508 546)
—Increase (decrease) in notes and accounts payable 13,013 {75,055 1,677 139,867
___(Decrease) increase in a expen: (10,159) (2,019} 2,593 {109,192)
___Equityin los arntngs) ot affiliat 28,472 2,730 (43,179) 306,01
Other, net ,933 {13,560) (6,645) 82,001
Sub-total 38,740 132,532 143,584 416,387
Interest and dvidend recenved 44 BOS 34,956 _50.000 266,607
Interest paid {13,463) (14,609} {14,549) {144,709)
ncome taxes paid {4,681) {37,607} {30,895) (50,321)
Net Cash Provided by Opaerating Activities 45,400 115272 154,139 487,963
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
___Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment (68,645) (65,010} {74,370} (737,811)
___Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 4,529 5,292 4963 48,687
_Payments for purchases of investments 1n securitres (8,374) (1,962) {40,745) {90,009)
Proceeds from sales of investments in securities 3711 1,433 1,757 39,893
Dishursement of loan receivables (5,166) (3,390 {1,132} {55,529)
Proceeds from collection of loan recervables 5,219 2,798 2,121 56,096
nts for purchases of intanqible fixed assets (539) (1,087) (996) {5,802)
Payments for additional acqursition of subsidianes shares (1,584) (4423 (2,476) {17,032)
Payments for purchase of investments in subsidiaries resutting in change
in scope of consolidation (24,958) {43,613) — {268,259)
Proceeds from purchase of investments in subsidianes resulting in change
tn scope of consolidation 7,544 — — 81,087
Proceeds from sales of investments in subsidiaries resulting In change
mn scope of consolidation —_ - 432 —
Other_net (132) (497} (496) {1,428)
Net Cash Used in Investing Actvities {88.398) (110,461} {110,943) (950,107)
Cash Flows from Frnancing Activities
Proceeds from long-term debt 146,538 142,700 77,575 1,575,001
Repayments of long-term debt {103,530) 87,768 {69,480) £1,112,752)
Payments for redemption of bonds - {15,000} {10.000) —_
Proceeds from issuance of bonds 25,000 —_ 30,000 268,701
{Decrease) increase of commercial paper, net {17.000) (4,000 2,000 (182.117)
Payments for purchase of treasury stock 51) (5,177 (460) (551)
Decrease in short-term bank loans, net {16,063) {28,409} (20,195) (172,650)
Cash lvu.!:lld) pard _— (10,185) (9.997) ——
Cash dvidends patd to minonity sharehalders (6.736) (11,143} (3,029} (72.404)
Proceeds from stock issuance to munonty shareholders — 13,867 — —
Proceeds from sales and leaseback transaction - — 8,371 =
Other, net 5 (2,035} (1.772) (33,280)
_Net Cash Prowded by (Used in) Financing Actties 25,060 {7.153) 4.010 269,347
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on ¢ash and cash eguivalents (168) (14,231} (3,903} 1,808)
Net {Decrease} Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents {18,106) {16,573} 42,303 {194,605)
Cash and cash equivalents at beqinning of year 97,780 109,360 67,262 1,050,955
Effect of changes in consolidated subsidiaries {3,654) 4582 {205) (39,278)
tncrease in cash and cash equsvalents from mergers of unconsolidated
substdiaries 288 411 — 3,105
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 17) ¥76,309 ¥97,780 ¥109 360 $820,176

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation and Consolidated Subsidianes
March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008

Note 1 Basis of Presenting Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of
Mitsubishi Materials Corporation {the “Company”} and its con-
solidated subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with
the prowvisions set forth in the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Law and its related accounting regulations, and In
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan ("Japanese GAAP"), which are different 1n certain
respects as to application and disclosure requirements from
International Finanaial Reporting Standards

Pnior to the year ended March 31, 2009, the accounts of
consohdated overseas subsidianes are based on therr account-
ing records maintained n conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles prevaling n the respective countnes of
domicile As discussed in Note 2 (s), the accounts of consohdat-
ed overseas subsichanes for the years ended March 31, 2010
and 2009 are prepared in accordance with either International
Financial Reporting Standards or U S generally accepted
accounting pninciples, with adjustments for the speafied six
items as applicable

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have
been reformatted and translated into English from the consoli-
dated financial statements of the Company prepared in accor-

dance with lapanese GAAP and filed with the appropnate Local
Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance as required by the
Finanaal Instruments and Exchange Law Certain supplementary
information included i the statutory Japanese language con-
sohdated financial statements, but not required for fair presen-
tation, 15 not presented in the accompanying conschdated
financial statements

The translations of the Japanese yen amounts into US dol-
lars are included solely for the convenience of readers outside
Japan, using the prevailing exchange rate at March 31, 2010,
which was ¥93 04 to US $1 The converuence translation
should not be construed as representation that the Japanese
yen amounts have been, could have been, or could in the
future be, converted into U S dollars at this or any other rate of
exchange

Fractions less than one million yen (one tenth yen in respect
to per share amount) have been omitted As a result, the total
amounts n Japanese yen and translated U S dollars shown in
the consolidated financial statements and notes to the consol-
dated finanoial statements do not necessarily agree wath the
sum af the indnvidual amounts

Note 2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Consolidation
The accompanying consolhdated financial statements include
the accounts of the Company and significant companies which
the Company controls through majonty voting nght or exis-
tence of certain conditions All significant intercompany balanc-
es and transactions have been eliminated in cansolidation
Investments in affliates of which the Company has the ability
to exercise significant influence over operating and financial
pohcies, except for insignificant companies, are accounted for
by the equity method, and accordingly, stated at cost adjusted
for the earnings and losses after elimination of unrealized inter-
company profits from the date of acquisition

Investments in unconsolidated subsidianes and affiliates not
accounted for by the equity method are carried at cost, adjust-
ed for any substantial and nonrecoverable decline in vatue

In the elimination of nvestments in subsidianes, assets and
habilities of the subsidiaries, including the portion attnbutable
to mmnornity shareholders, are evaluated based on ther farr val-
ves at the time the Company acquired controls of the respec-
tive subsidianes

The excess investment amounts, at the acquisition date, over
net assets of consolidated subsidianes or unconsclidated sub-
sidiaries and affiliates accounted for by the equity method,
except for Mitsubishu Cable Industries, Ltd, SUMCO
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CORPQORATION, SIMILCO Mines, Ltd, Rabertson’s Ready Mix,
Ltd , RRM Properties, Ltd , and Robertson’s Transport, Ltd , {col-
lectively, “Robertson’s”) are being amortized over a period of
five years on a straight-line basis

Regarding Mitsubnshy Cabte Industries, Lid , a penod of amor
tizing the goodwill 1s for 10 years and regarding SUMCO
CORPORATION, SIMILCO Mines, Ltd , Robertson's, it 1s for 20
years on a straight-hne bases

{b) Translation of Foreign Currencies
Recewvables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Japanese yen at the year-end rates Gains or
losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are credited
or charged to other income as incurred

The financial staternents of consolidated foreign subsichanes
and affiliates are transtated into Japanese yen amounts at the
current rate except for net assets, which is translated at histon-
cal rates The difference resulting from transtation adjustments
1s reported as a separate component of net assets



{c) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 1s provided in the amount suf-
ficient to cover probable losses on collection It consists of indi-
vidually estimated uncollectible amounts, and an amount
calculated using the past rate of actual losses on collection

{d} Inventories

The amounts of inventories are stated primanly at acquisition
cost modified by the wnting down below cost to net selling
value Nonferrous metals are stated primarily at the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method Other inventories are primanty stated at
average cost method

(e) Derivative Transaction and Hedge Accounting
Dervative financial instruments are stated at fair value Gains or
losses resulting from changes 1n fair value are recognized in
income except for the derivative financial instruments applied
hedge accounting to

i derivative financial instruments are used as hedges and
meet certain hedging cnitenia, the Company defers recognition
of gains or losses resulting from changes in farr value of deriva-
tive financial instruments until the related losses or gains on the
hedged items are recognized

However, in cases where forward foreign exchange contracts
are used as hedges and meet certan hedging cnitena, forward
foreign exchange contracts and hedged items are accounted
for in the following manner

1 If a forward foreign exchange contract 1s executed to hedge

an existing foreign currency recewvable or payable,

(1) the difference, if any, between the Japanese yen amount of
the hedged foreign currency recewvable or payable translated
at the spot rate as of the inception date of the contract and
the carrying amount of the recewable or payable 15 recog-
nized in the consolidated statements of operations in the
period which includes the inception date, and

{2) the discount or premium on the contract (that s, the differ-
ence between the Japanese yen amount of the contract
translated at the contracted forward rate and that translated
at the spot rate as of the inception date of the contract) s
recognized in income over the term of the contract

2 If a forward foreign exchange contract 1s executed to hedge
a future forecasted transaction denominated in foreign cur-
rency, the future transaction will be recorded at the contract-
ed forward rate, and no gains or losses on the forward
foreign exchange contract are recognized

Also, if interest rate swap contracts are used as hedges and
meet certain hedging critena, the net amount to be paid or
received under the contract is added to or deducted from the
interest on the assets or habilities for which the swap contract
was executed

(f} Securities

Based on the intent of holding, secunties are dassified as (a)
securittes held for trading purposes, (b) debt securties intended
to be held to maturity (hereafter, “held-to-matunty debt secun-
ties”), (¢} equity securities ssued by unconsolidated subsidianes
and affiiates (hereafter, "equity secunties”) and (d) all other
securities that are not dassified in any of the above categories
{hereafter, “available-for-sale securities”)

Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost
Equrty securities, which are not accounted for by the equity
method, are stated at moving-average cost Avallable-for-sale
securities with available fair market value are stated at fair mar-
ket value Unrealized gains and losses on these secunties are
reported, net of applicable income taxes, as a separate compo-
nent of net assets Realized gains and losses on the sale of such
secunties are calculated with the moving-average cost
Avallable-for-sale securities with no avatlable far market value
are stated at moving-average cost There are no securities held
for trading purposes

If the market value of held-to-maturity debt secunties, equity
securities, and available-for-sale secunities dechines significantly,
such securrties are stated at fair market value and the difference
between the fair market value and the carrying amount s rec-
ognized as losses in the penod of decline If the fair market
value of these securities i1s not readily avallable, such securities
are written down to net asset value with corresponding charge
in the consoldated statement of operations, in the event that
net asset value dechnes significantly [n these cases, such farr
market value or net asset value will become the carrying
amount of the securities at the beginning of the next year

Prior to Apnl 1, 2009, fair market value of equity securities
and investrment trusts with fair value dassified as available-for-
sale secunties had been determined based on the market price
at the balance sheet date Effective from the year ended March
31, 2010, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries
changed 1ts method to determme the fair market value based
on the average market prnice dunng one month before the bal-
ance sheet date This change was made to reflect the financial
position more appropnately by eliminating the impact from the
short-term market fluctuations on the net assets Consequently,
compared to the amounts that would have been reported
under the previous accounting method, deferred income taxes
under “QOther Assets” and "Long-Term Liabiliies” increased by
¥2,588 million (§27,816 thousand) and ¥30 milhon ($325 thou-
sand), respectively and net unrealized holding gains on securi-
ties, mvestments in securities and minonty interests decreased
by ¥4,081 milhon ($43,871 thousand), ¥6,768 million ($72,748
thousand) and ¥16 mulhon ($181 thousand), respectively Write-
down of investments in secunties and loss before income taxes
and minonty interests increased by ¥112 million ($1,203 thou-
sand), respectively
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In addition, prior to April 1, 2009, the carrying amounts of
equrty securities and investment trusts whose farr market value
declined significantly were written down at the end of the
quarter without being reversed thereafter, however, effective
from the first quarter beginning on Apnl 1, 2009, the amount
of the write-down 1s reversed in the following quarters of the
same fiscal year This change was made to reflect profit and loss
and financial position at the balance sheet date more appropn-
ately by eliminating the impact from quarterly market fluctua-
tions

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, deferred
Income taxes under "Cther Assets” increased by ¥3 milion
{$33 thousand) and deferred income taxes under “Long-Term
Liabilities,” net unrealized holding gains on securities and
mmority interests decreased by ¥1,207 million ($12,982 thou-
sand), ¥1,771 million {$19,035 thousand) and ¥0 miilion ($8
thousand), respectively Write-down of investments in securities
and foss before income taxes and minonty interests decreased
by ¥2,982 million {$32,060 thousand), respectively

The effect of these changes on the segment information 1s
described in Note 15

(g) Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
{except for the leased assets of which the ownership is
not transferred to the lessee)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, except for cer-

tain revalued land as explained in Note 16 Depreciation 15 cal-

culated primanly using the decliming-balance method at rates
based on the estimated useful lives of depreciable assets The
straight-line method 1s applied to certain plant faciities, such as
those in the Naoshima smelter, etc , based on the estimated
useful lives of those depreciable assets

The useful lives of the assets range from 3 to 75 years for
buldings and structures, and from 2 to 30 years for machinery
and equipment

Cost and accumulated depreciation applicable to assets
retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from the related
accounts, and gain on sale or loss on disposal 15 credited or
charged 1o income Expenditures for new faclites and those
which substantially increase the useful lives of existing property,
plant, and equipment are capitalized Maintenance, repar and
minor renewals are charged to income as incurred

Due to the revised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective

Apni 1, 2008, the Company and its domestic consolidated sub-

sidiaries have applied the revised useful lives mainly to machin-

ery and equipment

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, operat-
ing profit decreased by ¥5,7358 million, and income before
income taxes and minority interests decreased by ¥5,783 milhon

for the year ended March 31, 2009

The effect of the change on the segment information 15

described tn Note 15
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Effective from the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company
and its certain domestic consohidated subsidiaries have changed
the useful hives for buildings {not including accessary equip-
ment} \n accordance with the Company's review of the usefu!
lives based on the recent actual usable years when the
Corporation Tax Law of Japan was rewised m the year ended
March 31, 2009 Consequently, compared to the amounts that
would have been reported under the previous accounting
method, operating profit decreased by ¥238 million and income
before income taxes and munority interests decreased by ¥378
million for the year ended March 31, 2009

The effect of the change on the segment information i1s
immatenal

Due to the revised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective
April 1, 2007, the method of depreciation applied to property,
plant and equipment acquired on or after Apnl 1, 2007 was
revised

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, operat-
ing profit and income before income taxes and minority inter-
ests decreased by ¥961 milion and ¥967 million, respectively
for the year ended March 31, 2008

The effect of the change on the segment information s
described n Note 15

Due to the revised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective
Apnl 1, 2007, the salvage values of property, plant and equip-
ment acquired before April 1, 2007 are additionally depreciated
to thetr nominal values equally over five years commencing
from the years immediately after the year in which the depreci-
ated bases have reached 5% of their acquisition costs

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, operat-
ing profit and income before income taxes and minonty inter-
ests decreased by ¥4,250 million and ¥4,339 million,
respectively for the year ended March 31, 2008

The effect of the change on the segment information 15
described in Note 15

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2008, Universal Can
Corporation, a consolidated subsidiary, changed the estmated
useful lives and its salvage value of some property, plant and
equipment based on the recent trends of useful hves and dis-
posal values extracted from the company’s factual cases

Consequently, ¥1,400 milhion attributed to prior pericd
adjustment of the depreciation 1s included In other expense
The effect of the change on the segment infarmation s
descnbed in Note 15



(h) Leased Assets (except for the leased assets of which

the ownership is transferred to the lessee}
As discussed m Note 2 (1), leased assets are depreciated over
the leased term by the straight-ine method with no residual
value Finance fease transactions that do not transfer ownership
commenced pnior to the first year of implementation of the
new accounting standard are accounted for in a manner similar
to the accounting for ordinary rental transactions as i the case
of operating leases

(1)) Reserve for Loss on Disposal of Inventortes

Reserve for loss on disposal of inventories 15 provided for future
payments for disposal of inventories based on the management
estimation

{)) Severance and Pension Benefits
1 For employees
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries provide two types
of post-employment benefit plans, an unfunded lump-sum sever-
ance payment plan, and a funded defined benefit pension plan,
under which all ekgible employees are entitled to benefits based
on the level of wages and salanes at the time of retirement or
termination, the length of service, and certain other factors

The Company and its consolidated subsidianes provide allow-
ance for employees’ severance and pension benefits, based on
the estimated amounts of projected benefit obligations that
were actuanally calculated on certain assumptions, and the fair
value of plan assets at that date

Prior service costs incurred after Apnl 1, 2000 are recognized
as expense with the straight-ine method over the penod within
the estmated average remaining service life of the employees
{mainly 10 years} Actuanal gains and losses are also recognized
as expense with the straight-ine method over the estimated
average remaining service Iife {mainly 10 years), commencing
from the succeeding period

Effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the
Company and consolidated domestic subsidiaries adopted the
"Partial Amendments to Accounting Standard for Retirement
Benefits (Part 3)" {Accounting Standards Board of Japan
("ASBJ"} Statement No 19 i1ssued on July 31, 2008} The new
accounting standard requires domestic companies to use the
rate of return on long-term government or git-edged bonds as
of the end of the fiscal year for calculating the projected benefit
obhgation of a defined-benefit plan Previously, domestic com-
panies were allowed to use a discount rate determined by tak-
ing into consideration fluctuations in the yield of long-term
government or gilt-edged bonds over a certain period This
change had no matenal impact on the consolidated financia!
statements for the year ended March 31, 2010

2 For officers

Officers (directors and corporate auditors) are entitled to lump-
sum severance payments based on the length of service and
certain other factors Some consolidated subsidiaries accrue a
habiity for lump-sum severance payments equal to 100% of

the amounts required, had all officers voluntarnly retired at the
balance sheet dates

At the 82nd shareholders’ meeting of the Company held on
lune 28, 2007, the proposal of the termination of their retirement
benefit programs for directors and corporate auditors (under
which payments would be made at the time of each person’s
retirement) was approved Accordingly, the Company reversed the
entire amount of accrual for officers’ lump-sum severance bene-
fits, and recorded unpaid balances of these retrement benefits as
of June30, 2007, in “Long-term labilires-other *

(k) Valuation Allowance for Investments in Unconsolidated
Subsidiaries and Affihates and Reserve for Loss on
Unconsolidated Subsidianes and Affiliates

Valuation allowance for investments in unconsolidated subsid-

1anes and affilates and reserve for loss on unconsolidated sub-

sidiaries and affiliates are provided based on the evaluation of
individual financial and other conditions of substdianies and
affillates

{I} Reserve for Environmental Measures
Reserve for environmental measures Is provided for future pay-
ments for waste disposal, and to clean up soif contamination at
Omwya Environmental Management Center (the Central
Research Institute formerly, Sartama, Satama Prefecture) site,
Kaihatsu Board Co, Ltd (Aizu Daken Kogyo Co, Ltd at pres-
ent, Aizuwakamatsu, Fukushima Prefecture) site and Kazuno
{Akita Prefecture) area, based on the management estimation
Kalhatsu Board Co, Ltd was a wholly owned consolidated
subsidhary, and the Company sold all its stocks on April 10, 2007

{m) Income Taxes

The Company provides for income taxes on the basis of current
tax habilities and reflects the tax effects of the temporary differ-
ences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for
financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases

{n) Bonuses to Directors and Corporate Auditors

Bonuses to directors and corporate auditors are subject to
approval by the shareholders Bonuses to directors and corpo-
rate auditors are accounted for as an expense of the period
when incurred

(o) Net Income per Share
Basic net income per share 1s calculated based upon the weight-
ed-average number of shares of common stock outstanding
during each penod

Diluted net income per share assumes that outstanding con-
vertible bonds and zero-coupon unsecured convertible bond-
type bonds with stock acquisition nghts were converted into
common stock at the beginning of the penod at the current
conversion price
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{p) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents clude all highly liquid investments
with matunty of three months or less at the time of purchase

(q) Accounting Standard for Construction Contracts

Prior to the year ended March 31, 2010, the Company and
domestic consolidated subsidiaries accounted for revenues and
costs of construction contracts whose contract values exceeded
¥100 milhon ($1,074 thousand) and for which the construction
periods exceeded one year by using the percentage-of-comple-
tion method All other construction contracts were accounted
for using the completed-contract method

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2010, the Company
and the domestic consolidated subsidiaries adopted the
* Accounting Standard for Construction Contracts” (Accounting
Standards Board of Japan (“ASB}") Statement No 15, issued on
December 27, 2007) and the "Guidance on Accounting
Standard for Construction Contracts” (ASB) Guidance No 18,
issued on December 27, 2007}

Accordingly, when the outcome of indwidual contracts can
be estimated reliably, the Company and the domestic consoli-
dated subsidharies apply the percentage-of-completion method
to work commenaing durning and after the year ended March
31, 2010, otherwise the completed-contract method s applied
The percentage/stage of completion at the end of the reporting
penod 1s measured by the proportion of the cost incurred to the
estimated total cost

The change had no matenal impact on the consolidated
financial statements

(r) Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions as Lessee
Prior to Apnil 1, 2008, the Company and the domestic consoli-
dated subsidianes accounted for finance lease transactions that
do not transfer ownership of the leased property to the lessee
as operating leases with disclosure of certain “as 1f capitalized”
information i a note to the consolidated financial statements

On March 30, 2007, the Accounting Standards Board of
Japan ssued Statement No 13, “Accounting Standard for
Lease Transactions” and Guidance No 16, “Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions " The new account-
ing standards require that all finance lease transactions should
be capitalized

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company
and the domestic consolidated subsidianes adopted the new
accounting standards for finance leases commenced after
March 31, 2008 and capitalized assets used under such leases,
except for certam immatenal or short-term finance leases,
which are accounted for as operating leases As permitted,
finance leases which commenced pnor to Apnl 1, 2008 and
have been accounted for as operating leases, continue to be
accounted for as operating leases with disclosure of “as f capi-
talized” information

The effect on net income of adoption of this new accounting
standards was immatenal
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(s) Apphcation of the “Practical Solution on Unification of
Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for
Consolidated Financial Statements”

On May 17, 2006, the Accounting Standards Board of Japan

ssued ASBJ Practical Issues Task Force No 18 "Practical Solution

on Umfication of Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign

Subsidianies for Consolidated Financial Statements” (“PITF No

18"} PITF No 18 requires that accounting policies and proce-

dures appled by a parent company and its subsidianes to simi-

tar transactions and events under similar arcumstances should,
in principle, be unified for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements PITF No 18, however, as a tentative mea-
sure, allows a parent company to prepare consohdated financial
statements using foreign subsidianies’ financial statements pre-
pared in accordance with either International Financial

Reporting Standards or U5 generally accepted accounting

pnnciples In this case, adjustments for the following six items

in accordance with Japanese GAAP are required in the consoli-
dation process unless the impact 1s not material

(a) Goodwill not subject to amortization

(b}Actuanial gains and losses of defined benefit plans recog-
nized as outside profit or loss

(c) Capitahzed expenditures for research and development
activities

(dYFarr value measurement of investment properties, and revalu-
ation of property, plant and equipment, and tntangible
assets

(e) Retrospective treatment of changes in accounting policies

(fy Accounting for net income attnbutable to minonty interests

Consequently, operating profit decreased by ¥1,038 million,
income before income taxes and minority interests increased by
¥8,751 million for the year ended March 31, 2009, and retained
earnings as of April 1, 2008 decreased by ¥16,264 million

The effect of the change on the segment information s
described in Note 15

{t) Reclassification

Certain pnor year amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the current year presentation These reclassifications had no
impact on previously reported results of operations




Note 3 Inventories

Inventones as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 consisted of the following

I Thousands of
Millions of yen U S doflars
| 2010 | 2009 2010
Merchandise and firushed goods | ¥ 61,599 | ¥ 66157 | $ 662,074
Work in process I 101,687 ‘ 72,349 1,092,939
Raw materals and supphes I 75,768 | 64,026 814,361
Tota! I ¥239,054 I ¥202,533 $2,569,375

Note 4 Investment and Rental Property

Effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the  Guidance No 23 issued on November 28, 2008) for the years
Company adopted the “Accounting Standard for Disclosures  ending on or after March 31, 2010

about Fair Value of Investment and Rental Property” Pursuant to the new requirements, information about fair
{(Accounting Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”} Statement  value of investment and rental property included in the consol-
No 20 ssued on November 28, 2008) Rental Property” (ASB)  dated financial statements at March 31, 2010 was as follows

Milons of yen
Carrying amount I Fair value
Apnl 1, 2009 Increasef{Decrease) March 31, 2010 I March 31, 2010
¥85,459 ¥(1,557) ¥83,901 | ¥85,165

Thousands of US dollars

Carrying amount I Far value
April 1, 2009 Increase/{Decrease) March 31, 2010 I March 3%, 2010
$918,525 $(16,742) $901,782 | $915,362

Notes

1 Carrying amount 15 net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated mpairment loss

2 Fawr value of sigmficant properties as of March 31, 2010 1s amount of appraisal by external or internal real estate appraisers Farr
value of other properties is calculated based on the reasonable tndices reflecting market prices such as posted prices or property
tax valuation, etc

Operating performances of the investment properties for the year ended March 31, 2010 were as follows

Mithions of yen

Rental Income Rental expenses Profit l Impairment loss

¥6,381 Y4,866 ¥1,515 | ¥4,336

Thousands of U S dollars

Rental income Rental expenses Profit I Impairment loss

$68,593 $52,302 $16,291 I $46,609

Note
Rental expenses include costs related to depreciation, maintenance and reparrs, insurance premums, taxes and dues and others
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Note 5 Short-Term Bank Loans, Commercial Paper, Long-Term Debt

Short-term bank foans and commercia! paper outstanding as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 consisted of the following

I I Thousands of
Miflions of yen U S dollars
! 2010 | 2000 | 2010
Unsecured | ¥224,413 | ¥231,668 |  $2,412,008
Secured | 32,228 | 13.566 | 346,394
Total | ¥256,641 | ¥245234 | $2,758,402

The average interest rates per annum for short-term bank  March 31, 2010 and 2003 were 0 2% and 1 0%, respectively
loans outstanding at March 31, 2010 and 2009 were 0 9% and Long-term debt as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 consisted of

1 1%, respectively the following
The average interest rate per annum for commercial paper at

I Thousands of
Millions of yen U 5 dolfars
2010 2009 | 2010
Banks, insurance comparies and other financial institutions, matuning
senally until 2030 with an average rate of 1 721% per annum as of
March 31, 2010
Unsecured ¥372,908 ¥324,672 $4,008,043
Secured 46,500 41,105 499,787
0 94% unsecured yen bonds, due 2010 20,000 20,000 214,961
1 39% unsecured yen bonds, due 2012 10,000 10,000 107,480
1 97% unsecured yen bonds, due 2011 20,000 20,000 214,961
1 82% unsecured yen bonds, due 2013 15,000 15,000 161,220
2 06% unsecured yen bonds, due 2014 30,000 30,000 322,441
1 25% unsecured yen bonds, due 2013 | 15,000 — l 161,220
1 61% unsecured yen bonds, due 2015 10,000 — 107,480
539,408 460,778 5,797,599
Less current portion (67,225) (64,697) (722,538}
¥472,183 ¥396,080 $5,075,060
The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2010 were as follows
Thousands of
Year ending March 31, Millions of yen U S dollars
201 ¥ 67,225 $ 722,538
2012 126,463 1,359,237
2013 105,150 1,130,165
2014 87,844 944,159
2015 94,032 1,010,662
2016 and thereafter 58,692 630,835
Total ¥539,408 45,797,599
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Assets pledged as collatera! for short-term bank loans and long-term debt as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows

I Thousands of
Millions of yen U S dollars
| 2010 2009 2010
Cash and time deposits | ¥ 13,379 ¥ 13,215 $ 143,802
Notes and accounts receivable | 12,343 2,005 132,674
Inventories | 33,201 13,551 356,848
Investments | |
Investments in securtties | 2,676 | 247 28,766
Property, plant and equipment, at net book value | 100,642 87,190 1,081,707
Total | ¥162,243 ¥116,209 $1,743,799

Note 6 Employees’ Severance and Pension Benefits

Employees’ severance and pension benefits included in the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2010 and 2003 consisted

of the following

Thousands ot

Millions of yen US dollars
2010 2009 2010
Projected benefit obligation ¥139,923 ¥128,355 $1,503,908
Fair value of plan assets (62,429) {49,903) (670,991)

Projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets 77,494 78,452 832,917
Unrecognized actuanal losses {16,313) {28,522) (175,336)
Unrecognized prior service costs 209 211 2,250 I

Net liability for severance and retirement benefits 61,390 50,141 659,831 :
Prepaid pension costs 64 235 696 :
Employees' severance and pension benefits | ¥ 61,455 | ¥ 50,376 $ 660,528 :

Employees’ severance and pension benefit expense mcluded in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following

Thousands of
Millions of yen US dollars
2010 2009 2008 2010
Service cost benefits earned during the year ¥ 7,193 ¥ 6,218 ¥ 7,391 $ 77,313
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 3,046 2,696 2,663 32,740
Expected return on plan assets (1,111) {1,288) (1,621) {11,949)
Amortization of actuanal losses 5,560 4,003 2,839 59,764
Amortization of prior service costs (88) 179 288 (954)
Employees’ severance and pension benefit expense ¥14,599 ¥11,809 ¥11,561 $156,914

The discount rate used by the Company was mainly 2 5% for
the years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 The rates of
expected return on plan assets were mainly 2 5% for the years

ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 The estimated

amounts of all retirement benefits to be paid at the future
retirement dates are allocated equally to each service year using
the estimated number of total service years
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Under the Japanese Corporate Law “the Law” and regulations,
the entire amount paid for new shares is required to be desig-
nated as common stock However, a company may, by a resolu-
tion of the Board of Directors, designate an amount not
exceeding one-half of the price of the new shares as additional
paid-in-capital, which 1s included in caprtal surptus

Under the Law, in cases where a dividend distnbution of sur-
plus is made, the smaller of an amount equal to 10% of the
dmdend or the excess, if any, of 25% of common stock over
the total of additionat paid-in-capital and legal earnings reserve
must be set aside as additional paid-in-capital or legal earmings
reserve Legal earnings reserve 15 included in retained earnings
in the accompanying consohdated balance sheets

Note 8 Income Taxes

Under the Law, both elimination and capitalization related to
legal earnings reserve and additronal paid-in capital generally
require a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting

Additional paid-in capital and legal earnings reserve may not
be distributed as dividends Under the Law, all addrtional paid-
in capital and all tegal earnings reserve may be transferred to
other caprtal surplus and retamed earnings, respectively, which
are potentially available for dividends

The maximum amount that the Company can distribute as
dmdends 1s calculated based on the non-consohdated financial
staternents of the Company in accordance with the laws and
regulations

The income taxes reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the years ended March 31, 2010, 2009

and 2008 consisted of the following

| Thousands of
Millrons of yen U S dollars
I 2010 I 2009 2008 2010
Current | ¥ 8670 | ¥13,883 ¥35.946 | $ 93.195
Pnior year adjustrment | — | 663 {748) | —
Deferred | 27.775 | (513) 4,627 208,532
Total | ¥ 36,446 | ¥14,033 ¥39,825 $391,727

The following table summanzes the significant differences
between the statutory income tax rate and the effective iIncome
tax rate for the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008

Infarmation for the year ended March 31, 2010 was omitted,
since net loss was recorded

| 2009 2003
Statutory tax rate | 40 7% 407%
Equity in earnings (losses) of affilates 110 (8 2)
Differences in statutory tax rates of consolidated subsidiaries (22 2) {40)
Valuation allowance 106 17
Intercompany cash dividend 76 33
Tax credits (10 2) {27)
Nondeductible expenses 32 11
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax llabilities for retained earnings of overseas consolidated
subsidiaries (7 0) 06
Nondeductible foreign withholding taxes 163 —
Other 0 1) {0 3)
Effective tax rate 49 9% 322%
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Significant components of deferred income tax assets and liabibittes as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows

Thowsands of
Milhons of yen U S dollars
2010 | 2009 2010
Deferred income tax assets
Net operating loss carried forward ¥ 39,981 ¥ 13,977 $ 429,723
Emplayees' severance and penston benefits 27,629 21,435 296,968
Loss on write-down of securities 14,107 6,170 151,627
Nondeductible loss on impairment of fixed assets 8,628 | 3,825 92,743
Loss on write-down of buillding 7,778 8,321 83.606
Intercompany profits 6,446 7,643 69,282
Loss on write-down of inventones | 3,829 5,282 41,156
Accrued employees’ bonuses | 3,731 4,044 40,111
Reserve for environmental measures 3,451 5,235 37,099
Allowance for doubtfu! accounts 2,707 1,981 29,102
Depreciation 2,227 2.143 23,940
Nondeductible environmental expenditures | 2,175 2,175 23,380
Nondeductible loss based on percentage-of-completion method 1,588 | 1,588 17,073
Nondeductible compensation expenditures 1.444 I 1,444 15,525
Deferred losses on hedges — 4,714 —_
Other 15,685 12,055 168,589
Subtotal 141,414 102,039 1,519,930
Valuation allowance (105,626) | 30,426) | (1.135,283)
Total deferred income tax assets ¥ 35,787 ¥ 71,612 $ 384,647
Deferred income tax labilities |
Net unrealized holding gains on securities | ¥ (15,488) ¥ (1,835) $ (166,467)
Excess of fair value over the book value of the assets and liabilities
of the consolidated subsidianes and affiliates at the acqursition
date (9,633) (7,382) {103,536)
Accelerated depreciation of property, plant and equipment (6,139) (6,153) (65,992)
Revaluation of land, as a result of the merger (1,996) (1,996) I (21,459)
Deferred gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (740) | (3,131) | {7,963)
Retained earnings of overseas consolidated subsidiaries (661) | {590) | (7,104}
Reserves deductible for Japanese tax purposes (464) {2,833) (4,989)
Unrealized gains on hedging denvatves {449} {253) (4,828)
Other | (8,295) 6,103) | (89,157)
Total deferred income tax labilities {43,868) I (30,280} {(471,499)
Net deferred income tax {liabilities) assets ¥ (8.080) ¥ 41,332 $ (86,852)
Net deferred mcome tax habilities on revaluation reserve for land ¥ (39,839) ¥ (40,373) $ (428,199)
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Contingent habilities for notes recevable discounted with
banks, notes recewable endorsed with recourse, notes and
accounts recevable securtized with recourse, and loans guar-

anteed by the Company and its consolidated subsidianes pri-

manty on behalf of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates,
including employees’ housing loans from banks, as of March
31, 2010 and 2009 were as follows

I Thousands of
Mullions of yen U S dollars
| 2010 2009 2010
Notes recewvable discounted | ¥ 210 I ¥ 406 $ 2,260
Notes receivable endorsed with recourse | 48 | 47 521
Notes and accounts recevable securitized wath recourse | 10,031 | 8,659 107,818
Loans guaranteed | 18,741 | 33,640 201,432
Total | ¥29,031 | ¥42,754 $312,032

Loans guaranteed as of March 31, 2009 include a ¥4,477 miliion (345,579 thousand) portion guaranteed by unrelated parties

Note 10 Lease Transactions

As discussed in Note 2 {r), pro-forma information of finance
leases that do not transfer ownership of leased assets to the

lessee commenced prior to the first year of implementation of

the new accounting standard, which are accounted for as oper-
ating leases, was as follows

{1} Equivalents of purchase price, accumulated depreciation, accumulated impasrment loss and book value of leased assets

Mithons of yen
2010
Machinery, eguipment I I |
and vehicles Tools Others Total
Purchase price ¥5,494 | ¥3,530 ¥1,119 | ¥10,144
Accumulated depreciation 4,164 | 2,415 | 846 | 7,426
Accumulated impairment loss — | — | — | -
Carrying amount ¥1,330 | ¥1,114 | ¥ 272 | ¥ 2717
Millons of yen
2009
Machinery, equipment I I [
and vehicles Too's Others Total
Purchase price ¥7,108 | ¥4,385 ¥1,449 i ¥12,943
Accumulated depreciation 4,797 | 2,600 908 | 8,306
Accumulated impairment loss 12 | — | e | 12
Carrying amount ¥2,298 | ¥1,784 | ¥ 541 | ¥ 4,623
Thousands of U S dollars
2010
Machinery, equipment I | I
and vehicles Tools Others Total
Purchase price $59,055 I $37,944 $12,034 I $109,034
Accumulated depreciation 44,758 | 25,963 | 9,103 | 79,825
Accumulated impairment loss — | — | — l -~
Carrying amount $14,29 | $11,981 | $ 2,930 | § 29,208
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(2) Lease commutments and accumulated impairment loss on leased assets

I I Thousands of
_Millions of yen US dollars
| 2010 | 2009 2010
Lease commitments I |
Due within one year I ¥1,406 | ¥1,878 l $15,114
Due after one year l 1,311 | 2,747 | 14,094
Total | ¥2,717 | ¥4,626 $29,208
Accumulated impairment loss on leased assets | ¥ — l ¥ 2 $ —
(3) Lease expenses, depreciation equivalents and reversal of accumulated impairment loss on leased assets
Thousands of
Millions of yen U5 dollars
2010 | 2009 2008 2010
Lease expenses ¥1,933 | ¥2,535 ¥2,802 $20,785
Depreciation equivalents 1,931 ' 2,532 2,739 20,761
Reversal of accumulated impairment loss on |
leased assets 2 2 62 24
Noncancelable operating lease commitments as lessee were as follows
| | Thousands of
Millions of yen U S _dollars
| 2010 | 2009 | 2010
Due within one year | ¥ 2,115 | ¥2,162 | $ 22,741
Due after one year | 12,631 | 3817 | 135,763
Total | ¥14,747 | ¥5,979 | $158,505
Noncancelable operating lease commitments as lessor were as follows
I | Thousands of
Millions of yen Us dollars
| 2010 | 2009 | 2010
Due within one year | ¥1,133 l ¥1,071 | $12,183
Due after one year | 6,916 | 7,465 | 74,343
Total | ¥8,050 | ¥8,536 | $86,526

Note 11 Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses for the years ended March  sand), ¥11,852 million, and ¥11,676 mullon, respectively, and were
31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were ¥10,897 milhon ($117,127 thou-  indluded m seling, general and administrative expenses
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1 The following tables summarize acquisition ¢osts and book values of securities with available fair market values as of March 31,

2010

Available-for-sale securities
{1) Securities with book values exceeding acquisition cost

At March 31, 2010

I Mullicns of yen I Thousands of U'S dollars
Type I Acquisition cost Book value Difference I Acquisition cost Book value Difference
Equity securities l ¥42,276 ¥98,592 ¥56,315 I $454,389 $1,059,673 $605,284
Bonds | — — — I —_ — —
Total | ¥42,276 ¥98,592 ¥56,315 I $454,389  $1,059,673 $605,284
{2) Securities with book values not exceeding acquisition cost
At March 31, 2010

I Millions of yen I Thousands of U'S dollars
Type | Acquisition cost Book value Difference I Acquisition cost Book value Difference
Equity secunties I ¥48,716 ¥34,462 ¥(14,254) | $523,609 $370,401 $(153,208)
Bonds l — — — | — — —
Total | vam716 _ v3a462  ¥(14254) | $523609  $370,401 _ $(153,208)
Note

Unlisted equity securtties whose book values are ¥12,581 million {$135,225 thousand) are not included in the above table, because

there 15 no market pnce and «t 15 extremely difficult to recogrize their fair market values

2 The following tables summarnze acquisition costs and book values of securittes with available fair market values as of March 31, 2009

Available-for-sale securities
(1) Securities with book values exceeding acquisition cost

At March 31, 2009

Millions of yen

I
Type I Acquisttion ¢ost Book value Difference
Equity securities | ¥8068  ¥39,170  ¥31,101
Bonds l — — —
Total |~ vso68  ¥39,170  ¥31,101
(2) Secunties with book values not exceeding acquisition cost
At March 31, 2009

I Millions of yen
Type I Acquisition cost Book value Difference
Equity secunties I ¥81,826 ¥56,165 ¥(25,661)
Bonds | — — —
Total | ~"ve126  ¥56,165  ¥(25,661)
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3 The following table summanzes book values of securities with no avaiable fair market values as of March 31, 2009

Available-for-sale securities

I Millions of yen
Type l Book value
Unlisted equity securities ] ¥15,280
Bonds | —
Others l 9
Total l ¥15,290
Note

Book value of secunities with no available fair market values as of March 31, 2010 1s described at Note 13 “Financial Instruments *

4 The Company did not hold any avalable-for-sale secunties with matunty, and held-to-matunity debt securities as of March 31, 2010

and 2009

5 Total amounts of avatlable-for-sale secunties sold, and the resulting gains and losses, for the years ended March 31, 2010 and

2009 were as follows

| I Thousands of
Millions of yen U S dollars
| 2010 | 2009 | 2010
Sales amount | ¥3,680 | ¥1,353 | $39,555
Gamns | 2902 | 514 | 3,148
Losses | 2 | 19 | 22

Note 13 Financial Instruments

Effective from the fiscal year ended March 31, 2010, the Company
adopted the revised Accounting Standard, “Accounting Standard
for Ainancial Instruments” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan
{“ASBJ") Statement No 10 revised on March 10, 2008} and the
*Guidance on Disdosures about Farr Value of Finanoal instruments”
{ASBJ Guidance No 19 revised on March 10, 2008) Information on
financial instruments for the year ended March 31, 2010 requred
pursuant to the revised accounting standards was as follows

1 Quahtatve information on financial instruments

(1) Pohcies for using financial instruments

The Group raises the necessary funds for its capital investment
plans to conduct its business mainly by bank loans or 1ssuance
of bonds The Group invests temporary cash surpluses in highly
secured financial instruments and raise short-term working fund
by bank loans or rssuance of commercial paper The Group fol-
lows the policy of using derivatives not for speculative purposes,
but for managing financiat risks as described later

(2) Details of financial instruments used and the exposures to
nsk and how they arise
Notes and accounts recevable are exposed to customer's credit
nsk As trade recevables denominated in foreign currencies
ansing from the development of global business are exposed to
foreign currency exchange fluctuatron nsk, they are prinapally
hedged using forward foreign exchange contracts

Investment securrties, mainly consisting of equity secunties related
to customners and suppliers in relation to business or caprtal allances,

are exposed to the nsk of market pnece fluctuations In addition, the
Company has long-term loans recevable from affiliates

Payment terms of notes and accounts payable are less than one
year As certain payables in foreign currencies ansing from the
import transactions of raw matenals are exposed to foreign currency
exchange fluctuation risk, they are pnncipally hedged using forward
foreign exchange contracts Short-term bank loans and commercial
paper are used for rarsing funds related to operating transactions

Long-term debt including corporate bonds 15 used mainly for
raising the necessary funds related to capital investments Maturtties
of long-term debt induding corporate bonds are less than 20 years
As some of them wath floating interest rates are exposed to interest
rate fluctuation nsk, they are hedged using denvatives

Derwvative transactions mainly include forward foreign cumency
contracts and currency swap contracts for the purpose of hedging
foreign currency exchange fluctuation nisk on trade recewables and
payables denominated in foreign currencies, forward commodity
contracts and commodity price swap contracts for the purpose of
hedging commodity price fluctuation nsk on nonferrous metal and
interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging interest rate fluctu-
ation nsk on debt and reduang fund ratsing costs Interest rate
swaps which convert fixed interest rates into floating rates are
exposed to market interest rate fluctuation Hedging instruments
and hedged tems, hedge policy, assessment method for hedge
effectiveness and others related to hedge accounting, were
described at Note 2 (g) “Denvative Transaction and Hedge
Accounting” and Note 14 “Denvative Transactions ”
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(3) Policies and processes for managing the nisk
a Credit Risk Management (customers’ default nsk)
The Company manages and mitigates customer’s credit nsk on trade
receivables In accordance with the Credit Control Policy, which
incdludes monitonng of payment term and balances of customers by
each responsible department of each company to recognize the cus-
tomers default nsk at an early stage Consoldated subsidianes also
manage and mstigate the nsk i accordance with a similar credrt con-
trol policy based on the Group Accounting Policy and Manual When
mplementing loans, the Company obtains authonzations for each
loan from management committees to mitigate default nsk The
company deals with high credit worthy foreign or domestic financial
nstitutions or trading firms only to nutigate the default risks
b Market Risk Management {foreign currency exchange and

interest rate fluctuation nsks)
The Company and certain consolidated subsidiaries use princ-
pally forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge foreign cur-
rency exchange fluctuation nsk identified by currency and
monthly basis for trade receivables and payables denominated
in foreign currencies And interest rate swap contracts are used
to manage Interest rate fluctuation nsk on debt

With respect to investment securtties, the Company identifies
and monitors fair market values and finanoal positions of the
1ssuers on a regular basis and continuously reviews its status of
these securities considering the relationships with the 1ssuers

With respect to denvative transactions, the Company has "Rules
on Utilizing Dervative Transactions” in its “Operation Standards”
applicable to the whole Company In addition, there are specific
rules and standards for denvative transactions provided for each
business unit based on its type of business In accordance with the

Corporate Governance 7SR Promation Structure  Maragement Financial Secton

authonty and limits provided in these rules and standards, forward
foreign currency cantracts are utihzed and controlled by the Finance
Department and other responsible departments, interest rate swap
contracts are utilized and controlled by the Finance Department
and forward commodity contracts are utihized and controlled by
each responsible department Furthermore, departments utilizing
denvative transactions are required to report the status and resulis
of denvatve transactions to the Financial Risk Management &
Control Department for finanaal transaction, at each annual and
semi-annual yearend Consolidated subsidianes utilizing denvative
transactions have provided the operational standards individually,
according to the purpose of denvative transactions

¢ Lquidity Risk Management on Fund Raising

The Group manages its hquidity rnisk by preparing and updating
the fund management plans on a timely basis at each company

{4) Supplemental information on farr values

Fair values of financial instruments include market prices and
values calculated reasonably when there 1s no market price
Since vanable factors are incorporated n calculating the rele-
vant fair values, it may change depending on the different
assumptions The contract amounts described in Note 14
“Derivative Transactions” do not indicate the amounts of mar-
ket nsk or credit risk related to dervative transactions

2 Fair values of finanaa!l instruments

Carrying amount, farr value and unrealized gainfloss of the
financial instruments as of March 31, 2010 were as follows
Financial instruments whose fair values are not readly deter
minable are excluded from the following table

Millions of yen
Carrying amount I Far value I Unrealized gain (loss)
{1) Cash and time deposits ¥ 76,989 | ¥ 76,989 | ¥ —
(2) Notes and accounts receivable 214,118 | 214,118 | —
{3} Investment securities | | |

Shares in affihates I 90,044 | 156,182 | 66,137
Avallable-for-sale securities 133,054 | 133,054 | _

{4) Long-term loans receivable 7,673 — —_
Allowance for doubtful accounts (*1) (2,308) — —_
5,364 5,346 {(17)

Total assets ¥519,570 ¥585,690 66,119
{1) Notes and accounts payable ¥128,986 ¥128,986 ¥ —
{2) Short-term bank loans 294,866 294,866 —
{3) Current portion of bonds 20,000 20,018 18
(4) Commercial paper 9,000 9,000 —
(5) Bonds | 100,000 101,710 1,710
(6) Long-term loans payable | 372,183 373,793 1,609
Tota! liabilities ¥925,037 | ¥928,375 | ¥3,338

Dervative transactions (*2} I |

a Dernivatives to which hedge accounting is not apphed ¥ 5817 | ¥ 5,817 | ¥ —
b Dervatives to which hedge accounting 15 apphed 1,464 I (2,423) | (3,888)
Total denvative transactions ¥ 7,282 | ¥ 3393 | ¥(3,888)

B0 nTSUBKHIMATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010




I Thousands of U S dollars

I Carrying amount I Fair value I Unreahzed gan {loss}
(1) Cash and time deposits $ 827,490 $ 827,490 | s —
(2) Notes and accounts receivable 2,301,355 2,301,355 —
(3) Investment secunties
Shares in affiliates | 967,804 1,678,656 710,852
Available-for-sale secunties | 1,430,074 1,430,074 —
(4) Long-term loans recevable 82,471 —_ | —
Allowance for doubtful accounts (*1} (24,815) — | —
57,656 57,466 {190}
Total assets $5,584,382 $6,295,044 $710,661
{1) Notes and accounts payable $1,386,357 41,386,357 $ —
{2) Short-term bank loans 3,169,247 3,169,247 —_
{3) Current portion of bonds | 214,961 | 215,154 193
(4) Commercial paper | 96,732 | 96,732 | —
(5) Bonds | 1,074,806 | 1,093,191 | 18,384
(6) Long-term loans payable | 4000254 | 4017557 | 17,303
Total habilities I $9,942,359 | $9,978,240 | $ 35,881
Denvative transactions (*2) I | I
a Denvatives to which hedge accounting 1s not apphed | $ 62,524 | $ 62,524 | —
b Denvatives to which hedge accounting 15 apphed I 15,745 | (26,051) } {41,796)

Total dervative transactions |73 78269 | § 3643 $(41,796)

(* 1) Allowance for doubtful accounts speafically recogmized on fong-term loans recevable 1s deducted
(*2) Recevables and payables ansing from derivative transactions are presented in net Met payables are presented in parenthesis

Notes

1 Calculation method of fair values of financial instruments and securities and dervative transactions are as follows

Assets

(1) Cash and time deposits and {2) Notes and accounts recewvable
The fair values approximate book values because of their short-term matunties Therefore, the fair values are recognized using
book values

(3} Investment securities
The far values of equity securities are determined based on the market price The information of secunties categonzed by hold-
ing purposes 15 described at Note 12 “Securities *

{4} Long-term loans recewable
The fair values of long-term loans recevables are determmed based on the total amount of the prinaipal and interest discounted
by an assumed interest rate if the similar of loans were newly made

Liabilities

{1} Notes and accounts payable, (2) Short-term bank loans and (4) Commercial paper
The fair values approximate book values because of their short-term maturities Therefore, the fair values are recognized using
book values

{3) Current portion of bonds and (5) Bonds
The fair values of these habilities are determined based on the market price

{6} Long-term loans payable
The far values of lang-term loans payable are determined by discounting the aggregated values of the principal and interest
using an assumed interest rate if the same type of loans were newly made

Derivative financial mstruments
The information of dervative transaction is described at Note 14 "Dervative Transactions”
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2 Finanaial instruments whose fair values are extremely difficult 1o calculate

Carrying amount

Category l Millions of yen l Thousands of U S dollars
Shares in affihates (unlisted equity securities) | ¥45,236 ' $486,208
Avallable-for-sale securities {unlisted equity securrties) | ¥12,581 I $135,225

It 15 extremely difficult to calculate their fair values because there 1s no market pnce Therefore, these items are not included in "(3)
Investment securrties "

3 Redemption schedule of monetary assets with contractual matunties

Mitlions of yen

Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 41toSyears  More than 5 years
Cash and time depaosits ¥ 76,989 ¥ — ¥— ¥ — ¥ — ¥ —
Notes and accounts recevable 214,118 -— — — — —_
Long-term loans receivable — 114 47 38 35 7,437
Total ¥291,107 ¥114 ¥47 ¥38 ¥35 ¥7.437

Thousands of US doflars

Less than 1 year 110 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4to5years  Mare than 5 years
Cash and time deposits $ 827,490 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ -
Notes and accounts recevable 2,301,355 —_ — — —_ —
Long-term loans recevable — 1,227 515 412 376 79,940
Total $3,128,846 $1.227 $515 $412 $376 $79,940

4 Repayment schedule of short-term bank loans, commercial paper, bonds and long-term loans payable

I Mitlions of yen

' Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 4toSyears  More than 5 years
Short-term bank loans | waga866 ¥ — ¥  — ¥ — ¥ — ¥ =
Commercial paper 9,000 — — — e —
Bonds 20,000 20,000 40,000 — 40,000 —_
Long-term loans payable — 106,463 65,150 87,844 54,032 58,692
Total ¥323,866 ¥126,463 ¥105,150 ¥87,844 ¥94,032 ¥58,692

Thousands of U S dollars

Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years 41to Syears  More then 5 years
Short-term bank loans $3,169,247 § — % -~ 3 — 3 — 3 —
Commercial paper 96,732 — — — -— —
Bonds 214,961 214,961 429,922 — 429,922 —
Long-term loans payable — 1,144,276 700,242 944,159 580,740 630,835
Total $3,480,941 $1,359,237 $1,130,165 $944,159  $1,010,662 $630,835

52 MITSUBISHI MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 201G



Note 14 Derivative Transactions

Demvative finanaal instruments currently utiized by the Company
and its consolidated subsidianes include forward foreign currency
contracts, interest rate swap contracts, currency swap contracts,
forward commodity contracts and commodity price swap contracts

The Company utilizes forward foreign currency contracts to
hedge the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on recenables
and payables, and on advance payments for purchase of ores

The Company enters into interest rate swap contracts to
reduce exposure to adverse movements In Interest rates, and to
lower finance costs on debts

The Company also utihizes forward commodity contracts to
hedge the impact of future price fluctuations of nonferrous
metal inventories and sold gold bullion deposited from custom-
ers under consuming bailment named “My Gold Plan "

some consohidated subsidiaries utihze forward foreign cur-
rency contracts and interest swap contracts to hedge the impact
of foreign currency fluctuations on foreign currency receivables
and payables, and forward commodity contracts and commodi-
ty price swap contracts to hedge the impact of price fluctua-
tions of nonferrous metal inventonies

The counterparties to those denvative contracts are japanese
and overseas companies and financal institutions wath high credit
standing, and therefore, 1t 1s anticipated that those counterparties
will be able to fully satisfy ther obligations under the contracts

The Company has "Rules on Utilizing Derivative Transactions” in
its “Operation Standards” applicable to the whole Company in
addition, there are specific nules and standards for dervative trans-
actions prowided for each business unit based on its type of busi-
ness In accordance with the authority and hmits provided in these
rules and standards, forward foreign currency contracts are utihzed

and controlled by the Finance Department and other responsible
departments, interest rate swap contracts are utihzed and con-
trolled by the Finance Department and forward commodity con-
tracts are utiized and controlled by each responsible department
Furthermore, departments utiizing dernivative transactions are
required to report the status and results of derwvative transactions
to the Financial Risk Management & Control Department for finan-
cial transaction, at each annual and sermi-annual year-end

Consolidated subsidiaries utilizing dervative transactions
have provided the operational standards indvidually, according
to the purpose of derivative transactions

The Company evaluates hedge effectveness by comparing
the cumulative changes in cash flows or the changes in farr
value of the hedged items wath the corresponding changes in
the hedging denwvative instruments Furthermore, the Company
penodically controls the transaction volume of forward com-
modity contracts in order to balance them with hedged nonfer-
rous metal inventones, and to evaluate their hedge effectiveness
at each annual and semt-annual year-end

As noted in Note 13 “Financia! Instruments,” the Company
adopted ASB) Statement No 10 “Accounting Standard for
Financial Statements” and ASB) Guidance No 19 "Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Financal Instruments and Refated
Disclosures “ The accounting standard and the guidance are
applicable to financial instruments and related disclosures at the
end of the fiscal years ending on or after March 31, 2010,
therefore, the required information is disclosed only for 2010

As of March 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company and its consol-
dated subsidianes had outstanding denvative transactions as follows

1 Derwative transactions to which hedge accounting 1s not apphed at March 31, 2010

(1) Currency related derivatives

Milions of yen

Contract amount due

Contract amount after one year Far value Gain {Loss}
Transactions other than market transactions
Forward foreign exchange contracts
SellUS dollars ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥—
Other — — — —
BuyUS dollars 0 — 0 0
Other — —_ —_ —
Total —_ — —_ ¥0
Thousands of U 'S dollars
Contract amount due
Contract amount after one year Far value Gain {Loss}
Transactions other than market transactions
Forward foreign exchange contracts
SellU S dollars $— — $— $—
Other — — — —
Buy U S dollars 2 —_ {2) (2)
Other | — — — _
Total | — — — $(2)

Note Fair value 15 determined based on the price obtained from financial tnstitutions
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{2) Interest rate related dervatives
Not applicable
(3) Commodity related dervatives
Millions of yen
Contract amount due
Contract amount after one year Fair value Gain {Loss)
Transactions other than market transactions
Nonferrous metals forward
Sell ¥ 32 ¥— ¥ (7 ¥ (N
Buy 54,201 — 5,824 5.824
Nonferrous metal commodity price swap
Pay fixed pnice, receive floating price — — — —
Total 1 — — — ¥5,817
l Thousands of U'S dollars
I Contract amount due
Contract amount after one year Far value Gain {Loss)
Transactions other than market transactions
Nonferraus metals forward
Sell $ 345 $— $ (76) $ (76)
Buy 582,559 —_ 62,603 62,603
Nonferrous metal commodity price swap
Pay fixed price, recewve floating price — —_ — —
Total — — — $62,527
Note
Farr value 15 determined based on the price obtained from financial institutions
2 Denvative transactions to which hedge accounting 1s applied at March 31, 2010
{1) Currency related derivatives
I Millons of yen
| Contract amount due
Hedge accounting method Transaction type Major hedged items Contract amount after one year Fair value
Forward foreign exchange contracts i
sellU'S dollars Accounts |7 y46,601 ¥— ¥(1,195)
Principle method Other receivable, 499 — (3)
accounts
Buy U S dollars payable 3,176 — 127
Other 12 — (1)
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Hedged items are sell US dollars Accounlts ¥10,395 ¥
T Ve
pated vy el N A——
rates Buy US dollars payable | 859 —
Other I — —
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Thousands of U S dollars

Contract amount due

Hedge accounting method Transaction type Major hedged tems Contract amount after one year Fair value
Forward foreign exchange contracts
SellUS dollars AC(OUS:S $500,873 $— $(12,844)
recewable,
Principle method Other accounts 5,370 — (36)
Buy U S dollars payable 34,138 — 1,373
Other 133 — (14)
Forward foreign exchange contracts
Hedged items are sellUS dollars Accounts $111,735 —
translated using recewvable,
forward contract Other accounts 22,650 — Note 2
rates Buy US dollars payable 9,232 —
Other — —

Notes

1 Fair value is determined based on the pnice obtained from financial institutions
2 Far value of dervatwes 15 included in the farr values of the related accounts recewvable and accounts payable, since accounts
receivable and accounts payable in foreign currencies as hedged items are translated into Japanese yen using the forward con-

tract rates

(2} Interest rate related dervatives

Mill:ons of yen
Contract
Major hedged Contract amount due
Hedge accounting method Transaction type tems amount after one year  Fair value
Interest income or expense on the  Interest rate swap contracts Lona-term
hedged tems reflects net amount to be Recewve fixed rate, pay floating rate d%bt ¥ 1,000 ¥ 1,000 ¥ 1
paid or receved under the defvatives pay fixed rate, receive floating rate 190,374 162,969  (3,913)
I Thousands of U S dollars
Contract
Major hedged Contract amount due
Hedge accounting method Transaction type tems amount after one year  Fair value
Interest income or expense on the  [nterest rate swap contracts Lona-term
hedged items reflects net amount to be Recewve fixed rate, pay floating rate dgebt $ 10748¢ 10,748 $% 14
paid or receved under the derivatives Pay fixed rate, receive floating rate 2,046,152 1,751,601 (42,060)
Note
Fair value ts determined based on the price obtained from financial institutions
(3) Commodity related derivatives
I Millions of yen
Contract
Contract amount due
Hedge accounting method Transaction type Major hedged tems amount after one year  Fair value
Nonferrous metals forward A X bl |
ccounts recewvable,
Prnciple method Sell accounts payable I ¥60,731 ¥ ¥ 135
Buy | 55577 454 2,424
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Hedge accounting method Transaction type

Corporate Governance ISR Promaotion Structure Mancgement

Financal Section

l Thousands of U S dollars

Contract
Contract amount due
Major hedged items amount after one year  Farr value

Nonferrous metals forward

Principle method Sell

$652,744 $§ —  $ 1,455

Buy

Accounts recevable, I
I

accounts payable
597,346 4,884 26,061

Note

Fair value 1s determined based on the price obtained from financial institutions

3 Denwative Transactions as of March 31, 2009
{1) Forward Foreign Currency Contracts

At March 31, 2009

Mitlions of yen
Contract amounts in yen equivalent
Due wathin Due after Unrealized gains
Ohe year_ one year Total Fair value {losses)
Forward foreign exchange contracts

SellUS dollars ¥27,693 ¥ — ¥27,693 ¥{947) ¥(947)
Other | 652 — 652 (16) (16)

Buy US dollars 1,070 2,061 3,132 269 269
Other 226 — 226 (7) {7)

Total | ¥(702)

Fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is stated based
on the market price

The above information does not include forward foreign
exchange contracts and currency swap contracts executed to
hedge existing foreign currency recewables or payables

(2) Interest Rate Contracts

At March 31, 2009

Forward foreign exchange contracts shown above are primar-
ily utihized to hedge the impact of foreign currency fluctuations
on advance payments for the purchase of ores, and unrealized
gains or losses are deferred until the related gains or losses on
the hedged rtems are recogrized

Millions of yen
Notional amounts
Due within Due after
one year one year Total Fair value Unrealized losses

Interest rate swap contracts

Pay floating rate, receive fixed rate ¥ — ¥ 1000 ¥ 1,000 ¥ (5 ¥ {5

Pay fixed rate, receive floating rate 29,687 122,858 152,545 (2,498) (2,498)
Total ¥(2,504)

Fair value 1s stated based on the current offer price from finan-
aal institutions

With respect to interest rate swap contracts used as a hedge
and meeting certain hedging criteria, the net amounts to be

56  MTSUBISH MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010

paid or recewed under the interest rate swap contract are
added to or deducted from the interest on the habilities for
which the swap contract was executed, and the information for
such contracts 15 included in the above tables



(3) Commodity Contracts

At March 31, 2009

Milhons of yen
Contract amounts
Due within Due after
one year one year Total Fair value Unrealized losses

Nonferrous metals forward

Sell ¥35,462 ¥ 74 ¥35,537 ¥(1,610) ¥(1,610)

Buy 85,003 3,541 88,545 (4,605) {4,605)
Nonferrous metal commodity price swap

Pay fixed price, recewe floating price 756 — 796 | {179) {179}
Total ¥(6,395)

Fair value 1s stated based on the market price

Unrealized gains or losses on forward commodity contracts,
and commodity price swap contracts which are utihzed to
hedge future price fluctuations of nonferrous metals, are

Note 15 Segment Information

deferred until refated losses or gans on the hedged items are
recognized

The Company does not apply the hedge accounting to the
forward commaodity contracts for gold bullion

{a) The Company and rts consohdated subsicharies operate pri-
manly in the production and sales of cement, metals, advanced
materials & tools, electronic materials & components, alumi-
num, and others Cement compnses cement, secondary cement
product, ready-mixed concrete, and building matenals, metals
comprise copper smelting {copper Ingots, gold, silver, sulfuric,
etc), and processed copper products, advanced matenals &
tools comprise superhard tools, high-performance alloy prod-
ucts, and diamond tools, electronic matenals & components

Year ended March 31, 2010

compnse advanced maternials, chemical products, electronic
device products, and polycrystalhne silicon, atuminum comprises
aluminum cans, rolled aluminum products, and processed alu-
minum products, and others comprise engineertng, nuclear
energy, precious metals, environment & recycle related prod-
ucts, and real estate

Business segment Information for the years ended March 31,
2010, 2009 and 2008 was as follows

| Millions of yen
| oo oo,
Cement Metals matenals & tools components Aluminum Others Total expenses L onsoldated
Sales |
Unaffilated customers |¥163.084 ¥421,938 ¥ 84,351 ¥ 57,826 ¥127,037 ¥265,209 ¥1,119,448 ¥ — ¥1,119,448
Intersegment ] 1,348 84,097 16,718 4,959 1,438 49,483 158,045 (158,045) —
Total I 164,432 506,035 101,070 62,786 128475 314,692 1,277,493 (158,045) 1,119,448
Operating expenses l 155,504 500,174 106,281 60,177 125,427 309,833 1,257,399 (150,631) 1,106,768
Operating profit (loss) IV 8928 ¥ 5860 ¥ (5211) ¥ 2608 ¥ 3048 ¥ 4859 ¥ 20,094 ¥ (7413)¥ 12,680
Assets I¥338,365 ¥516,672 ¥153,099 ¥182,530 ¥150,292 ¥329,302 ¥1,670,262 ¥ 156,157 ¥1,826,420
Depreciation |¥ 15,213 ¥ 19958 ¥ 9,156 ¥ 6,680 ¥ 9271 ¥ 3097 ¥ B3377 ¥ 3418 ¥ 66,79
Capital expenditures |¥ 9038 ¥ 15,738 ¥ 4,322 ¥ 22622 ¥ 7371 ¥ 2031 ¥ 61124 ¥ 5554 ¥ 66,679
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Year ended March 31, 2009
Millrons of yen
Electronk Elwmination and
Advanced rnateraks & corporate assets or
Lement Metals malenats & tooks __ components Aluminum Others Toral expenses Consolilated
Sales
Unaffihated customers | ¥198,701 ¥530,420 ¥128,153 ¥ 65,968 ¥151,742 ¥349,127 ¥1,424,114 ¥ — ¥1,424,114
Intersegment 2,243 70,320 17,877 3,734 1,290 53,371 148,838 (148,838} —
Total I 200,945 600,740 146,031 69,703 153,032 402,499 1,572,952 (148,838) 1,424,114
QOperating expenses | 189,401 590,717 141,785 61,177 156,286 392,293 1,531,661 (142,681) 1,388,979
Qperating profit (Joss) ¥ 11,543 ¥ 10,023 ¥ 4,246 ¥ 8,525 ¥ (3,253) ¥ 10,205 ¥ 41,291 ¥ (6,156) ¥ 35,134
Assets ¥338,906 ¥367,561 ¥152,164 ¥194,472 ¥153,831 ¥312,395 ¥1519,333 ¥ 212,669 ¥1,732,003
Depreciation ¥ 15825 ¥ 19,665 ¥ 10,269 ¥ 6659 ¥ 959 ¥ 4,174 ¥ 66,190 ¥ 3,071 ¥ 69,261
Caprtal expenditures ¥ 12,750 ¥ 16,906 ¥ 10,031 ¥ 17544 ¥ B617 ¥ 4953 ¥ 70803 ¥ 3448 ¥ 74,252
Year ended March 31, 2008
Muillens of yen
Electromic Elmination and
Advanced matenals & COfporate assets of
Cement Metals materials & tools components Adarnnurm Others Total expensas Comsolidated
Sales
Unaffikated customers | ¥185,074 ¥684,497 ¥150,040 ¥ 91,759 ¥169,143 ¥378,771 ¥1,659,286 ¥ — ¥1,659,286
Intersegment 1,687 115,198 20,775 3,957 1,332 69,550 212,511 (212,511) —
Total 186,772 799,695 170,816 95716 170475 448,321 1,871,797 (212,511) 1,659,286
Qperating expenses | 172,846 753,641 151,504 81,381 165,144 438,727 1,763,246 (204,107) 1,559,139
Operating profit |¥ 13,925 ¥ 46,053 ¥ 19311 ¥ 14334 ¥ 5330 ¥ 9594 ¥ 108,550 ¥ (8,403) ¥ 100,146
Assets ¥268,847 ¥500,705 ¥174,760 ¥190,077 ¥164,655 ¥316,511 ¥1,615558 ¥ 240,718 ¥1,856,276
Depreciation ¥ 12,849 ¥ 15672 ¥ 8968 ¥ 5698 ¥ 10,174 ¥ 3,924 ¥ 57287 ¥ 2230 ¥ 59518
Capital expenditures ¥ 16653 ¥ 25980 ¥ 11,443 ¥ 9674 ¥ 6720 ¥ 3814 ¥ 74287 ¥ 1359 ¥ 75646
Year ended March 31, 2010
Thousands of U S dollars
Electronx Elrination and
Advanced matenals & corporate assels o
Cement Metals matenals & teols ___components Aluminum Cthers Total expenses Consolidated
Sales
Unaffiliated customers | $1,752,838 $4,535,021 § 906,619 § 621,526 $1,365,411 42,850,489 $12,031,907 § — $12,031,907

Intersegment 14,494 903,885 179,689 53,303 15456 531,849 1,698,678 (1,698,678) —
Total 1,767,332 5,438,906 1,086,308 674,829 1,380,868 3,382,339 13,730,586 (1,698,678) 12,031,907
Operating expenses 1,671,369 5,375912 1,142,319 646,790 1,348,105 3,330,114 13,514,612 (1,618,993) 11,895,619
Operating profit (loss) $ 95963 § 62993% (5601008 280394 32762 % 52225 % 2159734 (79,685)% 136,287
Assets $3,636,774 $5,553,225 $1,645522 $1,961,845 $1,615,352 $3,539,366 $17,952,086 § 1,678,395 $19,630.482

Depreciation l $ 163518 § 2145104 98411 %

71807 % 996524 33,288 § 681,187% 36742 § 717,930

Capital expenditures | $ 97,149 % 169,158 § 46460 §

243,147 § 79225 % 21,829 § 6569713 59,704 § 716,676

{1) Change in valuation methad for available-for-sale secunties

Prior to Apnl 1, 2009, fair market value of equity securities and
investment trusts with fair value classified as available-for-sale
securities had been determined based on the market price and
other information at the balance sheet date Effective from the
year ended March 31, 2010, the Company changed its method
to determine the fair market value based on the average mar-
ket price and other information during one month before the
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balance sheet date This change was made to reflect the finan-
cial position more appropriately by eliminating the impact from
the short-term market fluctuations on the net assets

Compared to the amounts that would have been reported
under the previous accounting methad, the effects of the
change on the segment information for the year ended March
31, 2010 were as follows




Year ended March 31, 2010

Millions of yen
| Flectromc EXmanation and
Advanced matenals & COrporate assets of
Cement Metats & ook COMPOnents Ao Others Total expEnTEs C orsokdated
Assets l ¥(39) ¥(84) ¥(7) ¥(0) ¥(33) ¥(1,789) ¥{1,954) ¥{(2,225) ¥(4,180)
Year ended March 31, 2010
Thousands of U S dotlars
l Clectronic Ebmnaton and
Advanced materals & COrporate Fssets or
Cement Metals __ matenals & tools components  __ Aluminum Cthers Toral expenses Consoldated
Assets I $(420) $(906) $(78) $(9) $(356) $(19,237) $(21,008) $(23,923) $(44,931)

In addition, prior to Apnl 1, 2009, the carrying amounts of
equity securrties and investment trusts whose fair market value
dechned significantly were wnitten down at the end of the quar-
ter without being reversed thereafter, however, effective from
the first quarter beginning on April 1, 2008, the amount of the
wnite-down was reversed in the following quarters of the same

(2) Loss on impairment

fiscal year This change was made to reflect profit and loss and
financial position at the balance sheet date more appropnately
by elminating the impact from quarterly market fluctuations

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, assets of
"Metals” increased by ¥3 million ($33 thousand)

The Company and the domestic consolidated subsidianies recognized the loss on impairment of fixed assets amounting to ¥6,600
miflion ($70,943 thousand) as other expenses in the consolidated statements of operations Consequently, the assets of each seg-

ment decreased as follows

Year ended March 31, 2010

Milltons of yen
l Hlectronic Ehmunation and
Advanced matenals & COMXrate assets or
Cement Metats matenals & wools ___Lomponents Aminum Drherg Total expenset L onsolidated
Assets I ¥(1,078)  ¥(206) ¥(774) ¥(509) ¥(442) ¥(894) ¥(3,905) ¥(2,694) ¥(6,600)
Year ended March 31, 2010
Thousands of U S doliars
I Electronk Elmination and
Advanced matenals & LOrporate assets of
Cement Metak materlals & 1ok ¢ Alurmnum Qthery. Total Bxpenses Consolidated
Assets I $(11,591) $(2,223) 4%(8,328) $(5 473) $(4,755) $(9,609) $(41,981) $(28,961) $(70,943)

{3) Change in useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Due to the revised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective Apr!
1, 2008, the Company and the domestic consohdated subsid-
1anes have applied the revised useful lives mainly to machinery
and equipment

Year ended March 31, 2009

Compared to the amounts that would have been reported
under the previous accounting method, the effects of the
change on the segment infarmation for the year ended March
31, 2009 were as follows

Millions of yen
I Dectron Ehmnation and
Advanced matenals & COMpOrate Bisets or
Metals mm\il_s & tools LOMPONSNTS Aksmunum Othery Total expenses Consobdated
Operating expenses I ¥ 1 101 ¥ 2,466 ¥ 663 ¥158 ¥1,288 ¥58 ¥5736 ¥3 ¥5739
Operating profit I ¥(1,101) ¥(2,466) ¥(663) ¥(158) ¥(1,288) ¥(58) ¥(5,736) ¥(3) ¥(5739)
Assets I ¥{1,121) ¥(2,487) ¥(663) ¥(158) ¥(1,288) ¥(58) ¥(5,778) ¥{4)  ¥(5,783)
Depreciation | ¥1121 ¥ 2487 ¥ 663 ¥ 158 ¥ 1,288 ¥ 58 ¥5,778 ¥4 ¥5783
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{4) Apphcation of the “Practical Solution on Unification of
Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsichanes for
Consclidated Financial Statements”

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company

has applied the *Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting

Policies Appled to Foreign Subsidianes for Consolidated

Year ended March 31, 2009

Corpo ate Gavernance TSR Promoban Structure Managornent Finanial Secbon

Financial Statements” { “PITF No 18"}, and has made necessary
adjustmenits on the consolidated accounting process

Compared to the amounts that would have been reported
under the previous accounting method, the effects of the
change on the segment information for the year ended March
31, 2009 were as follows

Millions of yen
‘ [ Fhrtargton and
Advanced materals & COrporate assets o
Metah b & took components Akamenum Others Total expenses Consokdated

Operating expenses | ¥ 2 013 ¥(1,009) ¥ 34 ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥ 1,038 ¥— ¥1,038
Operating profit | ¥(2,013) ¥ 1,009 ¥ (34) ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥(1,038) ¥— ¥(1,038)
Assets | ¥(4,342) ¥(4,043) ¥(280) ¥— ¥— ¥— ¥(8,666) ¥— ¥{8,666)
Depreciation | ¥ — ¥ 977 ¥ 53 ¥— ¥— ¥ ¥ 1,030 Yo ¥ 1,030

(5) Change m depreciation following the amendments of the
Corporation Tax Law of Japan

Due to the revised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective Apnil

1, 2007, the method of depreciation applied to property, plant

and equipment acquired on or after Apnl 1,2007 was revised

Compared to the amounts that would have been reported
under the previous accounting method, the effects of the
change on the segment information for the year ended March
31, 2008 were as follows

Year ended March 31, 2008

Millions of yen
Electronsc Eherunaton and
Advarced matenals & cOrporate assets or

Cement Metals matena’s & tools components Aluminum Others. Total SXDNSES { onsolidategd
Operating expenses | ¥ 240 ¥ 191 ¥ 335 ¥ 113 ¥ 30 ¥ 70 ¥ 902 ¥ 58 ¥ 961
Operating profit ¥(240) ¥(111) ¥(335) ¥(113) ¥(30) ¥(70) ¥(902) ¥(58) ¥{961)
Assets ¥(245) ¥(111) ¥(335) ¥(113) ¥{(30) ¥(72} ¥(309) ¥(58) ¥(967)
Depreciation | ¥ 245 ¥ 111 ¥ 335 ¥ 113 ¥ 30 ¥72 ¥ 908 ¥ 53 ¥ 967

Due to the revised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective Apnl
1, 2007, the salvage values of property, plant and equipment
acquired before Apnl 1, 2007 are additionally depreciated to
their nominal values equally over five years commencing from
the years immediately after the year in which the depreciated

bases have reached 5% of their acquisition costs

Compared to the amounts that would have been reported
under the previous accounting method, the effects of the
change on the segment information for the year ended March
31, 2008 were as follows

Year ended March 31, 2008

Milhons of yen
I Electronc Elvmination and
Advanced materials & corporate assets of
Cement Metals matenals & toots COMPONENts Alumirum Cthers Total expenses Consofidated
Operating expenses | ¥1,242  ¥1,257 ¥ 604 ¥ 294 ¥ 413 ¥382 ¥4,195 ¥55 ¥4250
Operating profit | "¥(1,242) ¥(1,257)  ¥(604)  ¥(294)  ¥(413)  ¥(382) ¥(4,195) ¥(55)  ¥(4,250)
Assets I ¥(1,321) ¥(1,259) ¥(604) ¥(294) ¥{(416) ¥(384) ¥(4,281) ¥(57) ¥(4,339)
Depreciation I ¥1,321% ¥1,259 ¥ 604 ¥ 294 ¥ 416 ¥ 384 ¥4,281 ¥57 ¥4339
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{6) Change n the estimated useful lives and salvage vatue in the
“Alummum*” segment

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2008, Unwversal Can

Corporation, a consolidated subsidiary, changed the estimated

useful lives and its salvage value of some tangible fixed assets

upon an avallable time and recent disposal value Pnior penod

adjustment of the depreciation based on this change 1s included

n depreciation in segment information

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, assets n
the "Aluminum” segment decreased by ¥1,400 million and
depreciation increased by the same amount for the year ended
March 31, 2008

{b} Geographic segment information for the years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was as follows

Year ended March 31, 2010

I Mutlions of yen
I Ehmmation and
Lorporate assets or
Japan US A Europe Asia Others Total XPROSES Corsoldatad
Sales |
Unaffiliated customers l ¥ 969,830 ¥ 69,464 ¥11,638 ¥ 65,888 ¥2,626 ¥1,119,448 ¥ — ¥1,119,448
Intersegment | 17,245 4,324 26 189,315 —_ 210,911 (210,911} —
Total I 987,076 73,789 11,664 255,203 2,626 1,330,360 (210,911} 1,119,448
Operating expenses I 979,819 68,893 11,602 248,977 1,942 1,311,236 (204,467) 1,106,768
Operating profit |¥ 7,256 ¥ 4895 ¥ 61 ¥ 6,226 ¥ 683 ¥ 19,124 ¥ (6444) ¥ 12,680
Assets |¥1.418.739 ¥145,307 ¥17,012 ¥132,753 ¥5,825 ¥1,719,638 ¥ 106,781 ¥1,826,420
Year ended March 31, 2009
I Milliens of yen
ElTenation and
COMpOrate assats of
Japan US A furope ASid Qthers Total LXPENSES Conschidated
Sales |
Unaffiliated customers ¥1,167,986 ¥ 97,369 ¥22,234 ¥132,507 ¥4,015 ¥1,424114 ¥ — ¥1,424114
Intersegment 26,715 8,248 268 121,596 — 156,829 (156,829) —
Total 1,194,702 105,618 22,502 254,104 4,015 1,580,943 (156,829) 1,424,114
Operating expenses 1,178,513 93,262 20,230 245,443 2,300 1,539,751 (150,771) 1,388,979
Operatmgproflt ¥16,188 ¥ 12,355 ¥ 2272 ¥ 8,661 ¥1,714 ¥ 41,192 ¥ (6058)¥ 35134
Assets | ¥1,310,092 ¥182,221 ¥20,308 ¥ 96,730 ¥3,742 ¥1,613,096 ¥ 118,906 ¥1,732,003
Year ended March 31, 2008
Millions of yen
Ebmenation and
corporate assets of
Japan USA Europe Asia Others Total £xpenses LConsohdated
Sales
Unaffiliated customers ¥1,401,417 ¥ 83,879 ¥22,166 ¥149,449 ¥2,373 ¥1,659,286 ¥ — ¥1,659,286
Intersegment 31,716 10,100 275 216,361 — 258,454 (258,454) —
Total 1,433,133 93,980 22,442 365,810 2,373 1,917,740 (258,454) 1,659,286
Operating expenses 1,358,120 79,376 20,265 349,648 2,087 1,809,497 {250,358) 1,559,139
Operating proflt ¥ 7S5013¥ 14603 ¥ 2177 ¥ 16,162 ¥ 285 ¥ 108,242 ¥ (8,095 ¥ 100,146
Assets ¥1,382,669 ¥111,381  ¥56,564 ¥119,366 ¥3,586 ¥1,680,568 ¥ 175,708 ¥1,856,276
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Year ended March 31, 2010
Thousands of US dollars
Ekrmunaton and
Jagan S A Europe Asia Orthers Total cww!;:::;m * Lonsolkated

Sales

Unaffiliated customers $10,423,802 § 746,614 $125089 § 708,175 $28,224 $12,031,907 § - $12,031,907

Intersegment 185,360 46,475 284 2,034,772 — 2,266,893 (2,266,893) —

Total 10,609,163 793,089 125,374 2,742,948 28,224 14,298,801 (2,266,893) 12,031,907

Operating expenses 10,531,168 740,476 124,709 2,676,023 20873 14,093,251 (2,197,631) 11,895,619
Operating profit IS 77,994 § 52613 § 66545 66924 §$ 7351 § 205549% (69,261) $ 136,287
Assets |$15,248,705 $1,561,776  $182,849 $1,426,842 $62,613 $18,482,787 $ 1,147,695 $19,630,482

{1) Change in valuation method for availlable-for-sale securities
Prior to Apnl 1, 2009, fair market value of equity securities and
investment trusts with fair value classified as avallable-for-sale
secunties had been determined based on the market price and
other information at the balance sheet date Effective from the
year ended March 31, 2010, the Company changed its method
to determine the fair market value based on the average mar-
ket price and other information dunng one month before the
balance sheet date This change was made to reflect the finan-
aial position more appropniately by ehminating the impact from
the short-term market fluctuations on the net assets

Compared to the amounts that would have been reported
under the previous accounting method, assets of “Japan” and
“Ehrmination and corporate assets or expenses” decreased by
¥1,954 million ($21,008 thousand) and ¥2,225 muillion {($23,923
thousand}, respectively

in addition, pnor to Apnl 1, 2009, the carrying amounts of
equity securities and investment trusts whose fair market value
declined significantly were written down at the end of the quar-
ter without being reversed thereafter, however, effective from
the first quarter beginning on Apri 1, 2009, the amount of the
write-down was reversed in the following quarters of the same
fiscal year This change was made to reflect profit and loss and
financial posrtion at the balance sheet date more appropriately
by eliminating the impact from quarterly market fluctuations

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting methed, assets of
“Japan® increased by ¥3 million ($33 thousand)

Year ended March 31, 2009

(2) Change in useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Due to the revised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective Apnl
1, 2008, the Company and the domestic consolidated subsid-
1anes have applied the revised usefu! ives manly to machinery
and equipment

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, operat-
ing expenses in the “Japan” segment increased by ¥5,736 mil-
lion, operating profit decreased by ¥5,736 million, assets
decreased by ¥5,778 million, operating expenses for the
“Ehmination and Corporate Assets or Expenses” increased by
¥3 million, operating profit decreased by ¥3 million, and assets
decreased by ¥4 mulion for the year ended March 31, 2009

(3) Application of the "Practical Solution on Unification of
Accounting Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for
Consolidated Financial Statements”

Effective from the year ended March 31, 2008, the Company

has apphed the “Practical Solutton on Unification of Accounting

Polictes Apphed to Foreign Subsidiaries for Consolidated

Financial Statements” ("PITF No 18"), and has made necessary

adjustments on the consolidated accounting process

Compared to the amounts that would have been reported
under the previous accounting method, the effects of the
change on the segment information for the year ended March

31, 2009 were as follows

| Mitlions of yen
| Ehernaton and
corporate assets of
Japan Usa Europe Asa Others Total expenses Consolidated
Qperating expenses | ¥— ¥2,013 ¥ 83 ¥1,058) ¥— ¥ 1,038 ¥— ¥ 1,038
Operating profit I — (2,013)  (83) 1058  — (1,038) — (1,038)
Assets ' ¥— ¥(4,342) ¥(8,938) ¥4,614 ¥— ¥(8,666) ¥— ¥(8,666)

{4} Change in depreciation following the amendments of the
Corporation Tax Law of Japan

Due to the revised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective Apnl

1, 2008, the method of depreciation appled to property, plant

and equipment acquired on or after Apnl 1, 2007 was revised
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Conseqguently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, operat-
ing expenses for the *Japan” segment increased by ¥902 mil-
hon, operating profit decreased by ¥902 million, assets
decreased by ¥309 million, operating expenses for the



“Elrmination and Corporate Assets or Expenses” increased by
¥58 million and operating profit and assets decreased by the
same amounts for the year ended March 31, 2008

Due to the rewised Corporation Tax Law of Japan, effective
Apnil 1, 2007, the salvage values of property, plant and equip-
ment acquired before April 1, 2007 are additionally depreciated
to their nominal values equally over five years commencing
from the years immediately after the year in which the depreci-
ated bases have reached 5% of their acquisition costs

Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, operating
expenses in the “Japan” segment ncreased by ¥4,195 mullion,
operating profit decreased by ¥4,195 millton, assets decreased by
¥4,281 million, operating expenses for the “Ehmination and

Corporate Assets or Expenses” increased by ¥55 million, operat-
ing profit decreased by ¥SS million, and assets decreased by ¥57
milkon for the year ended March 31, 2008

(5) Change in the estimated useful lives and salvage value in the
“Japan” segrnent
Effective from the year ended March 31, 2008, Universal Can
Corporatton, a consolidated subsidiary, changed the estimated
useful hives and its salvage value of some property, ptant and
equipment upon an availlable time and recent disposal value
Consequently, compared to the amounts that would have
been reported under the previous accounting method, assets in
the “Japan” segment decreased by ¥1,400 million for the year
ended March 31, 2008

{¢) Overseas sales by geographic area for the years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were as follows

Year ended March 31, 2010

l Millions of yen

I UsA Europe Asla Others Total
Overseas sales | “ves768  w¥sa012  ¥263141  ¥7.867 ¥ 393790
Cansolidated net sales | 1,119,448
Percentaqe of overseas sales to consohdated net sales | 6 1% 4 8% 23 5% 07% 352%
Year ended March 31, 2009

I Milltons of yen

I UsaA Europe Asia QOthers Total
Overseas sales | ¥99,597 ¥44 960 ¥269,104 ¥7,688 ¥ 421,351
Consolidated net sales I 1,424,114
Percentage of overseas sales to consolidated net sales | 7 0% 32% 18 9% 05% 29 6%
Year ended March 31, 2008

| Milhions of yen

l USA Europe Asia Others Total
Overseas sales l ¥93 080 ¥26,872 ¥447,270 ¥6,539 ¥ 573,763
Consolidated net sales l 1,659,286
Percentage of overseas sales to consolidated net sales I 5 6% 16% 27 0% 0 4% 34 6%
Year ended March 31, 2010

| Thousands of US dollars

l Usa Europe Asia Others Total
Overseas sales | T$739130  $580,527 $2.828,266  $84.565 § 4,232,489
Consolidated net sales | 12,031,907
Percentage of overseas sales to consolidated net sales ] 6 1% 4 8% 23 5% 07% 352%
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Note 16 Revaluation Reserve for Land

Corporate Governanen TSR Promaotion Structure Manogernent Financal Saction

Pursuant to Article 2, Paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of the Enforcement
Ordinance for the Law concerning Revaluation Reserve for Land
(the “Revaluation Law"), effective on March 31, 1998, and to
the partial revision to this law on March 31, 2001, the Company
and the certain consolidated subsidiaries revalued their own
lands for business at fair value The related unrealized gain, net
of income taxes and minonty interests, was directly credited to
“Revaluation reserve for land” in net assets m the consoldated
balance sheet, and the applicable income tax effect was record-
ed as “Deferred income taxes on revaluation reserve for land”

in habilities in the consolidated balance sheet When such land
15 sold, the revaluation reserve for land 1s reversed and credited
to the retained earmings

According to the Revaluation Law, the Company and its con-
solidated subsidiaries are not permitted to revalue the fand at
any time even if fair value of the land declines Such unrecorded
revaluation losses at March 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to
¥27,377 million ($294,260 thousand) and ¥30,231 million,
respectively

Note 17 Notes to the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(a) Cash reconcilation between the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

Thousands of
Milhons of yen U S dollars

2010 | 2009 2008 2010
Cash and time deposits ¥76,989 t ¥98,497 ¥109,701 $827,490
Less term deposits with maturities extending more
than three months (444) (539) (341) (4,777)
Restricted cash (235) | (176) _ (2,536)
Cash and cash equivalents ¥76,309 I ¥97,780 ¥109,360 $820,176

(b) New consolidated subsidianies due to the acquisition of
shares in the year ended March 31, 2010

Diamet Corporation (formerly, Mitsubishi Matenals PMG

Corporation), PM Techno Corporation and Diamet Klang

Malaysia Sdn, Bhd (formerly, PMG Klang 5dn, Bhd ), which

had been affihates accounted for by the equity method, became

new consohdated subsidiaries of the Company due to the add:-
tional acquisttion of shares in the year ended March 31, 2010
At the start of therr consolidation, @ summary of their assets
and liabilities, the acquisition cost of shares and the payment
for acquisition were as follows

Thousands of
Milligns of yen LS dollars
Current assets ¥ 8977 $ 96,486
Fixed assets 11,297 121,426
Current hiabthihes {14,883) {159,968)
Long-term liabilitres (1,185) (12,743)
Negative goodwill (389) {(4,187)
Appraisal value of shares acquired 3,815 41,012
Shares of consolidated subsidiaries held by the consolidated subsidiaries acquired {312) (3,355)
Acquisttron cost of shares 3,503 37,656
Cash and cash equivalents of the acquired companies {1,081) (11,622)
Net payment for acquisition | ¥ 2,422 $ 26,033

{c} Matenal nonmonetary transactions for the year ended March 31, 2010

(e

Mitsubishi Cable Industnies, Ltd (MCI), which was an affiliate
accounted for by the equity method, Mitsubishi Cable Industries
Sales, Ltd and Ryouse Systems Ltd which were MCI's subsid-
1aries, became new consolidated subsidiaries of the Company
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due to the additional acquisition of shares by share exchange in
the year ended March 31, 2010 At the start of their consolida-
tion, a summiary of their assets and habilities was follows




I Thousands of
Millions of yen

| U S dollars
Current assets | ¥ 47,156 | $ 506,344
Fixed assets 39,003 | 419,216
Goodwill 5934 | 63,786
Total assets 92,095 | 989,847
Current hiabilities (59.454) | (639,025)
Long-termn habilities (22,494) | {241,774)
Total liabilities ¥(81,949) | $(880,800)

Current assets include cash and cash equivalents in the amount
of ¥7,696 million ($82,726 thousand) at the start of consolida-
tion, which are recognized as “Proceeds from purchase of

{0)-2
Share exchange with MCI

Resulting from Issuance of new stocks
Increase in capital surplus
Increase in treasury stock

Resulting from Exchange treasury stock to subsidianes’ share
Decrease In capital surplus
Decrease In treasury stock

(d) New consolidated subsidiaries due to the acguisition of
shares in the year ended March 31, 2009

Robertson’s became new consolidated subsidiaries of the

Company due to the additional acquisition of shares in the year

investments in subsidiaries resulttng in change in scope of con-
solidation” in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows” for
the year ended March 31, 2010

¥7,489 million ($80,501 thousand)
¥3 mulhion (340 thousand}

¥2,361 rmullion {$25,382 thousand)
¥4,028 million (343,295 thousand)

ended March 31, 2009 At the start of their consohidation, sum-
mary of their assets and liabiliies, the acquisition cost of shares,
and the payment for an acquisition were as follows

I Milliens of yen
Current assets ¥ 11,136
Fixed assets 51,306
Goodwill 52,169
Current liabilities {18,829)
Long-term habiities {(424)
Minority interests {2,539}
Acquisttion cost of shares 92,819
Carrying value under the equity method (5,846)
Additional acquisition cost of shares 86,972
Cash and cash equivalents of the acquired companies {313)
Unpaid portion of acquisition cost | (43,775)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation | 729
Net payment for acquisition | ¥ 43,613

{e) Material nonmonetary transactions for the year ended March 31, 2008
Share exchange with Mitsubishi Shindoh Co, Lttd and Sambo Copper Alloy Co , Ltd

Resulting from Issuance of new stocks
Increase in capital surplus
Increase in treasury stock
Resulting from Exchange treasury stock to substdiaries’ share
Increase in capital surplus
Decrease in treasury stock

¥18,766 milion

¥S mullion

¥333 million
¥365 million
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Note 18 Net Income per Share of Common Stock
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Reconciliation of the numbers and amounts used in the basic net (loss) income per share of common stock computation for the

years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was as follows

Year ended March 31, 2010

I Mullions of yen Thousands Yen UsS dollars
I Waeighted Net loss Net loss
Net foss average shares per share per share
Basic net loss per share |
Net loss | ¥{66,555)
Net loss avallable to common shareholders I {66,555) 1,271,657 ¥(52 3) $(0 56)
Net loss for computation | ¥(66,555) 1,271,657 ¥(52 3) $(0 56)
Year ended March 31, 2009
I Millions of yen Thousands Yen
| weighted Net income
Net income average shares per share
Basic net income per share |
Net income | ¥6,106
Net income available to common shareholders l 6,106 1,269,975 ¥4 8
Net income for computation l ¥6,106 1,269,975 ¥48
Year ended March 31, 2008
I Milhons of yen Thousands Yen
I Weighted Net income
Net income average shares per share
Basic net income per share |
Net income | ¥74,268
Net income available to common shareholders | 74,268 1,255,864 ¥591
Net income for computation | ¥74,268 1,255,864 ¥591

Diluted net income has not been disclosed since there are no dilutive secunities for the years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and

2008

Note 19 Related Party Information

On October 17, 2006, the Accounting Standards Board of
Japan 1ssued ASBJ Statement No 11, “Accounting Standard for
Related Party Disclosures” and ASBJ Guidance No 13,
“Guidance on Accounting Standard for Related Party
Disclosures " These require certain additional related party dis-
closures effective from the year ended March 31, 2009

Pursuant to the new accounting standards, information on sig-
nificant transactions between consohidated subsidiaries and
related parties, and condensed financial mformation of signifi-
cant affilliates are additionally disclosed for the years ended
March 31, 2010 and 2009

1 The information for the year ended March 31, 2010 was omitted because there were no significant transactions with related

parties for the year ended March 31, 2010

2 Significant transactions with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2009 were as follows

{a) Transactions between the Company and related parties

Milkons of yen
I Short term Qther current
MHame of related ndivadual BOmOwWIngs Interest payments bank loans Long term debts  Prepad expenses assely Accrued expenses
Akio Utsums ¥13,050 ¥178 ¥— ¥ ¥— ¥— ¥
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{b) Transactions between consohdated subsidianes and related parties

Millions of yen
I Short tarm Other current
Namw of related nchadual Boergwingt  Interest payrnents bank loans Long-term debts  Prepad exp assets Accroed
Akio Utsumi | ¥23,781 w251 v—  ¥— Y— v— Y—
Note

Akio Utsumi resigned as Representatve Director of The Mitsubishi UF) Trust Banking Corporation in June, 2008, and transactions
for the time he was related parties (April to June, 2008} are reported
These transactions were made by Akio Utsumi (Corporate Auditor of the Company), as Representative Director of The Mitsubish)

UF) Trust and Banking Corporation

The interest rate for the debts was reasonably determined, considening the market interest rate

No pledged assets were furnished

3 Significant transactions with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2008 were as follows

Millions of yen
I Short term Cther current
Name of related indridual Borrowingy Interest payments bank loans Long-termn debts  Prenaid expenses assers Accrued expenses
Akio Utsurmi I ¥26,180 ¥663 ¥7,800 ¥28,443 ¥58 ¥29 ¥57
Note

These transactions were made by Akio Utsumi (Corporate Auditor of the Company), as Representative Director of The Mitsubish

UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation

The interest rate for the debts was reasonably determined, considering the market interest rate

No pledged assets were furnished

4 A significant affihiate as of March 31, 2010 and 2009 was SUMCO CORPORATION, and summary of its consolidated financal

statements was as follows

| Thousands of
Mithons of yen U S dollars
| 2010 | 2009 2010
Current assets | ¥ 200,381 | ¥199,928 $2,153711
Fixed assets 462,501 | 533,968 4,970,992
Current habilities 143252 | 211,944 1,539,689
Long-term liabilities 234,706 I 132,431 2,522,642
Net assets 284,923 | 389,521 3,062,372
Net sales 218,217 | 391,928 2,345,417
(Loss) income before ncome taxes (129,889) | 35,901 (1,396,062)
Net {loss) Income (100,472) | 18,886 {1,079,881)

Note 20 Loss on Impairment of Fixed Assets

In reviewing fixed assets for imparment, the Company and the
consolidated subsidiaries group categorize their operating
assets maimnly by product group within the business segmenta-
tion, and idle assets by asset unit

For the year ended March 31, 2010, the Company and the
domestic consohdated subsidianies recogruzed the loss on
impawrment of fixed assets amounting to ¥6,600 million
($70,943 thousand) as other expenses in the consohdated

statements of operations by devaluating the carrying amount of
each fixed asset to its recoverable amount The devalued assets
were In operating asset groups whose profitability has signifi-
cantly detenorated due to the decline in market value of prod-
ucts or others and also were i1dle assets whose recoverable
amounts were lower than their carrying amounts due to the
dechne in market value of each asset, etc

MITSUBISHI MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010 O F




Research and
Devebrmant

Message fror the Presdent At a Glarce Review ot Operauo & Lomorate Gaverns e

The details for the year ended March 31, 2010 were as follows
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Loss on impairment

Thousands of
Asset group Location Asset type Millions of yen U S dollars
Cement Shimozuma, Ibarag! Land and buildings, etc
prefecture ¥ 50 $ 539
Advance materials & tools  Iwaks, Fukushima prefecture Buildings and machinery, etc 388 4,173
Electronic matenals & Chichibu, Saitama prefecture Machinery, etc
components 291 3,128
Others Sapporo, Hokkaido Machinery and mining rights,
etc 563 6,054
Assets for lease Osaka, Osaka prefecture Land and buildings, etc 3,204 34,442
Idle assets Kakogawa, Hyogo prefecture Land and buildings, etc 2,103 22,604
Total ¥6,600 $70,943

*Detalls of loss on impairment by account

Buildings ¥2,036 million ($21,892 thousand), Machinery ¥987 million ($10,614 thousand), Land ¥2,724 million (329,281 thou-

sand), Mining rights ¥216 million ($2,328 thousand), Others ¥635 million ($6,826 thousand)

The details for the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 are omitted due to being immatenal
In measunng the loss on impairment, a recoverable amount 1s calculated based on the discounted cash flows from the continued

use and eventual disposition of assets mainly at 5 0% discount rate for the operating asset group, and on the estimated net selling

price at the time of disposal based on the reat estate appraisal by the third parties, or property tax valuation, etc for the idle assets

The effect of loss on impairment on the segment information 1s descnbed in Note 15

Note 21 Information on Net Assets

{a) Type and Number of Shares Issued and Treasury Stock

For the years ended March 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, information on shares 1ssued and treasury stock 1s presented as follows

Type of shares issued

Type of treasury stocks

Common stocks '*

Common stocks 234374

Number of shares as of March 31, 2007 | 1.252,092486 | 3.690.375
tncrease during the year ended March 31,2008 26,862,844 740,026
Decrease during the year ended March 31, 2008 — 3,613,973
Number of shares as of March 31, 2008 1,278,955,330 816,428
Increase during the year ended March 31,2009 — 9,996,629
Decrease during the year ended March 31, 2009 — 228,180
Number of shares as of March 31, 2009 1,278,955,330 10,584,877
Increase during the year ended March 31,2010 35,940,021 198,867
Decrease during the year ended March 31, 2010 — 8,024,155
Number of shares as of March 31, 2010 1,314,855,351 2,759,589
*1  Increase in the number of shares issued during the year ended March 31, 2008

tssuance of new shares due to share exchange 26,862,844 shares
*2 Increase in the number of treasury stocks duning the year ended March 31, 2008

Purchase of less-than-one-unit shares 718,658 shares

Increase resulting from changes of equity shares in affiliates 400 shares

Increase in shares held by subsidiaries and affiliate due to share exchange 20,968 shares
*3  Decrease in the number of treasury stocks durning the year ended March 31, 2008

Sales of less-than-one-unit shares 39,742 shares

Decrease by share exchange
Sales of the Company’s shares by affilated comparues
Increase tn the number of treasury stocks dunng the year ended March 31, 2009
Purchase of less-than-one-unit shares
Purchase under resolution of board of directors

*4
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3,145,051 shares
429,180 shares

532,629 shares
9,464,000 shares



*5  Decrease in the number of treasury stocks dunng the year ended March 31, 2009

Sales of less-than-one-unit shares
Sales of the Company's shares by affihated cornpanies

222,892 shares
5,288 shares

*6 Increase in the number of shares 1ssued dunng the year ended March 31, 2010

Increase by share exchange

35,940,021 shares

*7 Ingease in the number of treasury stocks dunng the year ended March 31, 2010

Purchase of less-than-one-umt shares
Increase by share exchange

188,684 shares
10,183 shares

*8 Decrease in the number of treasury stocks dunng the year ended March 31, 2010

Sales of less-than-one-unit shares
Decrease by share exchange

{b) Dividends
Dvidend payment

26,904 shares
7,997,251 shares

No dividend payment was approved by the shareholders’ meeting and board of directors” meeting during the year ended March

31, 2010

Note 22 Business Combination

(a) The share exchange agreement to make Mitsubishi Cable
Industries, Ltd a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
on March 12, 2010

The details of this share exchange were as follows

1 Name of the acquired company and its business, major rea-
son of business combination, date of business combination,
legal structure of business combination, name of company after
business combination and ratio of voting nghts acquired

(1) Name of the acquired company and its business

Name Mitsubishi Cable Industnes, Ltd

Business Production and sales of electric wire and cable, auto-
mobile parts, rubber and resin products and other

{2) Major reason of business combination

The Company reached the conclusten that it would be best for
all the stakeholders such as shareholders, employees and cus-
tomers of both comparues to make Mitsubistu Cable Industnes,
Ltd a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company by the share
exchange, which will enable Mitsubishy Cable Industries, Ltd to
achieve more speedy and certain business restructuning and
eventually contnbute to the maximization of the corporate
value of the Group

(3) Date of business comhbination

March 12, 2010

(4) Legal structure of the business combination

The share exchange to make Mitsubistu Cable industnes, Ltd a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

{5) Name of company after business combination

There was no change to the company name

{6) Ratio of voting nghts acquired

63 15%

2 Period of operating results of the acquired company included
in the consoldated financial statements

No operating results are included in the consolidated financial
statements, since the fiscal year-end was deemed to be the
acquisition date

3 Acquisition ¢ost detail

Common stock of the Company  ¥9,156 million {$98,414 thousand)
Expenses related to the acquision  ¥152 million {($1,638 thousand)
Total acquisition cost ¥9,309 rmullion ($100,053 thousand)

4 Allotment ratio of shares and type of the share, method of
calculation for the share exchange ratio and number of 1ssued
shares and appraisal value
(1) Allotment ratio of shares and type of the share
The Company issued 0 32 shares for each share of Mitsubishi
Cable Industnes, Ltd ‘s common stock

However, the Company did not issue any shares for the
78,973,725 shares of Mitsubishi Cable Industries, Ltd ‘s com-
mon stock that the Company currently held
{2) Method of calculation for the share exchange ratio
To ensure the fairness and appropriateness of the share
exchange ratio, the Company designated Nomura Securnties
Co, ttd and Mutsubishy Cable Industries, Ltd designated PwC
Advisory Co, Ltd as ther respective third-party adwisors to per-
form the calculation of the share exchange ratio The exchange
ratio was approved after the discussion between the Company
and Mitsubishi Cable Industnes, Ltd considered the calculation
results, such as the market value average method and the dis-
counted cash flow
(3} Number of 1ssued shares and appraisal value
Number of 1s5ued shares 43,937,272 shares
Appraisal value ¥9,309 milhon ($100,053 thousand)
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S Detalls of goodwill amount, reason of the goodwll and
arnortization method and pernod

Goodwill amount ¥5,934 million ($63,786 thousand)
Reason of the goodwill

The goodwill was recognized as the difference between the

Camparate Governance 758 Promotion Structure Managemery Financal Section

investment amount reflecting future income expected at the
appraisal of the acquisition and the fair value of net assets at
the date of the business combination

Amortization method and period

Amortized using straight-line method for 10 years

6 Major assets and liabilittes accepted on the date of business combination

Thousands of
Mitlions of yen U S dollars

Assets

Current assets ¥47,156 $506,844

Fixed assets 39,003 419,216

Total 86,160 926,061
Liabihties

Current habthttes 59,454 639,025

Long-term liabilities I 22,495 | 241,774

Total ¥81,949 $830,800

7 Estimated amounits of impact on the consolidated statement of operations assurming that this business combination was execut-

ed on Apnl 1, 2009

Thousands of

Mill:ons of yen US dollars
Increase In net sales ¥61,754 $663,739
Increase in operating income 398 4,280
Increase in loss before income taxes and minority interests 2,548 27,394
Increase In net loss 2,834 30,465
increase m net loss per share (in yen or U S dollar) 217 002

(Calcutation Method and Important Precondittons of Estimated
Amounts)

Above estimated amounts were calculated as the difference
between the income statement for the year ended March 31,
2010 and the information about net sales and income calculat-

ed assuming the business combination were completed on Apn!
1, 2009 In addition, amortization of goodwill was calculated
assuming goodwill recognized on the date of business comb-
nation was incurred on Apnl 1, 2009 The above estimated
amounts of impact have not been audited

{b) Mitsubisht Matenals Polycrystalline Silicon Co ,Ltd was merged with the Company on Apnl 1, 2007

The detalls of this merger were as follows
1 Names of combined parties and description of business

Company name

Description of business

Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation
{The "Company")

Production and sales of cement and secondary cement prod-
ucts, smelting/refining, processing and sales of copper, gold, sil-
ver and other metals, production and sales of superhard tools,
powder metallurgy, hughly efficrent matenals, and diamond
tools, and production and sales of electronic materals and com-
ponents and polycrystalline silicon

Mitsubishy Materials Polycrystalline Sthcon Co |, Ltd

Production and sales of polycrystalline silicon

2 Legal structure of the business combination

This was the merger with the Company as a surviving company
and Mitsubishi Matenals Polycrystalline Sihcon Co, Ltd, as a
company that ceases to exist

3 Name of company after business combination
There was no change to the company name
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4 Summary of transactions

Mitsubishi Matenals Polycrystalline Siicon Co, Ltd was merged
with the Company on April 1, 2007 The polycrystaliine silicon
market was expanding, as the demand stayed hugh in the solar
cell and semiconductor market The purpose of this merger was
to stimulate further growth and development of the polycrystal-
line silicon business as one of our core businesses by accelerat-
ing 1ts decision-making and boosting 1ts technological
development capacities through our direct management




5 Summary of accounting procedure

The Company adopted the accounting procedures for a com-
monly controlled business combination based on the account-
ing standards, “Accounting Standards for Business
Combination” 1ssued by the Business Accounting Council on

October 31, 2003, Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business
Divestitures {Guidance No 10 issued by the Accounting
Standards Board of Japan on December 27, 2005)

(¢} The share exchange agreement to make Ryoko Sangyo Co , Ltd a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company on August 1, 2007

The details of this share exchange were as follows
1 Names of combmned parties and description of business

Company name

Description of bustness

Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation
(The “Company")

Production and sales of cement and secondary cement prod-
ucts, smeltng/refiring, processing and sales of copper, gold, si-
ver and other metals, production and sales of superhard tools,
powder metallurgy, highly efficient matenals, and diamond
tools, and production and sales of electronic materials and com-
ponents and polycrystalline silicon

Ryoko Sangyo Co, Ltd

Purchase, sales, import and export of non-ferrous metal bullion,
metal products, electronic matenals, construction matenals,
industnial machines, chemical products, heavy chemicals, and
other matenals

2 Legal structure of the business combination
The share exchange to make Ryoko Sangyo Co, Ltd a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company

3 Name of company after business combtnation
There was no change to the company name

4 Summary of transactions

On August 1, 2007 the Company and Ryoko Sangyo Co, Ltd
signed the share exchange to make Rycko Sangyo Co, Ltd a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company The purpose of the
share exchange was to accelerate its decision-making, to
improve operating agility, and to enhance the trading business
as a main trading company n our group The Company used a
simplified share exchange procedure that did not require the
approval of a general meeting of its shareholders pursuant to
Article 796, Paragraph 3, of the Corporation Law

5 Summary of accounting procedure

The Company adopted the accounting procedures for a com-
manly controlled business combination based on the account-
ing standards, “Accounting Standards for Business
Combination” 1ssued by Business Accounting Council on
October 31, 2003, Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business
Divestitures (Guidance Na 10 1ssued by the Accounting
Standards Board of Japan on December 27, 2005)

6 Acquisition cost of the additional shares of the subsidiary
{1) Acquisition cost details

Common stock of the Company ¥1,283 million
Expenses refated to the acquisition ¥20 rmithon
Total acquisition cost ¥1,303 million

(2) Allotment ratio of shares and type of the share

The Company ssued 1 share for each share of Ryoko Sangyo
Co, Ltd s common stock However, the Company did not issue
any shares for the 4,514,949 shares of Ryoko Sangyo Co , Ltd 's
common stock that the Company currently held

(3) Methods of calculation for the share exchange ratio

To ensure the fairness and appropriateness of the share
exchange ratio, the Company designated aMidAs Partners, Inc
and Ryoko Sangyo Co, Ltd designated Ernst & Young
Transaction Adwisory Service Co, Ltd as their respective third-
party advisors to perform the calculation of the share exchange
ratio The share exchange ratio was approved after the discus-
sion between the Company and Ryoko Sangyo Co, Ltd consid-
ered the calculation results, such as the market value average
method, adjusted farr value net worth method, and the dis-
counted cash flow (DCF)

{4) Number of issued shares and its amount

Number of issued shares 2,145,051 shares
Amount ¥1,303 million
(5) Details of negative goodwaill, reason and amortization meth-
od and perod

Negative goodwill amount
Reason for the negative goodwill
The negative goodwill was generated because the minority
interest decreased by this share exchange was greater than the
acquisition cost of Ryoko Sangyo Co, Ltd 's common stock
Amortization method and period

Amortized using straight-ine method for 5 years

{6) Contingent constderation subject to condition as defined in
the business combrnation contract and its future accounting
treatment

Not apphcable

(7} Amount and the accounting caption of the expense allocat-
ed as research and development among the acquisition cost
Not applicable

¥198 million
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(d) Mitsubishi Materials Kobe Tools Co, Ltd was merged with the Company on October 1, 2007

The details of this merger were as follows
1 Names of combined parties and description of business

Company name

Description of business

Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation
{The “Company”}

Production and sales of cement and secondary cement prod-
ucts, smelting/refining, processing and sales of copper, gold, sil-
ver and other metals, production and sales of superhard tools,
powder metallurgy, highly efficent matenals, and diamond
tools, and production and sales of electronic matenals and com-
ponents and polycrystalline silicon

Mitsubishi Matenals Kobe Tools Co, Ltd

Production and sales of cutting tools {(end mitling, dnll, and
gear-cutting tools)

2 Legal structure of the business combination

This was the merger with the Company as a surviving company
and Mitsubishi Matenials Kobe Tools Co, Ltd as a company
that ceases to exist

3 Name of company after bustness combination
There was no change to the company name

4 Summary of transactions

On October 1, 2007 Mitsubisht Materials Kobe Tools Co, Ltd
was merged with the Company Cutting tools market was
expanding, as the growth stayed steady in the automobile
industry and the growth remained high in the aeronautic indus-
try The purpose of this merger was to renforce the products

field with high-growth potential by accelerating 1its deciston-
making and streamiining the human resources through our
direct management

5 Summary of accounting procedure

The Company adopted the accounting procedures for a com-
monly controlled business combination based on the account-
ing standards, "Accounting Standards for Business
Combination” 1ssued by Business Accounting Counall on
October 31, 2003, Gudance on Accounting Standard for
Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business
Divestitures {Guidance No 10 1ssued by the Accounting
Standards Board of japan on December 27, 2005)

(e} The share exchange to make Sambo Copper Alloy Co, Ltd a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company on December 28, 2007

The details of this share exchange were as follows
1 Names of combined parties and description of business

Company name

Description of business

Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation
{The "Company”)

Production and sales of cement and secondary cement prod-
ucts, smelting/refining, processing and sales of copper, gold, si-
ver and other metals, production and sales of superhard tools,
powder metallurgy, highly efficient matenials, and diamond
tools, and production and sales of electronic materials and com-
ponents and polycrystalline silicon

Sambo Copper Alloy Co |, Ltd

Manufacture and sales of copper and copper alloy products,

and fabricated products

2 Legal structure of the business combination
The share exchange to make Sambo Copper Alloy Co, Ltd a
wholly owned substdary of the Company

3 Name of company after business combination
There was no change to the company name

4 Summary of transactions

On December 28, 2007 the Company and Sambo Copper Alloy
Co, Ltd signed a share exchange to make Sambo Copper Alloy
Co, ltd a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company Sambo

T2 AITSUBISH MATERIALS CORPORATION ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Copper Alloy Co, Ltd was scheduled to merge with Mitsubishi
Shindoh after becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company through the share exchange The purpose of this
merger was t0 maximize the strength of the product develop-
ment, cost competitiveness, and marketing capabilities in the
copper alloy field

The Company used a simplfied share exchange procedure
that did not require the approval of a general meeting of its
shareholders pursuant to Article 796, Paragraph 3, of the
Corporation Law




5 Summary of accounting procedure

The Company adopted the accounting procedures for a com-
monly controlled business combination based on the account-
ing standards, “Accounting Standards for Business
Combination” 1ssued by Business Accounting Council on
October 31, 2003, Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business
Divestitures {Guidance No 10 issued by the Accounting
Standards Board of lapan on December 27, 2005}

6 Acquisition cost of the additional shares of the subsidiary
{1} Acquisition cost details

Common stock of the Company ¥7,445 mithon
Expenses related to the acquisition ¥23 million
Total acquisition cost ¥7.,469 million

(2) Allotment ratio of shares and type of the share

The Company 1ssued 1 25 shares for each share of Sambo
Copper Alloy Co, Ltd ‘s common stock However, the Company
did not 1ssue any shares for the 14,142,490 shares of Sambo
Copper Alloy Co, Ltd 's common stock that the Company cur-
rently held

(3) Methods of calculation for the share exchange ratio

To ensure the farness and appropnateness of the share
exchange ratio, the Company designated Mitsubishi UF)
Securities, Co, Ltd and Sambo Copper Alloy Co, Ltd desig-
nated GCA Corporation as their respective third-party advisors

to perform the calculation of the share exchange ratio The
share exchange ratio was approved after the discussion
between the Company and Sambo Copper Alloy Co, Ltd con-
sidenng the calculation results, such as the market value aver-
age method, the multiple method {a method which applied
multiples to the comparable company's financial metrics), and
the discounted cash flow {(DCF)

{4) Number of ssued shares and its amount

Number of issued shares 10,658,262 shares
Amount ¥7,469 million
(5) Details of goodwill, reason and amortization method and penod
Goodwill amount ¥2,195 mifion
Reason of the goodwill

The goodwill was generated because minonty interest
decreased by this share exchange was smaller than the acquisi-
tion cost of Sambo Copper Alloy Co, Ltd 's common stock
Amortization method and pernod

Amortized using straight-line method for 5 years

(6) Contingent consideration subject to condition as defined In
the business combination contract and its accounting treat-
ment

Not applicable

{7} Amount and the accounting caption name of the expense
allocated as research and development among the acquisition
cost

Not applicable

{f) The share exchange to make Mitsubishi Shindch Co , Ltd a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company on February 1, 2008

The details of this share exchange were as follows
1 Names of combined parties and description of business

Company name

Description of business

Mitsubishi Matenials Corporation
{The “Company”}

Production and sales of cement and secondary cement prod-
ucts, smelung/refining, processing and sales of copper, gold, sit-
ver and other metals, production and sales of superhard tools,
powder metallurgy, highly efficient matenals, and diamond
tools, and production and sales of electronic matenals and com-
ponents and polycrystalline silicon

Mitsubishi Shindoh Co , Ltd

Manufacture and sales of copper and copper alloy products,
and thin-film products

2 Legal structure of the business combination
The share exchange to make Mitsubishi Shindoh Co, Ltd a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

3 Name of company after business combination
There was no change to the company name

4 Summary of transactions

On February 1, 2008 the Company and Mitsubishi Shindoh Co ,
Ltd signed a share exchange agreement to make Mitsubish
Shindoh Co, Ltd a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
Mitsubushi Shindoh Co, Ltd was scheduled to merge with
Sambo Copper Alloy Co, Ltd after becoming a wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company through the share exchange The
purpose of this merger was to maximize the strength of the
product development, cost competitiveness, and marketing
capabihities in the copper alloy field

The Company used a stmphfied share exchange procedure
that did not require the approval of a general meeting of its
shareholders pursuant to Article 796, Paragraph 3, of the
Corporation Law

5 Summary of accounting procedure

The Company adopted the accounting procedures for a com-
monly controlled bustness combination based on the account-
ing standards, “Accounting Standards for Business
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Combmation” 1ssued by Business Accounting Council on
October 31, 2003, Guidance on Accounting Standard for
Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business
Divestitures (Gurdance No 10 sssued by the Accounting
Standards Board of Japan on December 27, 2005)

6 Acquisition cost of the additional shares of the subsidiary
(1) Acquisition cost details

Commeon stock of the Company ¥12,019 million
Expenses related to the acquisition ¥38 mulhon
Total acquisttion cost ¥12,057 milhon

{2) Allotment ratio of shares and type of the share

The Company issued O 56 shares for each share of Mitsubishi
Shindoh Co, Ltd s common stock However, the Company did
not sssue any share for the 31,977,199 shares of Mitsubish
Shindoh Co, Ltd s common stock that the Company currently
held

(3} Methods of calculation for the share exchange ratio

To ensure the fairness and appropriateness af the share
exchange ratio, the Company designated Mitsubishi UF)
Securities, Co, Ltd and Mitsubishi Shindoh Co, Ltd designat-
ed GCA Corporation as ther respective third-party adwvisers to
perform the calculation of the share exchange ratic The share
exchange ratio was approved after the discussion between the

Note 23 Subsequent events

Co porate Governarce TSR Promotion $nucture Management Firanaal Section

Company and Mitsutishi Shundoh Co, Ltd considenng the cal-
culation results, such as the market value average method, the
muttiple method (a method which applied multiples to the
comparable company’s financal metncs), and the discounted
cash flow (OCF)

(4) Number of 1ssued shares and 1ts amount

Number of i1ssued shares 17,204,582 shares
Amount ¥12,057 million
(5) Detatls of goodwall, reason and amortization method and period
Goodwill amount ¥2,435 million
Reason of the goodwill

The goodwill was generated because the minonty interest
decreased by this share exchange was smaller than the acquisi-
tion cost of Mitsubishi Shindeh Co, Ltd s common stock
Amortization method and period

Amortized using straight-hine method for 5 years

(6) Contingent consideration subject to conditron as defined in
the business combination contract and its accounting treat-
ment

Not apphcable

{7) Amount and the accounting caption of the expense allocat-
ed as research and development among the acquisition cost
Not applicable

On April 28, 2010, the Company was instructed by Mie prefec-
tural authonttes to cease utihization of a part of the facilities in
the Yokkaichi Plant, on the alleged basis that the necessary per-
mit under the High Pressure Gas Safety Act had not been
obtained The Company takes this situation senously and has
decided to temporanly suspend operation of the plant Under
the guidance of the Mie prefectural authorities and other rele-
vant government bodies, the Company has been implementing
facihities improvement construction to comply with the High
Pressure Gas Safety Act The Company 15 expecting to be able
to resume operations by stages after the end of July 2010
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Business results of the plant for the year ended March 31,
2010 were as follows

Net sales ¥17.133 milion {$184,154 thousand)
Operating income ¥1,484 million ($15,958 thousand)
Production of polycrystalline siicon 1,805 tons per year




Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of
Mitsubisht Matenials Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation {(a Japanese corporation) and
consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2010 and 2009, the related consolidated staternents of operations for each of the three
years in the penod ended March 31, 2010, the consolidated statements of changes in net assets for each of the three years in the
penod ended March 31, 2010 and the consoldated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the peniod ended March
31, 2010, expressed in Japanese yen These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management
Our responsibility is to independently express an opinton on these consohdated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits 1n accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of matenial misstatement
An audit indludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finanaial statements An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall finanoal statement presentation We believe that our audits prowide a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects, the consolidated finan-
aial position of Mitsubishi Materials Corporation and consoldated subsidianies as of March 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidat-
ed results of ther operations and ther cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended March 31, 2010, m conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan

Without qualifying our opimion, we draw attention to the following

(1) As discussed in Note 2 (s), Mitsubishy Materials Corporation has adopted “Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting
Policies Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for Consohdated Finanaial Statements” in the year ended March 31, 2009

(2) As discussed 1n Note 2 (f), Mitsubishi Matenals Corporation has changed its measurement method of avallable-for-sale securities
with available fair market value in the year ended March 31, 2010

(3) As discussed in Note 23, on Aprl 28, 2010, Mitsubishi Materials Corporation was instructed by Mie prefectural authonties to
cease utilization of a part of the facilities of the Yokkaichi Plant, and decided to temporarily suspend operation of the plant

The U S dollar amounts in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect to the year ended March 31, 2010 are

presented solely for conversence Qur audit also included the translation of yen amounts into U S dollar amounts and, i our opin-
1on, such transtation has been made on the basis described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements

Kbl 4254 & Ce

Tokyo, Japan
June 29, 2010
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Main Consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates sof e, 2010

Main Consolidated Subsidiaries

l Line of Busingss l Percentage of Qwnership
Cement
MCC Development Corp nvestment in cement-related mdustnes 70%
Mitsubishi Cement Corp Production and sales of cement 67%
Mitsubishi Matenals Kenzar Corp :g%:icat;gn and sales of concrete products and other bullding 100%
Robertson’s Ready Mix_ Ltd Production and sales of ready-mixed concrete and aggregates 70% (indirectly)
Ryoko Lime Industry Co, Ltd Production and sales of hmestone 100%
Tokyo Hoso Kogyo Co, Ltd Constructhion 96%
Metals | |
Mitsubishi Shindoh Co |, Ltd Production and sales of copper, copper alloy and brass semis | T00%
Mitsutishi Cable Industries Co | Ltd Production and sales of electnc wire and cable 100%
Onahama Smelting & Refining Co , Ltd Smelting and refining of copper 50%, 4% (Indirectly}
PT Smelting Smelting, refining and sales of copper 61%
Advanced Matenals & Tools

Japan New Metals Co, Ltd

Production and sales of tungsten and molybdenum

89%, 11% (indirectly)

Mitsubishi Matenals Tools Co , Ltd

Sales of cutting tools

100%

Surveys In the United States and sales of fabncated metal

Mitsubishi Matenials U S A Corp products and electronic parts 100%

Mitsubishi Matenals C M| Co, Ltd :‘-‘nrgfgrt;tron and sales of tungsten alloy, electnc contacts and 100%

Diamet Corporation Production and sales of powder metallurgical products 100%
Electronic Materials & Components

Mitsubishn Matenals Electnic Chemicals Co , Ltd Production and sales of chemical products 100%

Mitsubishi Polycrystalline Silicon Amenca Corp | Production and sales of polycrystalime silicon 100%
Aluminum

Universal Can Corp Production and sales of aluminum beverage cans 80%

Mitsubishi Aluminum Co , Ltd Producton and sales of alumimum sheets, extruston and foil 88%

Tachibana Metal Manufacturing Co, Ltd Production and sales of fabricated aluminum products 63% (indirectly)
Others

Mitsubishi Materials Techno Corp Technical engineening and construction 100%

Dia Consultants Co, Ltd

Soil analysis and consulting

81%, 3% (indirectly)

Diasalt Corp

Production and sales of salt

95%

Matenal-Finance Co |, Ltd | Financing | 100%
Mitsubishi Matenals Real Estate Corp l Real estate 100%
Ryoke Sangyo Corp | Trading 100%
Main Affiliates*
Line of Business Percentage of Ownership
Cement

PS Mitsubishi Construction Co, Ltd **

Construction

Ube-Mitsubishi Cement Corp

Sales of cement

40%, 1% (indirectly)
50%

Metals

Kobelco & Matenals Copper Tube, Ltd Production and sales of copper tubes and related products 45%
Electronic Matenals & Component

SUMCO CORPORATION** Production and sales of silicon wafers 28%
Others

Mitsubishs Nuclear Fuel Co, Ltd Production and sales of nuclear fuels for power generation 30%

* Companies to which the equity method 15 applied

** Companies whose shares are listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange
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International Network w o e 2. 2010

‘North America _
» Canada

Mitsubishl Matenials Corp Vancouver Office
Representative office

s Mexico

MMC Metal de Mexico $ A
Sales of cemented carbide products

¢ United States
MCC Develepment Corp
Investment in cement-related industries

Mitsubishy Cement Corp
Production and sales of cement

Mitsubish) Matenals U S A Corp
Surveys in the United States and sales of fabncated
metal products

Mitsubishy Polycrystathne Silicon Amernica Corp
Production and sales of polycrystalline silicon

RFM Inc
Production of cemented carbide products

Robertson’s Ready Mux, Ltd
Production and sales of ready-mixed concrete and
aggregates

THERMALEX, Inc
Production and sales of alurmnum extrusion

South America

= Brazil
MMC-Metal do Brasif Ltda
Sales of cemented carbide products

« Chile
Mitsubishi Materlals Corp Chile Office
Reprasentatwe office

« France
MM Metal France SARL
Sales of cernented carbide products

* Germany
MMC Hardmetal (Holdings) Europe GmbH
Holding company for fabncated metal products

MMC Hartmetall GmbH
Sales of cemented carbide products

. m|y
MMC RaliaSRL
Sales of cemented carbide products

« Netherlands

MM Netherlands Co
Holding company for copper mine

* Russia
MMC Hardmeta! Russia Ltd
Sales of cemented carbide products

* Spain
Mitsubishy Maternals Espana 5 A Sociedad
Uniperscna
Production and sales of cemented carbide products

* United Kingdom
MMC Hard Metal U K Ltd
Sales of fabncated metal products

+ India
Sona Okegawa Precision Forgings Ltd
Production and sales of precision forging gears for
automobries

MMC Hardmetal India PVT Ltd
Sales of cemented carbide products

+ Indonesia

PT Higashifuji Indonesia
Production and sales of micromotors

PT MMC Metal Fabrication
Production and sales of nickel-base alloy fabricated
products

PT Smelting
Smelung, refinng and sales of copper

« Malaysia
Higashifuji (Malaysia} Sdn 8hd
Production and sales of micromotors

MMC Electronics (M) Sdn Bhd
Production and sales of electromc parts

* People‘'s Republic of China
(Hong Kong SAR)

MMC Electronics (H K ) Ltd
Sales of electronic parts

{Other areas}

MA China Extrusion (Suzhou) Co, Ltd
Production and sales of aluminum extrusion

Mitsubishi Materials Corp Shanghai Office
Representatne office

Mitsubishi Matenals (Shanghai) Corp
Management, consuiting and sales in China

MMC Shangha! Co, Ltd
Sales of electromic parts

Tianjin Tianling Carbide Tools Co, Ltd
Production and sales of cemented carbide products

Yantai Mitsubtshy Cement Co, Ltd
Production and sales of cement

* Singapore
MMC Metal Singapore Pte Ltd
Sales of cernented carbide products

= South Korea

MMC Electromics Korea Ing
Sales of electronic parts

« Talwan
MUE Materials Taawan Co, Ltd
Production and sales of sputtenng targets

+ Thalland

Higashifup Thailand Co, Ltd
Production and sales of micromotors

MMC Electronics (Thailand) Co, Ltd
Production and sales of electromic parts

MMC Tools (Thailand) Co, Ltd
Production and sales of cemented carbide products

Mitsubishi Materials Corp Southeast Asia

Reglonal Office
Representatwe office

MUANG-MAX, (Thailand) Co, Ltd
Production and sales of aluminum extrusion

» Vietham
Nghi Son Cement Corporation
Production and safes of cement

Oceania .

» Australia

Mitsubishi Matenials (Australia) Pty Ltd
Development of coal mines
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Corporate History

Tsukuma Shokas, precursor to Mitsubishr Shokay, leases a coal mine from the Shingu clan in Kishu, and enters
the mining business

Mitsubishi Shokal, precursor to Mitsubishi Goshi Kaisha, acquires the Yoshioka Mine in Okayama Prefecture,
and enters the metals mining business

Mitsubishi Goshi Kaisha 15 established

Buys a refinery in Osaka owned by the Impenal Household Agency and enters the metal refining business

Establishes the Mining Research Instrtute, now the Central Research Institute
Establishes the Naoshima Smelter & Refinery

Mitsubishi Mining Company Ltd established and takes over the coal and metal mmning cperations of
the Mitsubishi Goshi Karsha as well as operation of the research facility

Kanda Plant {now, Kyushu Plant) established and begins cement productton

Company hists on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Tokyo Metals Plant (now, Tsukuba Plant) made into independent operation and begins full-scale production of
cutting tools

Nngata Metals Plant {(now, Diamet Corporation) established to manufacture sintered products

Nonferrous Metals Plant (now, MMC Superalloy Co, Ltd ) established and begins production of special copper alloy

Operations split into two companies—Mitsubisht Mining Corporation for coal operations and Tather Mining for
metal minng—in accordance with a law to eliminate excessive concentrations of economic power held by
some corparate groups

Taiher Mining lists on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

Taithel Mining changes its name to Mitsubishy Metal Mining Company Ltd

Mitsubishh Cement 1s established and enters the cement business

Japan Electronic Metals Co, Ltd s established and enters the field of high-purity stlicon for semiconductors

Mitsubishi Reynolds Aluminum Co, Ltd {now, Mitsubishi Aluminum Co , Ltd ) is established as a general maker
of rolled aluminum sheet & plate, foll and extruded products

Mitsubishn Nuclear Fuel Co Ltd 1s established to manufacture nuclear fuels

Fujioyama Plant is established and enters the aluminum beverage can business

Mitsubishy Miming, Mitsubishi Cement and Hokoku Cement merge into Mitsubishi Mining & Cement Co , Ltd
Mitsubishi Metal Mining changes name to Mitsubishi Metat Corporation

Production and sales of ceramic electronic components begins

Mitsubishi Cement 1s established in the United States, marking entry into the overseas cement business

Mitsubishi Metal and Mitsubishi Mining & Cement merge to form Mitsubishi Matenials on December 21

Merges with Tohoku Kathatsu Co Ltd on October 1

Establishes PT Smelting in Indonesia

Institutes GPM Committee and strengthens companywide environmental protection activities
Forms comprehensive business tieup with Ube Industrnes, Ltd and establishes Ube-Mitsubishi Cement Corp

Strengthens tool business with acquisition of Kobelco Tool Co, Ltd
(now, Mitsubish: Matenials Kobe Tools Corporation)

Integrates silicon wafer business with that of Sumitomo Metal Industries, Ltd to create Surmitomo Mitsubishi
Silicon Corp {now, SUMCQO CORPORATION)

Consolidates domestic sales structure for superhard tools into Mitsubishy Matenals Tools Co, Ltd

Integrates copper tube business with that of Kobe Steel, Ltd to create Kobelco & Matenals Copper Tube, Ltd

Signs basic agreement with Hokkai Co , Ltd to integrate alummum beverage can operations

Mitsubishy Shindoh Co , Ltd merges with and absorbs Sambo Copper Alloy Co , Lid

Mitsubishi Nuclear Fuel Co, Ltd 15 restructured to create comprehensive nuclear fuel company
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Shares of Common Stock
Authonzed 3,400,000,000
tssued and Outstanding 1,314,885,351

Number of Shareholders
165,064

Stock Listing
Tokyo Stock Exchange
Osaka Secunties Exchange

Transfer Agent of Common Stock
The Mitsubishi UF} Trust and Banking Corp
1-4-5, Marunouchs, Chiyeda-ku, Tokyo 100-8212, Japan

Independent Certified Public Accountants
KPMG AZSA & Co
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Tel +81-3-5252-5206

Fax +81-3-5252-5272
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Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The annual meeting of shareholders of the Company is normal-

ly held in June each year in Tokyo

Major Shareholders

Japan Trustee Service Bank, 1td (Trust account)
The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd (Trust account)
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFS Ltd

The Mey Yasuda Mutual Lfe Insurance Co
Nihon Life Insurance Company

Date Established
Aprit 1, 1950

Paid-in Capital
¥119,457 milhon

Number of Employees
Parent company 4,730
Consolidated 21,641
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